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• Credibility
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• Transparency
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success as the art of working 
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1)	 Discussing and approving the Board of Directors’ report on the company’s activities and financial position for the fiscal year ending 
on December 31, 2024. 

2)	 Recitation of the Corporate Governance Report and the Audit Committee Report for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024, 
and their approval. 

3)	 Discussing the report of the external auditors for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024, and approving it.
4)	 Discuss and approve the consolidated final financial statements and balance sheet for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.
5)	 Review any violations monitored by the regulatory authorities for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2023 (if any). 
6)	 Discussing and approving the recommendation of the Board of Directors for the remuneration policy and allowances for atten-

dance, representation and excellent work for the members of the Board of Directors and authorizing the Board of Directors to cre-
ate any amendments and take decisions on the mechanism of the policy implementation without any responsibility on the Board.

7)	 Discussing and approving the Nominations and Remunerations Committee’s report on the remunerations, benefits and salaries of 
the members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024.

8)	 Approving the Board of Directors’ recommendation to pay bonuses to the members of the Board of Directors in the amount of 
(250,000) KD, in exchange for the work they undertake in the company and attending committees, and including it in the record of 
bonuses granted to the Board of Directors and its members, and its approval by the General Assembly For the fiscal year ending 
on December 31, 2024, and its approval. 

9)	 Approval of the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute cash dividends to shareholders at the rate of 12% ( Twelve percent) of 
the nominal value of the share, at the rate of ten fils (12 fils) per share, after deducting the treasury shares, for the year The fiscal year 
ending on December 31, 2024, for the shareholders registered in the company’s records at the end of the maturity date specified on (fif-
teen days after the assembly convening), provided that the distribution of these profits to the shareholders entitled to them starts from 
(five working days from the maturity date). and authorize the Board of Directors to dispose of the fractions of shares resulting from this 
distribution, after obtaining the necessary approvals from the regulatory authorities, and authorize the Board of Directors to dispose of 
the fractions of shares resulting from this distribution. Board of directors may adjust the schedule for stock entitlements if necessary.

10)	 Reviewing the transactions that took place with related parties for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024, and authorizing the 
Board of Directors to deal with related parties that will take place during the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2025, and approving it. 

11)	 Discussing transfer the amount of 592,510 KWD “Five hundred ninety two thousand and five hundred ten Kuwaiti dinar” which is 
10% (ten percent) of the net profit before deducting the KFAS, the Taxation of Kuwait labor contribution, Zakat and Board of direc-
tors fees and incentives to the statutory provision. 

12)	 Authorizing the Board of Directors to buy or sell the company’s shares not exceeding 10% of the number of its shares, in accor-
dance with the articles of Law No. (7) of 2010 and its executive regulations and their amendments and approving it. 

13)	 Discussing and approving the internal control report for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024. 
14)	 The discharge of the gentlemen / members of the Board of Directors for everything related to their legal, financial, and adminis-

trative actions for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024, and its approval. 
15)	 Approval of authorizing the Board of Directors to conclude all necessary agreements with the local and foreign banks and insti-

tutions in order to finance the company’s operations, deal with local and foreign banks and financial institutions, and conclude 
financing contracts.

16)	 Approval to authorize the Board of Directors to issue bonds (whether directly or indirectly and by any nature or means) in the Ku-
waiti dinar or in any other currency that it may deem appropriate within the limits permitted by the law and granting the Board of 
Directors without limitation or limitation the authority to work with all authorities to determine the amount. The type, duration, nom-
inal value of these bonds, interest rate, payment terms, and all other conditions are in accordance with the provisions of Law No. 
(7) of 2010 and its executive regulations (and their amendments), after obtaining the approval of all relevant competent authorities.

17)	 Election of the members of the Board of directors for the next three years (2025-2027), complying with the articles (16) and (17) of 
the Memorandum and Article of Association.

Below is the list of nomination memberships of the Board of Directors of the company:

Sr.  Nomination Name  Nomination Status
1 Mr. Anwar Jawad Ahmed Bukhamseen Non- Executive
2 .Shiekh. Mohamed Jarah Subah Al.Subah Non- Executive
3 .Mr. Raed Jawad Ahmed Bukhamseen Non- Executive
4  Mr. Rifat Ghalayini Non- Executive
5 Mr. Rafid Abdullah Sayed Rajab Al-Rifai  Independent
6  Mr. Mohamed Mubarak Jasem Al-Mubaraki Independent
7  Mr. Hazem Almutairi Non- Executive

18)	 Appointing or re-appointing auditors from within the approved list of auditors at the Capital Markets Authority, taking 
into account the period of mandatory change of auditors, and authorizing the Board of Directors to determine their fees 
and approval on it.

Ordinary General Assembly of Warba 
Insurance Company (K.K.P.)

For the Fiscal Year Ending in 31 December 2024

AGENDA
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In the name of Allah, the Most Gracious, the Most Merciful

Dear esteemed shareholders,

Peace be upon you, and God’s mercy and blessings.

It is my pleasure and honor, on behalf of myself and my fellow board members, to welcome you to the 46th 
Annual General Meeting of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance. We begin our meeting by thanking Allah, the Al-
mighty, for His guidance and success. We also extend our heartfelt thanks to our esteemed shareholders for 
their continued support and trust, which serve as the greatest motivation to exert more effort and perseverance 
in achieving the company’s goals and strategies, and elevating it to the highest levels of performance.

As we stand on the brink of the fifth decade of diligent work and the implementation of a long-term strategy 
based on sustainability, Warba Insurance & Reinsurance has firmly established its position in the Kuwaiti insur-
ance market as one of the largest companies operating in the sector. It has proven its worthiness of the trust of 
its shareholders and clients, a trust that is reinforced every year by the outstanding results of a company that 
operates with an executive and supervisory body of the highest level of efficiency, integrity, and full indepen-
dence, while continuously evolving and excelling, positioning itself at the forefront despite market, economic, 
environmental challenges, and geopolitical disruptions that have affected all countries in the region.

As you will see from the 46th Annual Report of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance, the exceptional results achieved 
by the company during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, which we consider a year of development, 
sustainability, and the solid foundation for the company’s launch into a new phase of business and investment, 
are clear. We can also say that we have successfully navigated through transformation phases and numerous 
challenges, and, by the grace of Allah, with your support and the efforts and perseverance of the company’s dis-
tinguished management team, we have achieved the positive results that we will present during our meeting, 
along with the consolidated financial statements for the company for the fiscal year ending in 2024.

The company has reaffirmed its commitment to strategies, policies, and procedures that align with the laws in 
force in the State of Kuwait. This commitment has positively reflected on the company’s performance, both in 
terms of investment and operational activities. This is in conjunction with the company’s continuous efforts to 
develop its infrastructure and strengthen its core lines with the latest available technologies to contribute to 
the targeted elevation, growth, and development.

In line with the company’s policy of transparency with our esteemed shareholders, clients, and successful part-
ners from reinsurers, I present to you the Board of Directors’ report for the fiscal year 2024. I will begin with the 
Sovereign Risk Report for the State of Kuwait in this transformative and fundamental year, 2024.

Sovereign Risk Report for 2024

By observing the prudent measures taken by the Government of the State of Kuwait throughout the year, there 
are clear indications that the government is focused on a sustainable reform path aimed at implementing the 
Kuwait Vision 2035.

On another front, the Kuwaiti government continued to stimulate the business environment and streamline 
procedures to support investment in sectors such as technology, renewable energy, logistics, and small and 
medium-sized enterprises. Throughout the year, a gradual growth was observed in the number of commercial 
licenses and entrepreneurial activities, particularly in areas related to the digital economy and innovation.
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Despite the continued economic stagnation, there has been a noticeable recovery in the banking sector and a 
moderation in the inflation rate, supported by substantial financial reserves that provide a buffer against nega-
tive shocks. Nevertheless, the heavy reliance on oil underscores the ongoing need for economic diversification 
efforts.

In 2024, Kuwaiti banks maintained strong capital adequacy indicators and robust liquidity buffers, despite the 
slowdown in credit demand witnessed in 2023. Non-performing loans remained low, with adequate provision-
ing. Kuwaiti Islamic banks recorded strong performance, supported by a favorable operating environment and 
high interest rates. By the end of the fiscal year, these banks accounted for 49% of the total assets of the do-
mestic banking sector.

Due to the exceptional strength of Kuwait’s financial position and the robustness of its external balance, the 
country’s net foreign assets surged to 538% of GDP in 2024, and are projected to reach 553% during the years 
2025–2026.

Kuwait has also advanced across several global indices, including the Global Financial Centres Index, the Index 
of Economic Freedom, and the ICT Development Index issued by the International Telecommunication Union.

On the economic policy front, official efforts have focused on strengthening financial stability, reviewing subsidy 
frameworks, improving the efficiency of public administration, and continuing structural reforms related to the 
business environment and economic legislation.

Amid expected changes in global markets and potential challenges related to oil prices and geopolitical insta-
bility, the year 2025 is anticipated to be a pivotal one for the trajectory of Kuwait’s economy.

Success in implementing economic diversification plans and achieving a balance between financial growth and 
sustainability will serve as a cornerstone for a more resilient and crisis-ready economic future.

This will require accelerating the pace of reforms, broadening the base of non-oil revenues, and fostering an 
investment- and production-friendly environment—paving the way for a qualitative shift toward a balanced, 
productive, and knowledge- and innovation-driven economy.

Kuwait’s Credit Rating

Global credit rating agency Fitch has affirmed Kuwait’s sovereign credit rating at AA- with a Stable Outlook, 
citing the country’s exceptionally strong fiscal position and robust external balance. The agency projected that 
Kuwait’s net foreign assets would rise to 538% of GDP in 2024, and further to 553% during the years 2025–2026.

The Insurance Industry in 2024 

In 2024, the global insurance industry continued to navigate a wave of fundamental transformations that re-
shaped the sector both strategically and operationally. Global economic shifts, geopolitical volatility, climate-re-
lated challenges, changes in accounting standards, and evolving regulatory environments have exerted in-
creasing pressure on insurance companies, prompting them to redesign their strategies to become more agile, 
innovative, and responsive to a new business ecosystem aligned with regulatory requirements.

Despite ongoing interest rate fluctuations and inflationary pressures, many insurance companies managed to 
maintain financial stability by adopting advanced risk analysis tools, improving capital management efficiency, 
and expanding the range of digital insurance products. Increasing attention has also been directed toward 
leveraging advanced technologies such as artificial intelligence, big data analytics, and automation to enhance 
customer experience and accelerate processes.
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Impact of Changes on the Kuwaiti Insurance Market

These changes have reflected on the Kuwaiti insurance market, where local companies experienced a year 
characterized by regulatory reviews, the activation of governance tools, and compliance with international stan-
dards, particularly after the issuance of new regulatory guidelines that strengthened companies’ commitment 
to transparency principles and risk management practices.

The scope of investment in life insurance has also expanded, along with a growing trend toward developing 
products tailored for individuals and small businesses. This reflects a shift in the market philosophy from fo-
cusing on quantity to emphasizing value and service quality.

Key Trends Driving the Sector Toward 2025

1.	 Improving Workforce Efficiency and Creating an Attractive Work Environment: Through the implemen-
tation of a unified framework for internal policies and procedures.

2.	 Flexibility and Innovation: Traditional options are no longer sufficient; companies are now required to 
design innovative solutions that align with changing customer needs, while considering technological 
and behavioral developments.

3.	 Supporting the Digital Transformation of Business and Services: The sector is witnessing a significant 
shift towards reliance on integrated digital infrastructure, from electronic underwriting to claims man-
agement via smart applications and interactive platforms.

4.	 Enhancing Corporate Governance and Risk Management: By strengthening oversight, separating pow-
ers, enhancing corporate governance, and managing risks across both listed and non-listed companies.

5.	 Ensuring a Secure, Sound, and Stable Insurance Sector: Through the activation of macroprudential 
regulatory policies regarding the operations of licensed entities.

6.	 Enhancing Protection for Policyholders and Beneficiaries, and Raising Insurance Awareness and Cul-
ture: Companies are moving toward building sustainable relationships with clients, focusing on person-
alization, transparency, and responsiveness, thereby fostering trust and loyalty.

7.	 Encouraging Innovation and Developing Organizational and Technical Infrastructure: Through innova-
tion and competitive practices based on quality.

8.	 Enhancing Compliance with Laws and Their Executive Regulations, and Adopting Effective Regulatory 
Policies: By enforcing corporate governance and strengthening transparency.

9.	 Sustainability as a Strategic Priority: Integrating Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) stan-
dards has become a fundamental requirement for attracting investments and achieving long-term 
growth, particularly in advanced financial markets.

10.	 Developing Human Resources in the Insurance Sector: Supporting the launch of training programs for 
recent graduates, sponsored by licensed entities.

11.	 Supporting the Localization of Jobs (“Kuwaitization”) in Licensed Entities: Encouraging licensed entities 
to absorb field training students and employ recent Kuwaiti graduates.

Future Outlook

Amid these fundamental changes in the sector, the most productive and legally compliant companies, based on 
risk-driven standards, will lead the way. Insurance companies are expected to continue reshaping their busi-
ness models, innovating products aligned with the digital economy, and providing flexible solutions that meet 
customer expectations and the rapid pace of global changes.
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As markets move towards greater specialization, flexibility, digital transformation, understanding customer 
needs, enhancing oversight, sound governance, and sustainability will be the key pillars for building a sustain-
able future for the insurance sector in Kuwait and globally.

Insurance Regulatory Unit in 2024

As it enters its fifth year of establishment, the Insurance Regulatory Unit continued its leadership role in 2024 as 
an effective regulatory and supervisory authority. It worked on enhancing the stability of the Kuwaiti insurance 
sector and developing its legislative and executive frameworks, based on Law No. (125) of 2019 regarding the 
regulation of insurance, which established a solid legal foundation for structuring and regulating the market in 
line with international standards.

In 2024, the unit intensified its efforts by issuing a package of regulatory decisions and instructions. The total 
number of decisions issued exceeded 204, along with 51 circulars covering topics related to governance, finan-
cial data submission mechanisms, strengthening oversight of Takaful insurance, and regulating the practice of 
insurance activities by companies and brokers.

The unit also focused during this year on digitizing regulatory processes by launching new electronic platforms 
for submitting applications and monitoring compliance, as well as implementing advanced data analysis tools 
to proactively track risks. As a result, compliance levels in the market reached record highs, enhancing the 
credibility of the sector with investors and beneficiaries.

The unit has also expanded its efforts to empower national cadres through specialized training programs in 
the fields of insurance, legal, and regulatory matters, in addition to launching initiatives to enhance insurance 
awareness among the public and increase recognition of the role of insurance in supporting the national econ-
omy.

Furthermore, the unit continued to address violations decisively, taking action against a number of unlicensed 
entities and issuing decisions to suspend certain activities that do not comply with legal frameworks, ensuring 
the protection of the insured’s rights and promoting transparency and fairness in the market.

Looking at the achievements of 2024, the Insurance Regulatory Unit today stands as a cornerstone within the 
structure of the non-banking financial sector in Kuwait. It plays a pivotal role in promoting sustainable growth, 
ensuring the integrity of insurance practices, and attracting both local and international investments, all within 
the framework of Kuwait’s future vision.

In 2024, Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company achieved a milestone built on sustain-
ability.

 The company is distinguished by an exceptional executive team across all insurance sectors, including under-
writing, claims, marketing, actuarial sciences, and customer service. The executive team works tirelessly to 
implement the board’s strategy in enhancing profits. The year 2024 marks a significant transformation in the 
journey of Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company. The company continued to implement its ambitious 
strategy aimed at strengthening its position among the leading companies in the insurance sector, both locally 
and regionally, amidst a constantly changing global operational and economic environment filled with increas-
ing challenges. The company’s approach is based on offering comprehensive insurance services, diligently 
working to meet customer needs, gaining the trust of successful partners, and committing to efficiency, integ-
rity, transparency, and the application of good governance principles, sustainability, and innovation, all while 
maintaining financial balance and enhancing the trust of customers, investors, and regulatory authorities.
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In this year, the company also reallocated its internal resources in line with the growth requirements in both the 
insurance and investment activities, focusing on developing business models and adopting innovative solutions 
for managing corporate risks. This has enhanced its competitive readiness in the targeted markets.

Enhancing Financial Strength and Solvency

In 2024, Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company focused on enhancing the efficiency of capital utilization 
and maintaining its financial position and solvency strength, without the need for any new capital increases. 
This was achieved thanks to the prudent management of resources and adherence to risk-based underwriting 
standards.

Financial performance indicators showed improvements in profitability and operational efficiency, supported by 
effective management of technical and investment risks. Additionally, the company remained fully committed 
to disciplined pricing policies and appropriate retention. The company continued to maintain strong levels of 
solvency, in line with approved regulatory standards, which strengthened market confidence and the trust of 
reinsurance partners and investors in its financial stability and ability to meet its obligations.

Digital Transformation and Operational Infrastructure Improvement

The company continued its investments in technological infrastructure, working to expand the scope of digital 
solutions to include underwriting, claims management, and providing services to customers through multiple 
smart channels. It also activated advanced electronic systems based on artificial intelligence and big data an-
alytics, with the aim of improving operational efficiency, reducing operational risks, and accelerating response 
to customer needs.

Improving Insurance Products and Enhancing the Customer Experience

In 2024, Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company continued its efforts to develop the quality of existing 
insurance products and services by conducting a comprehensive review of the terms, conditions, exclusions, 
pricing mechanisms, and coverage levels to align with local market requirements and diverse customer needs.

The company focused on enhancing the customer experience at all stages of the insurance relationship, from 
underwriting to claims settlement, by simplifying processes, activating digital channels, and ensuring rapid 
responses. This contributed to increasing customer satisfaction and strengthening institutional trust.

The scope of coverage for certain existing policies, such as medical insurance and motor vehicle insurance, 
was also expanded, providing customers with greater flexibility and more personalized service. Additionally, 
the company improved underwriting efficiency and enhanced the quality of portfolio management, achieving a 
balance between technical growth and profitability.

In this context, the company ensured that it studied market developments and analyzed competitive trends to 
develop future insurance solutions that align with the priorities of the upcoming phase, without compromising 
on the principles of cautious underwriting practices and regulatory controls.

Compliance, Regulation, and Adherence to International Standards

In terms of regulatory compliance, Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company continued its full commitment 
to applying the directives of the Insurance Regulatory Unit, including updates related to the corporate gover-
nance regulatory framework, investment controls, and risk management. The company also implemented the 
requirements of the international standards (IFRS 17) and (IFRS 9) accurately, which contributed to enhancing 
the accuracy of financial data and improving the quality of reports submitted to regulatory authorities and in-
vestors.
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Developing Human Capital and Building National Competencies

The company has placed increasing emphasis on developing human capital by intensifying specialized profes-
sional training programs for its employees, with a focus on national cadres. It also worked on attracting new 
talents in the fields of insurance, digital transformation, and risk management, which positively impacted the 
performance of operational teams and enhanced execution efficiency across all departments.

Governance, Sustainability, and Corporate Responsibility

The company has demonstrated its commitment to governance practices by implementing the “Quadruple 
Control” principle in decision reviews and enhancing the independence of the committees arising from the 
Board of Directors, including the Corporate Governance Committee, the Audit Committee, the Risk Committee, 
and the Remuneration and Nominations Committee. Additionally, the company issued its first Sustainability 
Report, which includes Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) performance indicators. It has committed 
to the principles of transparency and accountability in all its investment and operational processes, while also 
supporting corporate social responsibility programs in the areas of education, healthcare, and economic em-
powerment.

In 2024, Warba Insurance & Reinsurance successfully achieved a balance between its targeted growth, organi-
zational transformation, and effective response to regulatory and economic changes. This success was under-
pinned by a flexible organizational structure, committed executive leadership, and a qualified team.

Looking ahead to 2025, the company sees it as a year of empowerment and profound transformation. It will con-
tinue to implement its plans for regional expansion, digital innovation, and delivering sustainable added value 
to its customers and shareholders, all within a framework of governance and financial discipline, to remain a 
leader in the insurance industry in Kuwait and the region.

First: Key Financial Indicators:

The year 2024 witnessed significant and promising results across various fronts, as detailed below: Warba In-
surance & Reinsurance achieved outstanding and exceptional financial results in 2024, as follows:

·	 The increase in the total comprehensive revenues of the parent company for 2024, compared to 2023, 
reached approximately 44%, rising from KWD 6,457,734 in 2023 to KWD 9,271,695 in 2024, reflecting a 
notable growth in the company’s overall performance.

·	 The increase in the company’s total assets for 2024, compared to 2023, was approximately 13%, rising 
from KWD 92,105,861 in 2023 to KWD 104,103,405 in 2024, indicating the strengthening of the compa-
ny’s financial position and the growth of its asset size.

·	 The increase in retained earnings for 2024, compared to 2023, was approximately 52%, rising from 
KWD 4,223,330 in 2023 to KWD 6,407,116 in 2024, reflecting a notable improvement in the accumulated 
results and the overall financial position of the company.

These results reflect the exceptional performance achieved by the company in 2024, which is the result of 
its continuous commitment to its vision and strategic approach, as well as its focus on enhancing operation-
al efficiency, increasing profitability, and ensuring financial stability.

Credit Rating

The year 2024 marked a significant development in the credit rating of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance, as the 
company received a sustainable credit rating of BBB+ with an outlook upgrade from Stable to Positive by the 
global rating agency S&P Global. This represents an official upgrade from the previous rating and reflects the 
strength of the company’s financial position, the stability of its operations over the medium and long term, its 
risk-based capital adequacy, and its strong financial solvency.
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As mentioned in the Rating agency Report:

Following a strong improvement in earnings in 2023, Warba continued to report profitable underwriting and 
investment results in the first nine months of 2024

At the same time, the company’s shareholders’ equity increased by about Kuwaiti dinar. (KWD)40.6 million as 
of third-quarter 2024 from KWD36.3 million at year-end 2023 and we expect that Warba will maintain capital 
adequacy at our 99.99% confidence level in our capital model.

- We therefore revised our outlook on Warba to positive from stable and affirmed our ‘BBB+’ ratings.

The positive outlook indicates that we could raise the ratings over the next two years if Warba continues to 
expand its business with better than market-average profitability, while maintaining capital adequacy with a 
comfortable buffer above the 99.99% confidence level

The outlook revision follows an improvement in Warba’s competitive standing in recent years, as the company 
continues to profitably expand its business. In 2023, Warba reported a strong increase in net profit to about 
KWD7.1 million (about $23 million) compared with about KWD4.9 million in 2022.

 The improvement in earnings was underpinned by both Warba’s profitable underwriting and its investment re-
sults. In the first nine months of 2024, Warba recorded a 7.4% increase in insurance revenue to KWD31.9 million 
from KWD29.7 million during the same period in 2023. 

At the same time, Warba’s net profit increased to KWD4.7 million from KWD2.8 million as of the third quarter 
of 2023, thanks to a further improvement in both underwriting and investment returns. Warba reported a com-
bined ratio (loss and expense) of 76.9% for the first nine months of 2024 as compared with 79.2% for the same 
period of 2023. We anticipate revenue growth will remain at about 5%-10% per year in 2024 and 2025, as the 
company continues to expand its business across its key lines in Kuwait.

This rating was based on several positive factors, most notably: the robustness of the capital base, the quality of 
the investment portfolio, the stability of cash flows, improved profitability indicators, low debt levels, in addition 
to prudent underwriting and pricing policies, and the efficiency of risk management.

The rating report issued by the agency affirmed that the company is led by a highly competent executive 
management team and has demonstrated outstanding financial and operational performance in recent years, 
which has contributed to strengthening investor confidence and enhancing its investment appeal. The agency 
also praised the company’s commitment to applying international standards in financial reporting and capital 
management.

In the coming phase, the company aims to further elevate its credit rating to higher levels by enhancing asset 
quality, achieving additional sustainable growth, and continuing to implement best operational and regulatory 
practices. These efforts support its aspiration to join the ranks of the highest-rated companies in the region.

Obtaining this advanced rating reflects the company’s standing as a trusted insurance institution with strong 
capabilities to meet its obligations. It also represents international recognition of its success in maintaining a 
balance between growth and financial discipline.

Business Quality Within a Secure Framework

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance continues to uphold its strong commitment to maintaining the highest stan-
dards of corporate quality in accordance with internationally recognized benchmarks, such as the ISO 9001:2015 
Quality Management System, which the company has successfully implemented for over 11 years. This commit-
ment reflects the company’s ability to precisely control operational processes, achieve customer satisfaction, 
and enhance efficiency and compliance across all stages of insurance service delivery.
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The company’s continued maintenance of this international certification is a testament to the advancement of its 
management system, the effectiveness of its procedures, and the integration of its frameworks in governance, 
sustainability, regulatory compliance, risk management, and internal audit. This provides the company with a 
sustainable competitive advantage in the market. The executive management continuously works to strengthen 
this system through periodic updates and the adoption of globally recognized institutional best practices.

As part of its commitment to protecting customer data and securing information, the company has also obtained 
the ISO 27001 certification for Information Security Management. This certification affirms its strict compliance 
with the highest standards of confidentiality, data integrity, and business continuity. This achievement serves 
as further confirmation of the company’s capability to handle data efficiently and securely, while reinforcing the 
trust of both customers and partners.                                   

The company also takes a proactive approach to enhancing operational efficiency and delivering comprehen-
sive insurance services at the highest levels of quality. This is achieved through the development of internal 
policies, the standardization of operational procedures, and strict adherence to the requirements of internation-
al certifications and best practices in total quality management.

The company aims to remain a role model in the insurance sector by fostering a culture of excellence and qual-
ity, ensuring the continuous delivery of secure, accurate, and efficient services that reflect its deep commitment 
to customer satisfaction and achieving the best operational outcomes.

Human Capital

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance believes that human capital is the fundamental pillar of its success and sus-
tainable growth. As a result, the company has focused on fostering a corporate culture based on empowerment, 
development, and continuous motivation, by creating an outstanding work environment that enables employ-
ees to grow professionally and achieve a balance between performance and innovation.

The company has provided diverse opportunities for continuous training and development, benefiting from the 
latest learning methods such as e-learning programs, interactive workshops, and remote training. This has 
contributed to enhancing employees’ technical and administrative skills, as well as developing leadership and 
professional capabilities across various departments.

The executive management is focused on enhancing productivity and performance quality by investing in the 
development of human capabilities, monitoring job performance, and aligning individual competencies with the 
company’s strategic objectives. This ensures that human resources are aligned with the operational growth 
requirements and customer needs.

In line with supporting national policies aimed at localizing jobs and enhancing economic skills, the company 
has continued its effective commitment to supporting and empowering national talent by hiring and training 
recent Kuwaiti graduates. It has also dedicated high-quality professional development programs designed to at-
tract graduates, along with collaborating with universities and academic institutions in Kuwait to offer special-
ized training programs and refine skills in the fields of insurance, risk management, and regulatory compliance.

The company’s investment in human capital is not only a key factor in operational excellence but also one of 
the fundamental pillars upon which it relies to build its corporate future and enhance its preparedness for the 
challenges of the next phase.

Social Responsibility

In 2024, Warba Insurance & Reinsurance continued its outstanding performance in the field of social respon-
sibility by implementing a series of targeted initiatives and diverse activities that serve various segments of 
society. This reinforces the company’s role as a national financial institution that prioritizes the public interest.

The company’s contributions were diverse, covering educational, environmental, humanitarian, healthcare, 
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youth, and disability sectors. It has made a concerted effort to support initiatives that reflect its commitment 
to the values of citizenship and sustainability, raise community awareness, and actively participate in national 
events and volunteer initiatives.

Some of the key activities the company participated in during 2024 include:

·	 A visit by ACA School students to the headquarters of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance.

·	 Launching the “Mo Nasenkom” campaign to distribute winter clothing to workers.

·	 Sponsorship of the annual carnival of Al Bayan School.

·	 Sponsorship of the KA’MUN 2024 conference organized by the Gulf University for Science and Technol-
ogy (GUST).

·	 Sponsorship of the International Brisk Youth Championship.

·	 Launching the “Women’s Day” campaign on social media.

·	 Launching the “Your Giving is Good” campaign to distribute Iftar meals during Ramadan.

·	 Organizing a free health campaign for blood pressure and diabetes checks for clients over 60 years old, 
in collaboration with Al-Hadi Hospital.

·	 Sponsorship of the “Your Voice Matters” event for youth at the American University of Kuwait (AUK).

·	 Launching the “Environment Day” campaign to distribute saplings in collaboration with Home & Garden.

·	 Organizing the “We Care About You” campaign and distributing ice cream to students and workers.

·	 Launching the “Warba Insurance Academy for Youth.”

·	 Sponsorship of an event for people of determination in collaboration with the Kuwaiti Association for 
the Care of Disabled Persons, with the participation of Warba Academy students.

·	 Organizing an entertainment event for children in collaboration with the KACCH BACCH Association at 
the Abdullah Children’s Care Hospital.

·	 Sponsorship of an event at “Over Jar” to support students and local talents.

·	 Launching a recycling campaign in collaboration with the Fawziya Sultan Health Group (FSHN).

·	 Organizing a blood donation campaign titled “Kuwait in My Blood” in collaboration with the Amiri Diwan.

·	 Attending a children’s theater performance of “Pinocchio” with children of determination.

·	 Sponsorship of the “Flare” sports festival for youth.

·	 Sponsorship of the “Fok” event for the Indian community.

·	 Sponsorship of the leadership mentorship program targeted at youth.

·	 Launching the “Gulf 26” campaign in alignment with the Gulf sports event.

·	 Re-launching the “Mo Nasenkom” campaign to distribute winter clothing to workers at the end of the 
year.

·	 Sponsorship of the “Environmental Explorers Academy” for school students.
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The company’s future strategy.

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company continues its diligent efforts to achieve its strategic objectives by 
adopting a well-thought-out approach based on global best practices and recent studies related to the in-
surance and financial markets. The company continues to strengthen its competitive position through pos-
itive engagement with market developments and by updating its vision in alignment with future changes.

The company focuses on achieving sustainable financial balance, both in operational and investment per-
formance, while maintaining regulatory stability and developing its institutional framework in a way that 
enhances the efficiency of its operations and improves the quality of its insurance services. The company 
also strives to cement its position as a leading provider in the local and regional markets by supporting the 
insurance sector in general and meeting the aspirations of its shareholders in particular.

Profits and Recommendations.

The total annual profit for the financial year ending on December 31, 2024, amounted to KWD 5,925,101.

Based on this, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend the following distributions to the esteemed 
shareholders, as outlined below:

The statement: The value (KWD):

12% of the paid-up capital for cash distribution to shareholders KWD 2,197,351.20

Share of the Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences KWD 53,310

National Labor Support Tax KWD 151,253

Board of Directors’ members’ bonus KWD 250,000

Acknowledgement and Appreciation

Dear esteemed shareholders,

We are pleased, at the conclusion of this brief report on the performance of your company, to express our 
sincere appreciation and gratitude for your continuous support and trust, which have been and will remain 
a primary source of success for Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company. We also extend our deepest 
thanks and recognition to His Highness the Emir of Kuwait, and His Highness the Crown Prince – may 
God protect them – for their ongoing support of the development journey in our beloved country, and their 
commitment to achieving the prosperity and growth of Kuwait.

We also extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to the regulatory authorities in the beloved State of 
Kuwait, including the Capital Markets Authority, the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, the Insurance 
Regulatory Unit, the Ministry of Finance, the Central Bank of Kuwait, the Ministry of Interior, the Public 
Authority for Manpower, and other governmental institutions, for their constructive cooperation and efforts 
in facilitating procedures, supporting the work environment, and developing it. These efforts contribute to 
the growth of the insurance sector and enhance its operational and regulatory efficiency.
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Additionally, we extend our special thanks to our partners in the insurance sector and appreciate the 
ongoing collaboration between national insurance companies for the benefit of the local market. Together, 
we are committed to providing high-quality insurance services that reflect our shared dedication to serving 
customers to the highest standards.

We would also like to extend our sincere appreciation to our valued clients, whose trust we cherish. We 
assure them of our constant commitment to providing the best services and continuously improving our 
performance to meet their expectations and keep pace with the latest technologies in the insurance industry.

Furthermore, we express our heartfelt gratitude to the company’s executive management for their dedication, 
hard work, and effective contribution in achieving strategic goals. Their valuable efforts in preserving the 
company’s achievements and enhancing its competitive position are greatly appreciated.

We ask Allah Almighty to continue granting Kuwait security and prosperity, and to guide us all towards what 
is best for the country and its people.

And peace, mercy, and blessings of Allah be upon you.

Anwar Jawad Bukhamseen 

Chairman of the Board



CEO’S LETTER
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS FOR 2024
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CEO Annual Statement to the Board Of Directors and the Shareholders

It is with immense pride and gratitude that I present to you our annual statement for what has been an ex-
traordinary year of performance, innovation, and strategic investment. As we reflect on 2024, I am thrilled 
to report that our company has not only reached; but significantly exceeded expectations, delivering re-
cord-breaking financial results, and positioning ourselves for sustained growth and success in the years to 
come.

A Commitment to Excellence & Culture beyond financial success, our people remain our greatest asset. We 
have fostered a culture of excellence, innovation, and inclusivity, empowering our employees to reach their 
highest potential. This year, we implemented initiatives focused on talent development, leadership training, 
and workplace diversity, solidifying our reputation as an employer of choice.

Looking Ahead

As we embark on a new year, we are more confident than ever in our ability to navigate an evolving global 
landscape with agility and foresight. Our robust balance sheet, strategic investments, and relentless pur-
suit of innovation will position us for continued success for years to come. With unwavering dedication, we 
will seize new opportunities, drive sustainable growth, and create lasting value for our shareholders and 
stakeholders alike.

On behalf of our leadership team, I extend my sincere appreciation for your continued trust and support. We 
are committed to deliver success in the years to come.

Regards,

Anwar F. Al-Sabej
Chief Executive Officer



COMPANY OVERVIEW

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company was established by Amiri Decree 

in 1976 and proudly boasts a long-standing experience spanning over four 

and a half decades. Throughout our journey, we have remained unwavering 

in our commitment to delivering unparalleled service quality to our valued 

clients. Warba holds a prominent position in the insurance industry, being 

among a select group of insurance companies listed on the Kuwait Stock 

Exchange since 1986. This recognition further reinforces our status as a 

leading and trusted company in the insurance sector, committed to 

upholding the highest standards of professionalism and integrity. 

Warba Insurance also remains committed to serving the community and 

promoting insurance awareness—an enduring responsibility the company 

has embraced for many years. This commitment aligns with Kuwait Vision 

2035, a vital national goal that the company prioritizes in its efforts to 

contribute to enhancing the State of Kuwait’s standing. 

Our strategic goal has always been to uphold the core values upon which we 

were founded. We are committed to providing exceptional insurance 

services and solutions marked by credibility and transparency for our 

valued clients. We strongly believe in building and nurturing long-lasting, 

prosperous business relationships based on trust and mutual benefit—

whether with individuals or institutions. In addition, we continuously strive 

to develop innovative and advanced insurance solutions that cater to the 

needs of our clients, who remain one of our top priorities and the backbone 

of our company. 
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Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company was established by Amiri Decree 

in 1976 and proudly boasts a long-standing experience spanning over four 

and a half decades. Throughout our journey, we have remained unwavering 

in our commitment to delivering unparalleled service quality to our valued 

clients. Warba holds a prominent position in the insurance industry, being 

among a select group of insurance companies listed on the Kuwait Stock 

Exchange since 1986. This recognition further reinforces our status as a 

leading and trusted company in the insurance sector, committed to 

upholding the highest standards of professionalism and integrity. 

Warba Insurance also remains committed to serving the community and 

promoting insurance awareness—an enduring responsibility the company 

has embraced for many years. This commitment aligns with Kuwait Vision 

2035, a vital national goal that the company prioritizes in its efforts to 

contribute to enhancing the State of Kuwait’s standing. 

Our strategic goal has always been to uphold the core values upon which we 

were founded. We are committed to providing exceptional insurance 

services and solutions marked by credibility and transparency for our 

valued clients. We strongly believe in building and nurturing long-lasting, 

prosperous business relationships based on trust and mutual benefit—

whether with individuals or institutions. In addition, we continuously strive 

to develop innovative and advanced insurance solutions that cater to the 

needs of our clients, who remain one of our top priorities and the backbone 

of our company. 
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Today, Warba stands as one of the leading companies in providing insurance 
and reinsurance services, offering a comprehensive range of insurance 
products and services. The company continues to serve its clients with 
personalized attention to their needs, ensuring they receive the security they 
require every day. 

As we look toward the future, we assure our clients that we will always 
uphold our standards and integrity in all our decisions and offerings. 

We also believe that success is built on strong and mutually beneficial 
relationships established along the way. Therefore, our unwavering focus is 
on maintaining our position as a leading company in the insurance industry. 
We are committed to providing exceptional value, first-class service, and 
innovative solutions to every client. This commitment will remain steadfast 
throughout our journey. 

  

We strive for success! 
Service: We serve our customers, in a manner that meets or exceeds their 
valid expectations. 

Teamwork: Our team of insurance professionals supports one another to 
achieve our common goals. 

Respect: We treat each other with mutual respect, fostering honest and 
effective communication. 

Innovation: We innovate solutions to achieve the best results in everything 
we do. 

Value: Our products and processes deliver value to our customers and 
stakeholders. 

Ethics: Our code of ethics governs all interactions with our employees, 
partners, clients, and the community. 
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Today, Warba stands as one of the leading companies in providing insurance 
and reinsurance services, offering a comprehensive range of insurance 
products and services. The company continues to serve its clients with 
personalized attention to their needs, ensuring they receive the security they 
require every day. 

As we look toward the future, we assure our clients that we will always 
uphold our standards and integrity in all our decisions and offerings. 

We also believe that success is built on strong and mutually beneficial 
relationships established along the way. Therefore, our unwavering focus is 
on maintaining our position as a leading company in the insurance industry. 
We are committed to providing exceptional value, first-class service, and 
innovative solutions to every client. This commitment will remain steadfast 
throughout our journey. 

  

We strive for success! 
Service: We serve our customers, in a manner that meets or exceeds their 
valid expectations. 

Teamwork: Our team of insurance professionals supports one another to 
achieve our common goals. 

Respect: We treat each other with mutual respect, fostering honest and 
effective communication. 

Innovation: We innovate solutions to achieve the best results in everything 
we do. 

Value: Our products and processes deliver value to our customers and 
stakeholders. 

Ethics: Our code of ethics governs all interactions with our employees, 
partners, clients, and the community. 
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3. Our Commitment to Our Clients 
At Warba Insurance & Reinsurance, our clients are at the heart of everything 
we do. We understand that insurance is not just about policies and 
premiums, but also about building trust, providing peace of mind, and 
delivering exceptional value to our esteemed clients.  

Our commitment to our clients starts with our unwavering dedication to 
understanding their unique needs and priorities. We believe in the 
importance of taking the time to listen and realistically understand their 
concerns and requirements. By gaining a deep understanding of their 
circumstances, we can design insurance and reinsurance solutions that 
provide the appropriate protection and coverage, aligned with their specific 
needs and requirements. 

We understand that every client has unique requirements. That's why our 
team of experienced professionals works closely with you, offering 
guidance, direction, and personalized support throughout your insurance 
journey. Whether you are an individual seeking personal coverage or a 
company looking for comprehensive risk management solutions, we are 
here to provide the right advice drawn from our extensive insurance 
expertise to help you make informed decisions. 

Transparency and integrity are the cornerstones of our relationships with 
clients. We believe in open and honest communication to ensure you have 
all the information you need to understand your insurance options. We take 
pride in providing clear terms and conditions for our insurance policies and 
clarifying any potential exclusions or limitations, as well as being 
transparent about pricing and premiums. Our goal is to equip you with the 
knowledge you need to feel confident in the coverage you choose. 

At Warba Insurance & Reinsurance, our commitment to our clients goes 
beyond the purchase of an insurance policy. We are dedicated to being there 
for you during the claims settlement process and providing assistance every 
step of the way. We understand that filing a claim can be a stressful 
experience, which is why our claims team is committed to offering fast, 
friendly, and effective support. We will help and guide you through the 
claims process to ensure you receive fair compensation in a timely manner, 
allowing you to recover and move forward with peace of mind. 

Customer satisfaction is our ultimate goal, and we constantly strive to 
exceed your expectations. We value your feedback and are committed to 
improving our services to better meet your specific needs. Your trust and 
satisfaction are the true measure of our success, and we take great pride in 
the long-term relationships we have built with our clients over the years. 

As you embark on your insurance journey with Warba Insurance & 
Reinsurance, we want you to feel confident knowing that you have a loyal 
partner by your side. Our commitment to you is unwavering, and we are 
here to protect your interests and support your goals. 

  

4. Our Services / Our Insurance Solutions 
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4. Our Services / Our Insurance Solutions 
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4.1 Medical Insurance 
Welcome to a world where your health and peace of mind are our top priority. At 
Warba Insurance, we are pleased to offer you comprehensive and personalized 
Medical Insurance services, designed to protect you and your loved ones from the 
unexpected burden of medical expenses.  
Imagine a future where you can focus on your well-being, knowing you have a 
trusted partner by your side, ready to support you every step of the way through 
your healthcare journey. Our Medical Insurance services are designed with your 
needs in mind, providing you with access to high-quality medical care, financial 
protection, and a sense of security. 

At Warba Insurance, we specialize in providing comprehensive Medical Insurance 
coverage for both individual clients and corporate groups. Our diverse portfolio 
features a wide range of local and international medical services, carefully 
designed to offer the best available options for our clients. With a variety of 
coverage levels to choose from, you can customize your insurance plan to perfectly 
fit your needs, ensuring you receive optimal care without worrying about financial 
constraints. 
Our commitment to excellence is reflected in our extensive network of renowned 
healthcare providers. Through this network, we seamlessly connect you to a world 
of top-tier medical services and exceptional professionals dedicated to delivering 
outstanding care, ensuring you receive the highest standards of available medical 
services. 

 

 

  

 

Our international services have been enhanced through strategic 
partnerships with Bupa Global and Allianz Global, providing a wide range 
of options and more advanced services outside of Kuwait. 

Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 
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4.1 Medical Insurance 
Welcome to a world where your health and peace of mind are our top priority. At 
Warba Insurance, we are pleased to offer you comprehensive and personalized 
Medical Insurance services, designed to protect you and your loved ones from the 
unexpected burden of medical expenses.  
Imagine a future where you can focus on your well-being, knowing you have a 
trusted partner by your side, ready to support you every step of the way through 
your healthcare journey. Our Medical Insurance services are designed with your 
needs in mind, providing you with access to high-quality medical care, financial 
protection, and a sense of security. 

At Warba Insurance, we specialize in providing comprehensive Medical Insurance 
coverage for both individual clients and corporate groups. Our diverse portfolio 
features a wide range of local and international medical services, carefully 
designed to offer the best available options for our clients. With a variety of 
coverage levels to choose from, you can customize your insurance plan to perfectly 
fit your needs, ensuring you receive optimal care without worrying about financial 
constraints. 
Our commitment to excellence is reflected in our extensive network of renowned 
healthcare providers. Through this network, we seamlessly connect you to a world 
of top-tier medical services and exceptional professionals dedicated to delivering 
outstanding care, ensuring you receive the highest standards of available medical 
services. 

 

 

  

Key Features and Benefits 
1. Wide Network of Healthcare Providers: We have established 
partnerships with an extensive network of reputable hospitals, clinics, and 
medical specialists. This ensures that you receive high-quality medical care 
and services anytime and anywhere you need them. 

2. Comprehensive Coverage: Our Medical Insurance plans offer 
comprehensive coverage for a range of medical expenses, including hospital 
stays, surgeries, consultations, diagnostic tests, medications, and emergency 
treatments. 

3. Flexible Options: Our plans are highly flexible, allowing you to adjust 
coverage to suit your specific needs and financial capacity. You can choose 
from different coverage levels, deductible amounts, and additional benefits 
to ensure you get the plan that best fits your requirements. 

4. Pre-Approval and Direct Billing: To simplify the claims process, we offer 
pre-approval services and direct billing arrangements with our network of 
healthcare providers. This means you can receive treatment without the 
hassle of upfront payments and claim reimbursements.   

Our Insurance Services: 

1. Group Medical Insurance Policy for Corporates (Local, Regional, and 
Worldwide Options) 

2. Individual Medical Insurance Policy for Individuals and Families (Local, 
Regional, and Worldwide Options)    

 

Our international services have been enhanced through strategic 
partnerships with Bupa Global and Allianz Global, providing a wide range 
of options and more advanced services outside of Kuwait. 

Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 
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4.2 Life Insurance Services 
Welcome to a world where you can enjoy financial protection. At Warba 

Insurance, we take pride in offering comprehensive and well-structured life 

insurance services. In today’s competitive work environment, organizations 

strive to attract top talent by offering an ideal blend of benefits and rewards. 

Life insurance is one of the essential benefits companies provide to their 

employees. 

The policy is designed to provide financial protection for the employee and 

their loved ones in the event of an unexpected death or injury. Additionally, 

the employer can ensure financial protection for themselves against legal 

liability for compensation that must be provided (in case of work-related 

injuries to employees) under Kuwaiti labor law. The group life insurance 

policy offers both the employee and the employer necessary protection at a 

low cost and in an efficient manner. 

Warba provides a Comprehensive Group Life Cover including Life 

Insurance Benefits, Personal Accident Benefits, Workmen’s’ Compensation 

& Employer Liability cover. The Group Life Policies of Warba is also backed 

by A-Rated Global Reinsurers, which enhances the credibility and reliability 

of Warba’s Group Life Products. 

We take great pride in our reputation for financial strength and stability. 

With Warba Insurance, you can trust that your Life Insurance claims will be 

handled promptly and efficiently, providing you with the support you need 

during challenging times. 

  

Key Features and Benefits: 
1. Financial Protection: Life insurance is a powerful tool that provides a 
secure guarantee for your loved ones in the event of an unexpected death. 
Our life insurance plans offer a lump-sum benefit that can be used to replace 
lost income, cover daily living expenses, settle debts, and maintain the 
standard of living your family is accustomed to. 

2. Flexible Coverage: We offer life insurance plans with a high degree of 
flexibility, allowing you to choose coverage that suits your specific needs 
within your financial capacity. You have the flexibility to select the coverage 
amount, policy duration, and additional benefits to create a plan that aligns 
with your goals and priorities. 

3. Peace of Mind: Life insurance provides peace of mind, knowing that your 
loved ones will be financially cared for when they need it most. This gives 
you the confidence that you’ve secured their future, no matter what may 
happen. At Warba Insurance, we offer the most comprehensive range of life 
insurance options to address a variety of challenges individuals face today 
and in the future. 

 
Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 
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Key Features and Benefits: 
1. Financial Protection: Life insurance is a powerful tool that provides a 
secure guarantee for your loved ones in the event of an unexpected death. 
Our life insurance plans offer a lump-sum benefit that can be used to replace 
lost income, cover daily living expenses, settle debts, and maintain the 
standard of living your family is accustomed to. 

2. Flexible Coverage: We offer life insurance plans with a high degree of 
flexibility, allowing you to choose coverage that suits your specific needs 
within your financial capacity. You have the flexibility to select the coverage 
amount, policy duration, and additional benefits to create a plan that aligns 
with your goals and priorities. 

3. Peace of Mind: Life insurance provides peace of mind, knowing that your 
loved ones will be financially cared for when they need it most. This gives 
you the confidence that you’ve secured their future, no matter what may 
happen. At Warba Insurance, we offer the most comprehensive range of life 
insurance options to address a variety of challenges individuals face today 
and in the future. 

 
Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 
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4.3 Fire & General Accident (FGA) Insurance Services 
Welcome to a world where peace of mind meets comprehensive protection 
for your valuable assets. At Warba Insurance, we take pride in offering 
exceptional FGA insurance services designed to protect your valuable 
property and provide you with the confidence to face unforeseen challenges 
and accidents. 

Our FGA insurance plans are designed to meet the needs of individuals, 
families, and businesses. Whether you’re looking to protect your assets or 
your business operations, we offer specialized solutions to mitigate risks and 
safeguard your financial interests. 

At Warba Insurance, we are pleased to provide comprehensive FGA 
insurance services, designed to give you peace of mind knowing that your 
property and financial interests are well protected. 
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4.3 Fire & General Accident (FGA) Insurance Services 
Welcome to a world where peace of mind meets comprehensive protection 
for your valuable assets. At Warba Insurance, we take pride in offering 
exceptional FGA insurance services designed to protect your valuable 
property and provide you with the confidence to face unforeseen challenges 
and accidents. 

Our FGA insurance plans are designed to meet the needs of individuals, 
families, and businesses. Whether you’re looking to protect your assets or 
your business operations, we offer specialized solutions to mitigate risks and 
safeguard your financial interests. 

At Warba Insurance, we are pleased to provide comprehensive FGA 
insurance services, designed to give you peace of mind knowing that your 
property and financial interests are well protected. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 
Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 

  

Key Features and Benefits: 
1.Comprehensive Protection: Our insurance coverage provides 
comprehensive protection against a wide range of risks, including fire 
incidents that could destroy your property, theft, accidents, and other 
unforeseen events, ensuring that you can restore your normal life quickly. 

2. Business Continuity: Fire and general accident insurance services play a 
vital role in maintaining continuous operations and ensuring business 
continuity. From protecting your physical assets to covering losses and 
business interruptions, we help keep your business running smoothly. 

3. Flexible Plans: We understand that every individual and business has 
unique needs. That’s why our fire and general accident insurance plans are 
highly flexible. You have the freedom to choose from a range of coverage 
options that perfectly align with your specific risks and budget. 

Our Insurance Services: 
1. Property All Risks Policy 2. Burglary Insurance 
3. Householder's Comprehensive 

Insurance 
4. Terrorism & Sabotage 

Insurance 
5. Contractors All Risk Policy 6. Erection All Risks Insurance 
7. Machinery All Risks Insurance 8. Boiler Explosion Insurance 
9. Machinery Breakdown 

Insurance 
10. Deterioration of Stock 

Insurance 
11. Electronic Equipment 

Insurance 
12. Workmen’s Compensation 

Insurance 
13. 13.Employers Liability 

Insurance 
14. Personal Accident Insurance 

15. Third Party Liability Insurance 16. Professional Indemnity 
Insurance 

17. Fidelity Guarantee Insurance 18. Money Insurance 
19. Plate Glass Insurance 20. Banker’s Blanket Bond 

Insurance 
21. Cybersecurity Insurance 22. Medical Malpractice 
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5.4. Motor Insurance Services 
Welcome to a world where your journeys are safeguarded. At Warba, we are 
thrilled to offer our exceptional Motor Insurance services, providing 
comprehensive protection for your beloved vehicles, and empowering you 
to hit the road with confidence. We understand the importance of 
safeguarding your valuable vehicle against unforeseen risks. That is why our 
motor insurance services are precisely designed to offer you a seamless 
blend of protection, flexibility, and peace of mind. Whether you own a car, 
or any other type of motor vehicle, we have the right solutions to mitigate 
the financial impact of accidents, theft, third-party liabilities, and more. 

Whether purchasing 

 
Join the group of car owners who have trusted Warba Insurance & 
Reinsurance for their car insurance services. 

 
  

Key Features and Benefits:  
1.Motor Comprehensive Coverage: Our Motor Insurance plans go beyond the 
basics to provide you with comprehensive coverage, ensuring that your vehicle is 
shielded against accidental and malicious damage caused by collision , theft and 
fire. 

2.Third-Party Liability Protection: Accidents happen, and you may find yourself 
facing legal liabilities for damage caused to third parties. With our Motor 
Insurance services, you receive robust third-party liability coverage, safeguarding 
you against potential financial burdens arising from bodily injury, death, and 
property damage. 

3.Personalized Solutions: We understand that every driver and vehicle is unique. 
That is why our Motor Insurance plans are highly customizable to suit your 
specific needs. We tailor a plan that perfectly aligns with your preferences and 
budget. 

4.Roadside Assistance: Our Motor Insurance services often come with the added 
advantage of roadside assistance, providing you with 24/7 support for 
breakdowns, flat tires, battery jump-starts, fuel assistance, and towing services. 

5.Replacement vehicle: During the vehicle repair, you can utilize our replacement 
vehicle. As per the agreement, clients can have access to the vehicle like their own 
until the repair time. The benefits of using our services are that the customers can 
experience the same comfort as they had felt in their own vehicle. 

 

4.5 Marine Insurance Services 
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5.4. Motor Insurance Services 
Welcome to a world where your journeys are safeguarded. At Warba, we are 
thrilled to offer our exceptional Motor Insurance services, providing 
comprehensive protection for your beloved vehicles, and empowering you 
to hit the road with confidence. We understand the importance of 
safeguarding your valuable vehicle against unforeseen risks. That is why our 
motor insurance services are precisely designed to offer you a seamless 
blend of protection, flexibility, and peace of mind. Whether you own a car, 
or any other type of motor vehicle, we have the right solutions to mitigate 
the financial impact of accidents, theft, third-party liabilities, and more. 

Whether purchasing 

 
Join the group of car owners who have trusted Warba Insurance & 
Reinsurance for their car insurance services. 

 
  

Key Features and Benefits:  
1.Motor Comprehensive Coverage: Our Motor Insurance plans go beyond the 
basics to provide you with comprehensive coverage, ensuring that your vehicle is 
shielded against accidental and malicious damage caused by collision , theft and 
fire. 

2.Third-Party Liability Protection: Accidents happen, and you may find yourself 
facing legal liabilities for damage caused to third parties. With our Motor 
Insurance services, you receive robust third-party liability coverage, safeguarding 
you against potential financial burdens arising from bodily injury, death, and 
property damage. 

3.Personalized Solutions: We understand that every driver and vehicle is unique. 
That is why our Motor Insurance plans are highly customizable to suit your 
specific needs. We tailor a plan that perfectly aligns with your preferences and 
budget. 

4.Roadside Assistance: Our Motor Insurance services often come with the added 
advantage of roadside assistance, providing you with 24/7 support for 
breakdowns, flat tires, battery jump-starts, fuel assistance, and towing services. 

5.Replacement vehicle: During the vehicle repair, you can utilize our replacement 
vehicle. As per the agreement, clients can have access to the vehicle like their own 
until the repair time. The benefits of using our services are that the customers can 
experience the same comfort as they had felt in their own vehicle. 

 

4.5 Marine Insurance Services 
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Welcome to a world where distant distances are made closer, and your 
goods are protected from the risks of transport and shipping, while your 
ships and boats are safeguarded from various risks. At Warba Insurance & 
Reinsurance, we are proud to offer a wide range of marine insurance 
services, providing diverse coverage options and peace of mind during sea, 
land, or air transport and shipping. 

Whether you are importers, exporters, freight forwarders, or ship owners, 
our marine insurance services are designed to meet your insurance needs 
and reduce the risks associated with transport and shipping. From 
protecting your cargo against loss or damage to providing coverage for 
third-party liabilities, we are here to secure your goods and ensure smooth 
global trade, as well as protect your vessels and safeguard your liabilities 
and assets. 

Marine insurance for shipping purposes is essential to protect the shipper 
from any risks. The marine insurance policy includes several variables 
depending on factors such as the mode of transport, the route and 
destination, as well as the cargo and its nature. 

  

Key Benefits and Advantages: 
1. Cargo Transport Insurance Policy: Our plans offer comprehensive 
coverage for your shipments, safeguarding them from various risks that may 
occur during transit. Whether by sea, air, or land, we provide financial 
compensation for loss, damage, theft, or any other incidents. 

2. Hull Insurance Policy for Ships and Boats: This policy covers 
comprehensive risks that may affect the hull of the vessel, whether it is a 
commercial ship or a personal yacht. 

3. Liability Insurance Policies: This includes multiple policies, such as the 
third-party civil liability policy and the protection and indemnity policy, 
which provide insurance coverage for the liabilities of the commercial ship 
owner or carrier towards the owners of the transported goods. 

 
4. Aviation Insurance Policies: There are also several aircraft insurance 
policies that provide coverage for the aircraft's hull and spare parts, in 
addition to insurance for liabilities. 

Join the ranks of customers who have entrusted their shipments and vessels 
to Warba Insurance & Reinsurance's marine insurance services. 

Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 

  

Key Features and Benefits:  
1.Motor Comprehensive Coverage: Our Motor Insurance plans go beyond the 
basics to provide you with comprehensive coverage, ensuring that your vehicle is 
shielded against accidental and malicious damage caused by collision , theft and 
fire. 

2.Third-Party Liability Protection: Accidents happen, and you may find yourself 
facing legal liabilities for damage caused to third parties. With our Motor 
Insurance services, you receive robust third-party liability coverage, safeguarding 
you against potential financial burdens arising from bodily injury, death, and 
property damage. 

3.Personalized Solutions: We understand that every driver and vehicle is unique. 
That is why our Motor Insurance plans are highly customizable to suit your 
specific needs. We tailor a plan that perfectly aligns with your preferences and 
budget. 

4.Roadside Assistance: Our Motor Insurance services often come with the added 
advantage of roadside assistance, providing you with 24/7 support for 
breakdowns, flat tires, battery jump-starts, fuel assistance, and towing services. 

5.Replacement vehicle: During the vehicle repair, you can utilize our replacement 
vehicle. As per the agreement, clients can have access to the vehicle like their own 
until the repair time. The benefits of using our services are that the customers can 
experience the same comfort as they had felt in their own vehicle. 

 

4.5 Marine Insurance Services 
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Welcome to a world where distant distances are made closer, and your 
goods are protected from the risks of transport and shipping, while your 
ships and boats are safeguarded from various risks. At Warba Insurance & 
Reinsurance, we are proud to offer a wide range of marine insurance 
services, providing diverse coverage options and peace of mind during sea, 
land, or air transport and shipping. 

Whether you are importers, exporters, freight forwarders, or ship owners, 
our marine insurance services are designed to meet your insurance needs 
and reduce the risks associated with transport and shipping. From 
protecting your cargo against loss or damage to providing coverage for 
third-party liabilities, we are here to secure your goods and ensure smooth 
global trade, as well as protect your vessels and safeguard your liabilities 
and assets. 

Marine insurance for shipping purposes is essential to protect the shipper 
from any risks. The marine insurance policy includes several variables 
depending on factors such as the mode of transport, the route and 
destination, as well as the cargo and its nature. 

  

Key Benefits and Advantages: 
1. Cargo Transport Insurance Policy: Our plans offer comprehensive 
coverage for your shipments, safeguarding them from various risks that may 
occur during transit. Whether by sea, air, or land, we provide financial 
compensation for loss, damage, theft, or any other incidents. 

2. Hull Insurance Policy for Ships and Boats: This policy covers 
comprehensive risks that may affect the hull of the vessel, whether it is a 
commercial ship or a personal yacht. 

3. Liability Insurance Policies: This includes multiple policies, such as the 
third-party civil liability policy and the protection and indemnity policy, 
which provide insurance coverage for the liabilities of the commercial ship 
owner or carrier towards the owners of the transported goods. 

 
4. Aviation Insurance Policies: There are also several aircraft insurance 
policies that provide coverage for the aircraft's hull and spare parts, in 
addition to insurance for liabilities. 

Join the ranks of customers who have entrusted their shipments and vessels 
to Warba Insurance & Reinsurance's marine insurance services. 

Our dedicated team is ready to assist you and provide the solution to meet 
your specific needs. 

  

Key Features and Benefits:  
1.Motor Comprehensive Coverage: Our Motor Insurance plans go beyond the 
basics to provide you with comprehensive coverage, ensuring that your vehicle is 
shielded against accidental and malicious damage caused by collision , theft and 
fire. 

2.Third-Party Liability Protection: Accidents happen, and you may find yourself 
facing legal liabilities for damage caused to third parties. With our Motor 
Insurance services, you receive robust third-party liability coverage, safeguarding 
you against potential financial burdens arising from bodily injury, death, and 
property damage. 

3.Personalized Solutions: We understand that every driver and vehicle is unique. 
That is why our Motor Insurance plans are highly customizable to suit your 
specific needs. We tailor a plan that perfectly aligns with your preferences and 
budget. 

4.Roadside Assistance: Our Motor Insurance services often come with the added 
advantage of roadside assistance, providing you with 24/7 support for 
breakdowns, flat tires, battery jump-starts, fuel assistance, and towing services. 

5.Replacement vehicle: During the vehicle repair, you can utilize our replacement 
vehicle. As per the agreement, clients can have access to the vehicle like their own 
until the repair time. The benefits of using our services are that the customers can 
experience the same comfort as they had felt in their own vehicle. 

 

4.5 Marine Insurance Services 
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4.6 Travel Insurance Services 
Welcome to Warba Insurance’s Travel Insurance Services, where we 
understand that every trip is unique and deserves protection. Whether 
you're traveling for business or leisure (domestic or international), our 
comprehensive travel insurance solutions are designed to provide you with 
the peace of mind you need to explore the world with confidence. 

We understand that unexpected events can disrupt even the best travel 
plans. That’s why our travel insurance services are carefully designed to 
protect you from the unforeseen, ensuring you can focus on creating lasting 
memories while we handle any uncertainties that may arise along the way. 

Join the community of satisfied travelers who have trusted their journeys to 
Warba Insurance’s travel services. Whether you’re on a family trip, a 
business journey, or a solo adventure, our comprehensive coverage, global 
assistance, and commitment to your well-being make us the ideal partner for 
your travel insurance needs. 

Travel with confidence and explore the world knowing that Warba 
Insurance is by your side. 
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4.6 Travel Insurance Services 
Welcome to Warba Insurance’s Travel Insurance Services, where we 
understand that every trip is unique and deserves protection. Whether 
you're traveling for business or leisure (domestic or international), our 
comprehensive travel insurance solutions are designed to provide you with 
the peace of mind you need to explore the world with confidence. 

We understand that unexpected events can disrupt even the best travel 
plans. That’s why our travel insurance services are carefully designed to 
protect you from the unforeseen, ensuring you can focus on creating lasting 
memories while we handle any uncertainties that may arise along the way. 

Join the community of satisfied travelers who have trusted their journeys to 
Warba Insurance’s travel services. Whether you’re on a family trip, a 
business journey, or a solo adventure, our comprehensive coverage, global 
assistance, and commitment to your well-being make us the ideal partner for 
your travel insurance needs. 

Travel with confidence and explore the world knowing that Warba 
Insurance is by your side. 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Our Team 

At Warba, our team is the driving force behind our exceptional service and 

expertise. We take great pride in assembling a team of dedicated 

professionals who are committed to serving our customers with integrity, 

knowledge, and a customer-centric approach. Our team members are 

passionate about the insurance industry and strive to exceed expectations in 

every interaction. 

Meet Our Insurance Professional: Our insurance Professionals play a 

crucial role in understanding and meeting your insurance needs. They are 

experienced professionals who possess in-depth knowledge of insurance 

products and services. When you work with our team, you can expect 

personalized attention, tailored advice, and a commitment to finding the 

best insurance solutions for you. 

Professional Credentials and Expertise: Our team members at Warba are 

highly trained and possess professional credentials and expertise in the 

insurance industry. We believe in continuous professional development, 

ensuring that our team stays up to date with the latest trends, regulations, 

and best practices. With our team's expertise, you can have confidence in the 

guidance and recommendations they provide. 

We take great care in selecting individuals who not only have the necessary 

qualifications but also possess a genuine passion for helping others. Our 

team members are dedicated to building long-term relationships with our 

customers, understanding their unique circumstances, and providing 

personalized insurance solutions that meet their evolving needs. 
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Innovative Technology: We embrace technology to enhance our services 
and streamline processes for our customers. 

Strong Network of Partners: We work with reputable healthcare providers, 
service providers, and professionals to ensure that you have access to quality 
services and support when you need them. 

Certificate: Warba has confirmed its entitlement to the management quality 
certificate in accordance with the international standard (ISO 9001:2015). 
Obtaining the Information Security Quality Certificate in accordance with 
the standard (ISO 27001: 2013), which confirms and enhances the company’s 
credibility in maintaining the confidentiality and security of customer 
databases and all its operations. 

6. Why choose Warba as your insurance partner? 
Experience and Expertise: Warba has a wealth of experience in the insurance 
industry. With years of operation and a strong presence in Kuwait, we have 
built a solid foundation of knowledge and expertise. Our team of insurance 
professionals are well equipped to provide you with comprehensive 
coverage and tailored solutions for your insurance needs. 

Diverse Range of Insurance Products: Warba offers a diverse range of 
insurance products to satisfy customer requirements. Our extensive 
portfolio ensures that you can find comprehensive, convenient, and efficient 
coverage under one roof to manage your needs. 

Customized Solutions: At Warba, we believe in providing customized 
solutions tailored to your individual needs. Our team takes the time to 
understand your circumstances and offers personalized advice and coverage 
options that align with your requirements. We provide you with the right 
level of coverage and protection without unnecessary features or costs. 

Excellent Customer Service: At Warba, We strive to create a positive and 
seamless experience for our customers at every touchpoint. Our dedicated 
team is readily available to address your queries, provide guidance, and 
assist you throughout the insurance process. 

Financial Stability: Warba is committed to financial stability and reliability. 
We have established a solid financial standing, ensuring that we can meet 
our obligations to our policyholders. 

 
Innovative Technology: We embrace technology to enhance our services 
and streamline processes for our customers. 

Strong Network of Partners: We work with reputable healthcare providers, 
service providers, and professionals to ensure that you have access to quality 
services and support when you need them. 

Certificate: Warba has confirmed its entitlement to the management quality 
certificate in accordance with the international standard (ISO 9001:2015). 
Obtaining the Information Security Quality Certificate in accordance with 
the standard (ISO 27001: 2013), which confirms and enhances the company’s 
credibility in maintaining the confidentiality and security of customer 
databases and all its operations. 
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Innovative Technology: We embrace technology to enhance our services 
and streamline processes for our customers. 

Strong Network of Partners: We work with reputable healthcare providers, 
service providers, and professionals to ensure that you have access to quality 
services and support when you need them. 

Certificate: Warba has confirmed its entitlement to the management quality 
certificate in accordance with the international standard (ISO 9001:2015). 
Obtaining the Information Security Quality Certificate in accordance with 
the standard (ISO 27001: 2013), which confirms and enhances the company’s 
credibility in maintaining the confidentiality and security of customer 
databases and all its operations. 

6. Why choose Warba as your insurance partner? 
Experience and Expertise: Warba has a wealth of experience in the insurance 
industry. With years of operation and a strong presence in Kuwait, we have 
built a solid foundation of knowledge and expertise. Our team of insurance 
professionals are well equipped to provide you with comprehensive 
coverage and tailored solutions for your insurance needs. 

Diverse Range of Insurance Products: Warba offers a diverse range of 
insurance products to satisfy customer requirements. Our extensive 
portfolio ensures that you can find comprehensive, convenient, and efficient 
coverage under one roof to manage your needs. 

Customized Solutions: At Warba, we believe in providing customized 
solutions tailored to your individual needs. Our team takes the time to 
understand your circumstances and offers personalized advice and coverage 
options that align with your requirements. We provide you with the right 
level of coverage and protection without unnecessary features or costs. 

Excellent Customer Service: At Warba, We strive to create a positive and 
seamless experience for our customers at every touchpoint. Our dedicated 
team is readily available to address your queries, provide guidance, and 
assist you throughout the insurance process. 

Financial Stability: Warba is committed to financial stability and reliability. 
We have established a solid financial standing, ensuring that we can meet 
our obligations to our policyholders. 

 
Innovative Technology: We embrace technology to enhance our services 
and streamline processes for our customers. 

Strong Network of Partners: We work with reputable healthcare providers, 
service providers, and professionals to ensure that you have access to quality 
services and support when you need them. 

Certificate: Warba has confirmed its entitlement to the management quality 
certificate in accordance with the international standard (ISO 9001:2015). 
Obtaining the Information Security Quality Certificate in accordance with 
the standard (ISO 27001: 2013), which confirms and enhances the company’s 
credibility in maintaining the confidentiality and security of customer 
databases and all its operations. 
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Governance has evolved into a comprehensive strategic priority in the State of Kuwait. It now extends 
beyond official institutions and government bodies to include all sectors as an essential requirement to 
ensure efficiency, achieve institutional reform, and enhance transparency, integrity, and accountability. This 
aligns with the national trends toward developing the business environment and diversifying the economy 
in line with the vision of ‘New Kuwait 2035. Governance today is considered an effective tool for addressing 
administrative and economic challenges by reducing conflicts of interest, clarifying responsibilities, 
integrating roles, and activating internal control, especially in light of the rapid global digital transformation 
and the growing importance of institutional sustainability.

In this context, the State of Kuwait has intensified its reform efforts in recent years through the launch of 
several initiatives and regulatory policies, most notably the issuance and updating of the «National Guide 
for Corporate Governance» launched by the General Secretariat of the Supreme Council for Planning and 
Development, and activating the role of Insurance Regulatory Unit (IRU), Capital Markets Authority (CMA), 
State Audit Bureau, and Kuwait Anti-Corruption Authority (Nazaha), to be the reference regulatory bodies in 
applying the highest standards of corporate and digital governance, according to a scientific and practical 
approach that aligns with the best global practices. The year 2024 witnessed a remarkable development 
in the application of digital governance in the State of Kuwait, where the level of commitment from both 
government and private entities to applying governance principles increased, the role of internal control 
grew, and the performance of supervisory bodies improved in measuring gaps and correcting courses.

These indicators reflect the clear progress in the application of sound governance principles and their 
integration into the policies, procedures, and operational systems of institutions, including Warba Insurance 
& Reinsurance Company, which gives special attention to both digital and corporate governance as an 
integral part of its strategy for development and sustainable success. Throughout 2024, the company 
worked on enhancing governance practices through a comprehensive approach that links technology with 
institutional compliance, by developing internal policies, implementing performance monitoring systems, 
ensuring adherence to transparency and disclosure standards, especially the XBRL system, in addition to 
strengthening collaboration with regulatory bodies and aligning with legislative and regulatory updates.

This report to highlight the key achievements the company has made in the field of governance, shedding 
light on its role in establishing a culture of accountability, ensuring institutional fairness, and aligning the 
company’s objectives with stakeholder requirements, in line with its national responsibility and its role in 
supporting Kuwait’s developmental vision.

Fundamental Principles of Governance and Sustainability

The governance in the State of Kuwait is based on a set of fundamental principles aimed at enhancing 
institutional efficiency, reinforcing values of integrity, and achieving transparency and accountability in the 
performance of public entities. This ensures the public interest is served and strengthens the effectiveness 
of government policies. At the forefront of these principles is the rule of law, which ensures that all individuals 
and entities are subject to the law without discrimination. This is followed by the principle of protecting 
public funds, reflecting a commitment to preserving national resources and managing them efficiently. 
Additionally, the principle of disclosure and transparency is fundamental to ensuring the smooth flow 
of information and facilitating stakeholder access, while the principle of accountability and responsibility 
activates institutional oversight tools.
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Public sector governance also seeks to establish the principle of integrity in administrative practices, 
ensuring adherence to ethical values and reducing corruption. This is alongside the principle of effectiveness 
and efficiency, which enables entities to use resources optimally and achieve desired goals with the 
highest quality. The principle of protecting the rights of stakeholders also stands out, ensuring fairness, 
representation, and equitable participation, particularly when making decisions that impact various groups. 
Additionally, the principle of sustainability and social responsibility has become a core element in the 
governance framework, as public entities strive to balance economic, environmental, and social goals, 
ensuring intergenerational fairness, reducing environmental impact, and enhancing community well-being. 
The integration of governance and sustainability is no longer a choice but a strategic direction to ensure 
more flexible and transparent public management that achieves sustainable development and improves the 
quality of services provided in the long term.

The importance of governance is reflected in the following points:

1)	 Enhancing the country’s ability to attract local and foreign investments by reducing financing costs 
and increasing confidence in the investment environment.

2)	 Reducing the outflow of local capital abroad by enhancing market stability and investor confidence.

3)	 Providing guarantees for investors to protect their investments and create an investment 
environment based on rights and transparency.

4)	 Strengthening the rights of stakeholders and ensuring fairness among them through clear and 
effective governance mechanisms.

5)	 Improving market efficiency by enhancing transparency for investors and improving the pricing and 
distribution of shares fairly.

6)	 Supporting the stability and growth of local institutions, improving the business environment to 
enhance competitiveness and increase investment opportunities.

7)	 Reducing reliance on government institutions by empowering the private sector and expanding its 
role in the national economy.

8)	 Reducing administrative and financial corruption through institutional oversight and reinforcing 
principles of integrity and accountability.

9)	 Establishing a work environment based on fairness and respect, motivating employees and 
improving institutional performance overall.

10)	Ensuring full transparency in providing information and decision-making by developing disclosure 
and corporate information systems.

11)	Enhancing the efficiency of institutions by applying advanced regulatory and financial systems that 
reduce waste and support financial discipline.

The goals of governance are summarized as follows:

1)	 Enhancing transparency and fairness to ensure the protection of the rights of shareholders and all 
stakeholders and building trust in the institutional environment.

2)	 Establishing effective systems for accountability and responsibility by creating clear organizational 
structures and accurately defining authorities and responsibilities.

3)	 Developing the company’s assets and ensuring the preservation of resources and maximizing long-
term returns.
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4)	 Attracting local and foreign investments through a stable regulatory environment based on sound 
governance and international standards.

5)	 Enhancing compliance with laws, regulations, and adherence to controls and guidelines issued by 
relevant local and international regulatory authorities.

6)	 Achieving operational efficiency by improving performance quality, reducing waste, and maximizing 
institutional productivity.

7)	 Supporting business continuity through effective risk management, preparedness for crises, and 
adapting to economic changes.

8)	 Promoting an institutional culture based on values such as integrity, responsibility, and discipline, 
and spreading these values at all organizational levels.

9)	 The connection between governance and sustainability is achieved through integrating 
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) dimensions into the corporate strategy.

10)	Smart digital transformation in management and oversight using digital tools and techniques that 
enhance decision-making effectiveness and speed up response times.

11)	Expanding stakeholder participation in organizational processes to enhance positive interaction 
and integration among all parties.

12)	Achieving a balance between the institution’s goals and the public interest, especially in institutions 
serving vital sectors or providing community services.

13)	Enhancing institutional competitiveness by adopting global best practices in governance, oversight, 
and disclosure.

Digital Governance

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company seeks to establish the concept of digital governance as one of 
the strategic pillars of its operations, recognizing the importance of keeping pace with the digital age’s 
developments and the requirements of regulatory bodies, foremost of which is the Insurance Regulatory 
Unit in the State of Kuwait, which represents the highest regulatory authority responsible for organizing and 
monitoring the insurance sector and ensuring companies’ compliance with best practices and regulatory 
standards. The integration of technology into the governance system is an effective means to enhance 
transparency, accelerate decision-making, and ensure compliance with laws, regulations, and instructions 
issued by the unit. The company has started practical steps to implement this digital transformation by 
updating its technological infrastructure, adopting smart systems to manage insurance operations, and 
developing various electronic channels to provide insurance services, making it easier for clients to access 
products and services without the need for in-person attendance, thereby enhancing service efficiency and 
reducing reliance on paper transactions.

The company has also made sure to develop clear digital compliance policies that align with the regulatory 
requirements of the Insurance Regulatory Unit, the Capital Markets Authority, and other relevant bodies. In 
this context, and in line with the regulatory direction to enhance disclosure and transparency, the Capital 
Markets Authority has mandated that all listed companies implement an electronic disclosure system using 
the XBRL language, known as the “iFSAH Disclosure System,” in accordance with its recent circular regarding 
the regulation of electronic disclosures.
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The Authority has emphasized the importance of registered entities updating their data and information 
promptly on the system, as this directly impacts the accuracy of the information published in the market, 
and the importance of this update in adapting to the system’s requirements and changes. The Authority also 
stressed the need to continue providing all required disclosures and data, including financial reports, capital 
adequacy reports, and forms related to the stock exchange and general assemblies, through the approved 
electronic system, as it is the primary source for publishing official information.

The periodic reports published by the company reflect its commitment to the principles of disclosure, 
transparency, and institutional oversight, as they provide shareholders and beneficiaries with accurate and 
reliable information regarding financial and operational performance and the level of internal compliance, 
thereby enhancing the principles of accountability and trust. The digital governance approach is not limited to 
the technical aspect alone, but extends to include updating internal regulations, decision-making mechanisms, 
and the structure of oversight committees, ensuring effective integration between technology and corporate 
governance. Through these efforts, Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company reaffirms its full commitment to 
implementing global best practices in digital governance, contributing to enhancing its position in the local and 
regional market, and supporting the sustainability and growth of its operations in an environment characterized 
by constant change and accelerating challenges.

In this context, the Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is keen on instilling governance 
principles and enhancing the path of stability and growth, driving the company towards achieving sustainable 
success in the long term, as one of the leading Kuwaiti companies in the insurance sector. This commitment 
has been clearly reflected in the Board’s focus on enhancing oversight, improving management efficiency, and 
building a well-integrated governance system based on global best practices and sound governance principles, 
in alignment with the requirements of regulatory bodies, primarily the Insurance Regulatory Unit and the 
Capital Markets Authority of Kuwait.

The company clearly adopts an advanced framework for compliance with professional, behavioral, and governance 
standards, based on a set of strict policies and procedures that regulate decision-making mechanisms, define 
roles and powers, and enhance the application of the principles of integrity, accountability, and transparency, 
reflecting on the protection of the rights of shareholders and all stakeholders. Governance at Warba Insurance 
& Reinsurance is closely linked to the goals of institutional sustainability, and through it, the company seeks to 
align financial and economic performance with social and environmental commitments.

The Board of Directors relies on an effective internal control system, which is periodically updated through 
comprehensive reviews, ensuring full compliance with laws and regulations, and contributing to the improvement 
of operational performance quality. The committees emanating from the Board, led by the Governance and 
Risk Committee, perform their roles in oversight, follow-up, and formulating recommendations, ensuring the 
effective implementation of strategies and operational plans within a transparent institutional framework.

company continues its strong commitment to continuous improvement in the implementation of governance, 
through the development of internal policies and the adoption of the best regulatory standards, in order to 
create a work environment characterized by efficiency and integrity, and to keep pace with legislative and 
regulatory changes. This approach reflects the Board of Directors’ belief in the effective role of governance in 
supporting the company’s competitiveness and enhancing its market position, in alignment with the national 
vision for sustainable development, “New Kuwait 2035”.



6

8

10

12

20

22

26

54

Our Vision, Mission and Values

2020 AGM Agenda

Board of Directors

Chairman’s Letter

CEO’s Letter

Company Overview

Corporate Governance

Consolidated Financial Statement

51

 
 

 

Corporate Governance Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Statement of Major Shareholders of the Company as of December 31, 2024 

Ownership 
Percentage Number of Shares Shareholder Name 

30.70% 76,741,111 Al-Emad Real Estate Company 

27.32% 68,309,578 The Arab Investment Company 
Clients 1 

4.32% 10,800,343 Watani Investment Company 
Clients 1 

4.05% 10,118,350 NaDon Investments Company 
Clients Account 

2.63% 6,570,244 Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company 
Treasury Shares 

1.73% 4,321,986 Abdulrasoul Hussain Ali  

1.63% 4,062,637 Al Baraka Kuwait General Trading and 
ContracDng Company 

1.62% 4,050,000 Salah Abdulmohsen Al-Asfour 

26.01% 65,025,751 Others 

100.000% 250,000,000 Total 
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Statement of Major Shareholders of the Company as of December 31, 2024

Shareholder Name Number of Shares  Ownership
Percentage

Al-Emad Real Estate Company 76,741,111 30.70%

The Arab Investment Company

Clients 1

68,309,578 27.32%

Watani Investment Company

Clients 1

10,800,343 4.32%

Nation Investments Company

Clients Account

10,118,350 4.05%

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company

Treasury Shares

6,570,244 2.63%

Abdulrasoul Hussain Ali 4,321,986 1.73%

Al Baraka Kuwait General Trading and Contracting Company 4,062,637 1.63%

Salah Abdulmohsen Al-Asfour 4,050,000 1.62%

Others 65,025,751 26.01%

Total 250,000,000 100.000%

Statement of Major Shareholders of the Company as of December 31, 2024
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Shareholder Percentage
Al Emad Real Estate Company 30.696%
Al Areba Investment Company – Clients 1 27.324%
Al Watani Investment Company – Clients 1 4.320%
)National Investments Company (Client Account 4.047%
Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company – Treasury Shares 2.628%
Abdulrasool Hussain Ali 1.729%
Al Baraka Kuwait General Trading and Contracting Company 1.625%
Salah Abdulmohsen Al-Asfoor 1.620%
Others 26.010%

Credit Rating

# Rating Agency Rating S&P Rating Outlook

1 BBB+ BBB+ Positive

First Rule: Building a balanced structure for the Board of Directors.

1.	 Overview of the Structure and Composition of the Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company.

The Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has invested all of its expertise to enhance 
the company’s performance in line with the expectations of the esteemed shareholders and stakeholders. 
The board has also made efforts to keep up with best governance practices and activate digital governance 
to ensure the effectiveness of strategies and prepare its members to fulfill their responsibilities concerning 
the company’s strategic issues. Additionally, the board encourages and facilitates their positive contributions 
to achieving and developing the company’s goals while safeguarding the rights of the shareholders amid 
geopolitical, economic, and market changes.

In accordance with governance rules, the board has relied on several specialized committees under its purview 
to distribute tasks and responsibilities. Each committee submits its reports and recommendations periodically 
to the Board of Directors, within the framework of enhancing the principles of accountability and transparency. 
The following chart illustrates the governance structure adopted at Warba Insurance Company:

1.1 Statement on the Composition of the Board of Directors

Based on the resolution of the Ordinary General Assembly of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company, the 
election of a new Board of Directors for a three-year term was approved. The Board was formed with members 
possessing extensive and diverse experience, skills, and knowledge, which contributes to achieving a positive 
balance and effectiveness within the Board. This diversity enables the Board of Directors to carry out its duties 
and responsibilities efficiently, while considering the evolving needs of the company’s business.

The Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance is structured in a way that aligns with the size and 
nature of the company’s activities, in addition to the tasks and responsibilities assigned to its members.
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When forming the board, professional and practical experience diversity was considered, along with the 
necessary technical skills. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for verifying that the 
Board of Directors and executive management meet all the requirements of the company’s competency and 
integrity model guide. The committee also reviews the required skill sets for the membership of the Board of 
Directors and executive management on an annual basis.

The Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance consists of 7 members, including:

5   Non-executive members                  2 Independent members  

All members of the Board of Directors have an extensive record of experience in serving on the boards of 
various companies, in addition to possessing the necessary skills to hold these positions. They also have broad 
experience in the insurance industry, which enhances their ability to lead the company towards achieving its 
strategic objectives. Board members are elected by the General Assembly every three years, with the current 
members being re-elected on 17/04/2022.

Formation:

Name position classification

Mr. Anwar Jawad Bu khamseen Chairman of the Board of Directors Non-Executive

Sheikh/ Mohammed Al-Jarrah Al-Sa-
bah

Deputy Chairman of the Board of Direc-
tors

Non-Executive

Mr. Raed Bukhamseen Member of the Board of Directors Non-Executive

Mr. Hazem Ali Al-Mutairi Member of the Board of Directors Non-Executive

Mr. Rifaat Ghaliyeni Member of the Board of Directors Non-Executive

Mr. Rafed Al-Rifaie Member of the Board of Directors independent member

Mr. Mohammed Al-Mubarakie Member of the Board of Directors independent member

Mr. Anwar Jawad Bu khamseen – Chairman of the Board – Non-Executive

Mr. Anwar Bukhamseen possesses extensive experience in the fields of banking, insurance, and real estate 
investment. Throughout his professional career, he has held numerous leadership positions and currently 
occupies several prominent roles, including: Board Member at Kuwait International Bank (KIB), Advisor to 
the Board of Directors at Al-Dawli Takaful Insurance Company (KIB Takaful), Board Member at Bukhamseen 
Holding Group, Board Member at Kuwait Catalyst Company (KCC), Board Member at Kuwait Industries Union 
(KIU), Chairman of the Kuwait Insurance Federation (KIF), and Member of the Kuwait Economic Society 
(KES). He holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics and Public Administration from the College of Commerce, 
Economics, and Political Science at Kuwait University (1995). He also obtained a specialized certificate in a 
selective program on Foreign Policy Management from Harvard University in 2005, in addition to a specialized 
certificate from the Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) in Corporate Governance and 
the Operations of Financial Institutions.

Mr. Raed Bukhamseen – Member of the Board of Directors– Non-Executive

Sheikh Mohammed Jarrah Al-Sabah possesses distinguished experience in the fields of banking, insurance, and 
real estate investment. He currently holds the following prominent positions: Chairman of the Board at Kuwait 
International Bank, Chairman of the Board at Kuwait Industries Union, Board Member at Kuwait Industries 
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Union, and Member of the Board of Trustees at the Arab Academy for Science, Technology & Maritime Transport. 
Throughout his illustrious career, Sheikh Mohammed has held several senior executive positions at leading 
organizations in Kuwait, including: Kuwait Real Estate Investment Group, Commercial Bank of Kuwait, Kuwait 
Reinsurance Company, Al-Salihiya Real Estate Company, and Arab Insurance Group (ARIG).

Mr. Raed Bukhamseen – Member of the Board of Directors– Non-Executive

Mr. Raed Bukhamseen possesses distinguished experience in various fields, including investment, banking, 
and business administration. He currently holds the following prominent positions: Deputy Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer at Kuwait International Bank, Chairman of the Board at Bukhamseen Holding Company, 
Board Member at Arab Investment Company, Board Member at The Shared Electronic Banking Services 
Company (KNET), Non-Executive Chairman at Egyptian Gulf Bank, Board Member at Souk Al-Salmiah Real 
Estate Company, and Board Member at Credit Bank of Kuwait Holding Company. Mr. Bukhamseen earned his 
Bachelor of Business Administration degree in 1999 from Boston University in the United States. He also holds 
specialized certifications in Portfolio Management, Communication, and Investment Analysis.

Mr. Hazem Ali Al-Mutairi – Member of the Board of Directors– Non-Executive

Mr. Hazem Ali Al-Mutairi has over 25 years of experience in various sectors, including banking, investment, 
and treasury. He is currently a Board Member at Boubyan Bank and serves as the Chief Executive Officer at 
Credit Bank of Kuwait Holding Company. He graduated from the United States and holds a bachelor’s degree 
in Banking.

Mr. Rifaat Ghaliyeni – Member of the Board of Directors – Non-Executive

Mr. Rifaat Ghalyeni possesses over 20 years of experience in the financial sector. He holds a bachelor’s degree in 
economics and commerce, an MBA, and certifications as a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and an International 
Certified Valuation Specialist (ICVS). He currently serves as the Chief Financial Officer at Bukhamseen Holding 
Group, Deputy Chairman of the Board at Arab Beverages Group (ABG), Deputy Chairman of the Board at Al-
Salhiya Real Estate Company, and a Member of the Board of Directors at Kuwait International Educational 
Company (KIEC).

Mr. Rafed Al-Rifaie – Member of the Board of Directors – Non-Executive (Independent Member)

Mr. Rafed Al-Rifaie possesses over 25 years of distinguished experience in various fields, including trade, 
investment, and the supply of catalysts and chemicals to the oil and gas industries and catalyst manufacturing. 
Throughout his career, he has held several positions, including Assistant General Manager and Managing 
Director at Abdullah Said Rajab Al-Rifaie & Sons Trading and Contracting Company, Board Member and Chairman 
at Kuwait Catalyst Company. He currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer at Abdullah Said Rajab Al-Rifaie 
& Sons Trading and Contracting Company and as a Board Member at Kuwait Catalyst Company. He graduated 
from Kuwait University with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Mr. Mohammed Al-Mubarakie– Member of the Board of Directors – Non-Executive (Independent Member)

Mr. Mohammed Al-Mubarakie possesses over 25 years of extensive experience in the financial and real estate 
sectors. He has held the position of Assistant General Manager for Asset Management at both Gulf International 
Investments Company and Al-Mal Investment Company. Additionally, he has worked in stock trading at Al-Salah 
Investment Company. Currently, he serves as the General Manager at Real Estate Management Company. He 
graduated from Kuwait University with a bachelor’s degree in business administration, specializing in Finance. 
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He has also completed specialized courses in risk management, financial analysis for investment decisions, 
valuation of intrinsic and market value of stocks, portfolio and investment fund management, fundamentals and 
tools of investment in financial markets, and accounting.

1.2 Statement on Board of Directors Meetings

The Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company held meetings with the presence of the 
majority of its members during the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024. The Board held 8 meetings, with 
meetings being convened upon a written invitation from the Chairman. Invitations and the agenda are sent to 
the board members at least three business days prior to the scheduled date, allowing members to thoroughly 
review the topics discussed and make appropriate decisions.

The attendance process for Board of Directors meetings is organized in accordance with the company’s bylaws, 
with a mechanism in place for addressing cases of members’ irregular attendance at these meetings. The table 
below provides an overview of the Board of Directors meetings during the mentioned period:

Overview of the Company’s Board of Directors Meetings (2024):

Meeting No. Meeting Date Key Decisions: Attendance

(1/2024) 10/03/2024 Approval of the financial statements for the year end-
ed 31/12/2023

8

(2/2024) 13/05/2024 Approval of the First Quarter 2024 financial state-
ments

8

(3/2024) 30/05/2024 Approval of the agenda of the Extraordinary General 
Assembly

7

(4/2024) 07/08/2024 Approval of the First Half 2024 financial statements 7

(5/2024) 27/08/2024 Discussion of investment opportunities 8

(6/2024) 07/10/2024 Discussion of a proposed sale of company investment 
property

7

(7/2024) 10/11/2024 Approval of the Third Quarter 2024 financial state-
ments

8

(8/2024) 12/12/2024 Review of the company’s rating report 8

Member Name
Number of 
Meetings

Meeting 
(1) 10-03-

2024

Meeting 
(2) 13-05-

2024

Meeting 
(3) 30-05-

2024

Meeting 
(4) 07-08-

2024

Meeting 
(5) 27-08-

2024

Meeting 
(6) 07-10-

2024

Meeting 
(7) 10-11-

2024

Meeting 
(8) 12-12-

2024

Mr. Anwar Jawad Bu khamseen

Chairman of the Board of Directors
8 (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√)

Sheikh/ Mohammed Al-Jarrah Al-Sabah

Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors
8 (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√)

Mr. Raed Bukhamseen

Member of the Board of Directors
7 (×) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√)

Mr. Hazem Ali Al-Mutairi

Member of the Board of Directors
7 (√) (√) (√) (√) (×) (√) (√) (√)

Mr. Rifaat Ghaliyeni

Member of the Board of Directors
8 (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√)

Mr. Rafed Al-Rifaie Member of the Board 

of Directors- Independent
8 (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√)

Mr. Mohammed Al-Mubarakie Member of 

the Board of Directors- Independent
7 (√) (√) (×) (√) (√) (√) (√) (√)
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1.3 Overview of How to Apply the Requirements for Registration, Coordination, and Retention of Board of 
Directors Meeting Minutes
Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to adhering to the highest standards of governance and 
transparency in recording, coordinating, and retaining Board of Directors meeting minutes. The meeting minutes are 
recorded in a special register that indicates the serial number of the minutes for the fiscal year, along with the meeting 
location, date, and the start and end times. Discussions, deliberations, and voting procedures conducted during the 
meetings are also documented, organized, and stored in a manner that facilitates easy reference when needed.

The Board of Directors of the company has appointed a Board Secretary by a decision of the Board. A clear 
charter has been established outlining the duties and responsibilities of the Board Secretary, in compliance 
with the requirements of the Capital Markets Authority and the Insurance Regulatory Unit. This charter ensures 
adherence to best practices in managing and documenting Board meetings, while taking into account the 
requirements of transparency and accountability.

The Board Secretary is also required to record the meeting minutes, which must include the following:

	æ A serial number assigned to each meeting.

	æ The date of the meeting, the start time, and the end time.

	æ A record of all attendees, including the names of those who were unable to attend and those who attended 
part of the meeting.

	æ Ensuring the completion of signatures from all Board members present.

	æ Safekeeping the original minutes as well as the decisions made, maintaining a dedicated record for these minutes.

	æ Ensuring easy access for Board members to all minutes and attachments at any time for review.

The requirements of the Capital Markets Authority (CMA) and the Insurance Regulatory Unit.

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to implementing all the requirements imposed by 
the Capital Markets Authority and the Insurance Regulatory Unit regarding the recording and retention of the 
minutes of the Board of Directors meetings. These requirements include:

2.	 Accurate Documentation: Recording all decisions, votes, and discussions in a detailed and precise manner.

3.	 Secure Storage: Storing the minutes in a secure location that ensures confidentiality of the information and 
easy access when needed.

4.	 Periodic Review: Ensuring that the minutes comply with applicable regulations and laws.

5.	 Disclosure and Transparency: Providing the required information to the Capital Markets Authority and the 
Insurance Regulatory Unit upon request, ensuring transparency in dealings with stakeholders.

1.4 Independent Members of the Board of Directors

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company believes in the importance of the independence of the Board of Directors 
as a fundamental factor in achieving effective and sound corporate governance. The independence standards adopted 
by the company align with local laws and international best practices, including Decision No. (72) of 2015 regarding 
the issuance of the executive regulations of Law No. (7) of 2010 concerning the establishment of the Capital Markets 
Authority and the regulation of securities activities and its amendments – Book Fifteen: Corporate Governance.

Based on this, the Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company includes non-executive 
members and independent members. The Corporate Governance Committee reviews the independence of the 
Board members periodically and ensures their continued compliance with the independence requirements 

outlined in the governance rules, which have been approved by the Board of Directors in line with regulatory 
requirements.
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Second Rule: Proper Definition of Roles and Responsibilities

2. Overview of proper identification of Roles and Responsibilities for the Board of Directors 
and Executive Management.

The company, Warba Insurance & Reinsurance, ensures a clear and precise separation of responsibilities 
between the Board of Directors and executive management, in order to achieve full independence for the Board 
and enable it to effectively and efficiently perform its responsibilities.

2.1 Overview of How the Company Defines the Roles, Responsibilities, and Duties of Both the Board of 
Directors and Executive Management

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has clearly defined the roles and responsibilities of both the Board 
of Directors and executive management in its approved policies and regulations, reflecting a balance of powers 
and authorities between them. These policies ensure a clear delegation of powers to the executive management 
while maintaining the Board’s final responsibility for the company’s management.

The Board of Directors remains fully responsible for the company, even when forming committees or delegating 
specific tasks to individuals or other entities. The Board ensures the performance of these committees and 
individuals is closely monitored to guarantee the achievement of the company’s strategic objectives.

2.1.1 Duties of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors represents the highest authority responsible for setting the company’s goals, strategies, 
and main policies. This includes approving the overall strategy, action plans, and optimal capital structure, in 
addition to determining the profit distribution policy in alignment with the interests of the shareholders and the 
company. The Board is also responsible for monitoring performance and the organizational structure, approving 
the budget estimates and financial statements, and overseeing capital expenditures and asset management.

The Board ensures the company’s compliance with internal regulations and policies, while emphasizing the 
accuracy of financial data and the integrity of disclosure and transparency processes. It also works to enhance 
effective communication with shareholders to ensure they are continuously informed about the company’s 
developments.

Regarding corporate governance, the board establishes an internal governance system and monitors its 
implementation. The performance of the board members and executive management is assessed according 
to clear performance indicators. An annual report is prepared that includes the extent of compliance with 
governance rules, indicating any shortcomings and their causes, and taking the necessary actions for immediate 
review, as well as implementing precautionary measures to prevent recurrence of deficiencies.

The board forms specialized committees such as the Governance Committee, the Risk and Compliance 
Committee, the Audit Committee, and the Nominations and Remuneration Committee.

The tasks and responsibilities of each committee, along with their oversight mechanisms, are defined, with 
periodic performance evaluations in accordance with the laws applicable in the State of Kuwait.
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The board is also concerned with establishing internal policies and regulations that ensure transparency and 
the separation of powers, while delegating some tasks to the executive management and following up through 
periodic reports. The board monitors the performance of the executive management and makes the necessary 
decisions to implement the company’s strategy, in addition to setting standards for rewards and incentives.

The board places great importance on protecting the rights of minority shareholders and stakeholders. It establishes 
policies that safeguard their rights and defines mechanisms for dealing with related parties to avoid conflicts of 
interest. It also ensures the effectiveness of internal control systems and risk management, while putting plans in 
place to enhance sustainability and integrate it into the company’s strategies and operational plans.

2.1.3 Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board of Directors

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for ensuring the effective functioning of the board, including providing 
complete and accurate information to board members in a timely manner. His responsibilities include:

	æ Ensuring that all key issues are discussed effectively and on time.
	æ Representing the company before external parties in accordance with the Articles of Association.
	æ Encouraging the active participation of board members in decision-making that serves the best 

interests of the company.
	æ Promoting effective communication with shareholders and conveying their views to the Board of 

Directors.
	æ Building positive relationships between the Board of Directors and the Executive Management, 

supporting constructive interaction between executive and non-executive members.
	æ Fostering a culture of constructive criticism regarding issues where there are differences of opinion.

2.1.4 Roles and Responsibilities of the Executive Management

The executive management is responsible for implementing the company’s policies, regulations, and internal 
activities as approved by the Board of Directors. It ensures the application of the comprehensive strategy and 
approved plans to achieve the set objectives. Additionally, the executive management prepares regular reports 
(both financial and non-financial) outlining the progress in the company’s activities in line with the strategic 
objectives and submits these reports to the Board of Directors for review and making appropriate decisions.

Among the key tasks of the executive management is the establishment of a comprehensive accounting system 
that includes ledgers, records, and accounts, which accurately reflect the company’s financial position, in 
adherence to international accounting standards to ensure the integrity of the financial data and the protection 
of the company’s assets. The executive management is also responsible for the daily operations and the efficient 
management of business activities, with a focus on the optimal use of available resources to maximize profits 
and control expenses in alignment with the company’s vision and strategy.

In addition, the executive management plays a pivotal role in promoting organizational values and fostering a 
positive work culture within the company, which contributes to achieving functional cohesion and enhancing 
overall performance.

2.2 Achievements of the Board of Directors in 2024

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has achieved several accomplishments during the fiscal year 
ending on 31/12/2024 in the field of corporate governance principles. Among the most prominent of these 
achievements are:
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	æ Implementing the corporate governance requirements of the Capital Markets Authority and the 
Insurance Regulatory Unit.

	æ Approving the financial statements for the fiscal year.

	æ Discussing investment opportunities for the company.

	æ Discussing the strategy for re-launching the main system project (New Core Strategy)

	æ Approving the minutes of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors for the year 2024.

2.3 Overview of Implementing the Requirements for the Formation of Independent Specialized Committees 
by the Board of Directors

The committees arising from the Board of Directors play a pivotal role as a link between the board and 
executive management. They oversee all operational activities within the company and provide necessary 
recommendations to the board for decision-making. The board has made sure to establish a comprehensive 
regulatory framework defining the tasks, powers, formation mechanisms, and meeting schedules of these 
committees, fully complying with the requirements of the Capital Markets Authority in this regard. These 
committees are distinguished by their comprehensive coverage of all administrative and technical aspects of 
the company, enabling board members to stay well-informed on the company’s activities and make strategic 
decisions that serve the company’s goals. Additionally, the board has the right to form temporary committees to 
address specific issues, which will dissolve once their purpose is fulfilled. The duration of all committees’ work 
is aligned with that of the board itself. The board secretary is responsible for maintaining accurate records for 
each committee, including full meeting minutes with timestamps, the 

number of each meeting, as well as issued recommendations and presentation materials. All these documents 
are made available to board members for review as needed.

Committee Name Formation Approval Date Committee Term
Corporate Governance Committee (√) 26/03/2023 3 Years

Risk & Compliance Committee (√) 26/03/2023 3 Years

Audit Committee (√) 26/03/2023 3 Years

Nominations & Remuneration Committee (√) 26/03/2023 3 Years
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Committee Work System:

The Board of Directors of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has approved the bylaws and operating 
regulations for all committees, which include defining the tasks of each committee, the duration of its work, 
and the powers granted to it. A specific charter has also been established for each committee, outlining how 
the Board of Directors monitors the committees’ performance. The committees have been delegated specific 
powers by the Board to ensure the achievement of their objectives efficiently and effectively.

This structure reflects Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company’s commitment to the highest standards 
of governance and transparency, which enhances the trust of shareholders and clients in the company’s 
management.

Risk and Compliance Committee:

Formation:

Member Name Position Number of Meetings
Mr. Wafaa Ghalayini Committee Chairman

5Mr. Rafeh Al-Rifai Committee Member

Mr. Mohammed Al-Mubarak Committee Member

Tasks of the Risk & Compliance Committee:

	æ Supervising the implementation of a unified risk management vision at the organizational level to ensure a 
coordinated and effective response to any risks the company may face.

	æ Preparing and reviewing policies and procedures related to risk management before their approval by the 
Board of Directors, ensuring their alignment with the company’s strategic plans.

	æ Ensuring that the executive management is committed to effectively implementing these policies and 
strategies.

	æ Contributing to the development and formulation of strategic plans that align with the company’s vision and 
long-term goals, reflecting the expectations of stakeholders.

	æ Assisting the Board of Directors in identifying and evaluating the level of acceptable risks for the company 
and implementing systems and mechanisms to measure and monitor different types of risks it may face.

	æ Ensuring an appropriate balance between risks and expected returns, considering future plans and the 
company’s strategic goals.

	æ Studying and assessing the potential impacts of risks on the company, determining appropriate actions to 
address or mitigate their effects, including response and recovery scenarios.

	æ Monitoring financial and non-financial risks, including operational, legal, compliance, reputational, 
technological risks, and others.

	æ Promoting employee awareness about the importance of risk management, providing educational and 
training programs to equip them with a comprehensive understanding of risk concepts.

	æ Ensuring the integration of internal control systems with the risk management process to help detect and 
address deviations effectively.

	æ Reviewing periodic reports submitted by the Risk Management Department and comparing them with the 
company’s performance and actual results against targets.
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	æ Developing emergency response plans in coordination with management and proposing appropriate 
recommendations to the Board of Directors.

	æ Monitoring the implementation of internal risk management procedures and preventive measures within 
the company.

	æ Reviewing proposed investment opportunities from a risk perspective and evaluating their potential impact 
on the company’s financial position.

	æ Ensuring the company’s compliance with all environmental, social, and governance (ESG) requirements, 
and suggesting measures to mitigate associated risks.

	æ Reviewing capital adequacy and solvency reports on a regular basis.

	æ Reviewing credit rating reports and recommending necessary actions to improve the company’s credit 
rating.

Achievements:

	æ Conducted a comprehensive presentation on credit risk, with recommendations to mitigate exposure

	æ Reviewed and validated the operational and financial risk mitigation plan for the issuance of car registration 
books. 

	æ Presented the strategic risk report, identifying key long-term risks and mitigation strategies.

	æ Followed up on the execution of risk management mandates assigned by the executive management. 

	æ Discussed and approved capital adequacy and financial solvency report, ensuring regulatory alignment. 

	æ Delivered an impact analysis and financial stress test assessing the implications of incorporating reinsurance 
into the company’s operational structure. 

	æ Presented a comprehensive investment risk assessment covering the period from 2013 to the end of 2024. 

	æ Reviewed and approved the updated investment policy, aligning it with market conditions and internal risk 
appetite. 

	æ Evaluated the company’s performance in governance, risk, and compliance (GRC), and issued improvement 
recommendations. 

	æ Developed the strategic roadmap for GRC and sustainability covering 2025-2027.

	æ Oversaw the formulation and approval of the authority matrix, enhancing accountability across all 
departments.

	æ Monitored the complaints resolution mechanism related to the GRC, in luine with the IRU standards. 

	æ Supervised the technical readiness for achieving ISO 31000 certification for risk management and ISO 9001 
for quality management systems. 

	æ Reviewed the company’s IFRS 17 readiness report, ensuring compliance with the international accounting 
standards. 

	æ Conducted an in-depth liquidity risk assessment for the period 2018-2024.

	æ Analyzed the gap report on operational risks for the fiscal year ending 31/12/2024 and endorsed mitigation 
measures.

	æ Evaluated the maturity profile of debt instruments and its alignment with the company’s investment strategy 
for Q4 2024. 

	æ Approved the whistleblowing and risk reporting policy, reinforcing transparency and ethical conduct. 
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	æ Endorsed the ESG-aligned risk management plan, integrating environmental, social and governance 
principle into the enterprise risk framework. 

	æ Approved the Compliance Management Plan and oversaw the implementation of ISO 9001 Quality 
Management System certification. 

	æ Recommended the approval of the Risk Management Plan targeting the attainment of an ‘A’ Rating.

	æ Recommend the approval of the Market Risk Report and corresponding mitigation strategies for the financial 
year ending 2025. 

	æ Presented a benchmarking analysis of global rating agencies and recommended adopting S&P as the 
primary rating agency. 

	æ Approved the updated risk-related policies and procedures. 

	æ Approved the Risk Report for the financial year 2024, along with the Risk Management Department’s 
proposed mitigation plan. 

Audit Committee

Composition:

Member Name Position Number of Meetings
Mr. Raed Jawad Bukhamseen Committee Chairman

6Mr. Rifaat Ghaliyeni Committee Member

Mr. Rafed Al-Rifaie Committee Member

Tasks of the Audit Committee:

	æ Review of interim and annual financial statements, external auditors’ reports, and their preliminary approval 
before submission to the Board of Directors.

	æ Ensuring the integrity and transparency of financial statements and reports.

	æ Recommending the appointment or reappointment of external auditors.

	æ Ensuring the independence of external auditors and reviewing any significant changes that may affect their 
decisions.

	æ Reviewing the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted by the company, as well as the financial 
disclosures and related data.

	æ Monitoring the implementation of internal audit policies and procedures within the company.

	æ Evaluating the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit unit, the performance of the unit’s head, and 
ensuring the independence of the unit and the quality of its reports.

	æ Reviewing internal audit reports, discussing the results and observations with the relevant departments, 
and recommending necessary actions.

	æ Verifying the company’s compliance with relevant laws, regulations, instructions, as well as internal policies 
and procedures.

Achievements:
	æ Discussing and reviewing the financial results for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2024 with the external 

auditor, and recommending the reappointment of the external auditor, Ernst & Young, for the fiscal year 
ending on 31/12/2025.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the financial results for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2024 with the executive 
management.
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	æ Reviewing the financial indicators for the year 2024.

	æ Discussing and following up on the implementation of the internal audit plan for 2024.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the internal audit results for the period ending on 31/03/2024 with the external 
auditor.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the internal audit results for the period ending on 31/03/2024 with the executive 
management.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the internal audit results for the first half of 2024.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the financial results for the period ending on 30/06/2024 with the external auditor.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the financial results for the period ending on 30/06/2024 with the executive 
management.

	æ Discussing the financial results for the period ending on 30/09/2024 with the external auditor.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the financial results for the third quarter ending on 30/09/2024 with senior 
management.

	æ Reviewing and discussing internal audit activities.

	æ Discussing and approving the internal audit plan.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Composition:

Member Name Position Number of Meetings
Mr. Raed Jawad Bukhamseen Committee Chairman  

2Mr. Rifaat Ghalaeini Committee Member

Mr. Mohammed Al-Mubarakie Committee Member

Tasks of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

	æ Ensuring the nomination of the most experienced, capable, and skilled candidates for vacant positions, 
based on standards of competence and integrity.

	æ Providing recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the appointment or reappointment of 
executive leadership positions.

	æ Overseeing the study and update of the salary and remuneration structure for leadership positions and 
employees within the company, and approving necessary measures.

	æ Reviewing policies and procedures related to compensation and benefits and suggesting necessary 
amendments.

	æ Preparing and developing policies related to allowances and rewards for Board members and subcommittees, 
and submitting them to the Board of Directors for recommendation to be approved by the company’s 
General Assembly.

	æ Reviewing nominations for Board membership or its various committees to ensure compliance with 
governance requirements, standards of competence and integrity, as well as regulatory and General 
Assembly requirements, and providing recommendations to the Board regarding candidates for Board 
membership for the years 2025-2027, in accordance with the approved policies and standards that comply 
with the applicable laws in the State of Kuwait.
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	æ Evaluating the Board members and executive management in accordance with the requirements of the 
Capital Markets Authority and the Insurance Regulatory Unit.

Achievements:

	æ Reviewing the historical salary data for 2024.

	æ Preparing a detailed report and model of the bonuses granted to the Board members and executive 
management to be presented to the General Assembly for approval.

	æ Discussing and approving the distribution of annual incentives to company employees in accordance with 
the criteria set in the 2024 Bonus and Performance Policy.

	æ Discussing and reviewing amendments to the company’s organizational structure.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the results of the employee benefits survey regarding objections to the preparation 
of the benefits and compensation structure for the company’s employees.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the company’s job replacement program.

	æ Discussing the recruitment of administrative positions for Kuwaiti national students.

Corporate Governance Committee

Composition:

Member Name Position Number of Meetings
Mr. Raed Jawad Bukhamseen Committee Chairman  

1Sheikh/ Mohammed Al-Jarrah Al-Sa-
bah

Committee Member

Mr. Hazem Ali Al-Mutairi Committee Member

Tasks of the Corporate Governance Committee:

	æ Conducting periodic reviews to ensure the company’s compliance with the principles of governance and 
related regulations, and assessing adherence to the rules and standards governing them.

	æ Providing reports and recommendations regarding the results of governance implementation and 
addressing any observations or instances of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

	æ Monitoring decisions and instructions issued by regulatory authorities and providing appropriate 
recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the mechanisms for their implementation and 
updating policies when necessary. 

	æ Developing and implementing indicators and evaluation criteria to measure the company’s adherence to 
governance principles.

	æ Overseeing the implementation of governance frameworks and policies adopted by the Board of Directors, 
and reviewing them periodically to ensure consistency with the requirements of regulatory authorities.

	æ Studying and approving necessary amendments to the company’s internal governance manual.

	æ Monitoring gap analysis reports for the implementation of corporate governance.

	æ Discussing and recommending the adoption of the sustainability report.
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Achievements:

	æ Discussing and reviewing the Corporate Governance Report for the fiscal year ending on 31 
December 2024.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the report on the monitoring of corporate governance rules implementation.

	æ Discussing and reviewing the governance indicators within the company.

Summary of How Requirements Are Implemented to Ensure Board Members Receive Accurate and Timely 

Information:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has successfully built an integrated and effective system that 
ensures the availability and accessibility of accurate information in a timely manner for the Board of Directors. 
This is achieved through a well-structured organizational framework based on two main pillars. The first pillar 
consists of specialized committees emanating from the Board of Directors, where the company has formed four 
committees at the Board level, in addition to other committees at the executive management level, covering 
all aspects of operational and financial activities. These committees periodically review developments, analyze 
data, and submit comprehensive reports containing practical recommendations and objective evaluations, 
ensuring complete independence in opinion and analysis.

The second pillar is represented by the company’s advanced internal control structure, which includes 
the governance, sustainability, risk, compliance, and internal audit departments, equipped with the latest 
data monitoring and analysis systems. This control framework prepares detailed reports on the company’s 
performance and potential risks, with an immediate reporting mechanism that allows Board members to access 
vital information directly and independently. This structure prevents any conflicts of interest and ensures 
objectivity in the evaluation process.

This system is distinguished by its ability to provide accurate and comprehensive information in a timely manner, 
supported by in-depth analyses that reflect the company’s actual situation. It also ensures a clear mechanism 
for submitting reports and recommendations, while maintaining the highest standards of independence and 
objectivity. This system has effectively contributed to enabling Board members to make informed strategic 
decisions, enhancing the principles of sound governance, and improving internal control efficiency. As a result, 
it has positively impacted the company’s overall corporate performance and increased the confidence of 
shareholders and stakeholders.
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Third Rule: Selection of Competent Individuals for Board and Executive Management 
Membership

3. Overview of Mechanisms for Selecting Nominees for Board and Executive Management Membership

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has clear and transparent mechanisms for selecting Board and 

Executive Management members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee plays a central role in ensuring 

the selection of qualified and competent individuals for these positions.

The selection of members is based on compliance with the necessary standards of competence and integrity 

that must be met by the nominees. This guide has been developed in accordance with global best practices and 

in alignment with the requirements of regulatory authorities. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

reviews the required skills and experience annually, ensuring that they align with the needs of the insurance 

industry and the company’s objectives, to ensure the suitability of the candidates.

3.1 Overview of the Implementation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Formation Requirements

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company adheres to all 

regulatory requirements regarding formation procedures, meetings, and the execution of its assigned tasks. 

The committee’s duties include:

	æ Ensuring that nominees meet regulatory requirements, considering their attendance and active participation 

in Board meetings.

	æ Developing and reviewing the job descriptions for executive, non-executive, and independent members.

	æ Ensuring the continued independence of independent members on a periodic basis.

	æ Establishing a clear policy for the remuneration of Board members and senior executives, and reviewing it 

as necessary.

	æ Preparing annual reports on the compensation granted to Board members and executive management.

	æ Periodically reviewing the required skills and experience for Board membership and executive management.

	æ Regularly evaluating the performance of Board members, executive management, and subcommittees.

	æ Ensuring there is no conflict of interest among Board members on a periodic basis.

	æ Ensuring that appropriate training and orientation are provided to Board members and executive 

management.

3.2 Report on the Compensation Granted to Board Members and Executive Management

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company practices a clear and transparent policy regarding the compensation 

and incentives granted to Board members and executive management. This policy is based on objective 

performance criteria that are measured through pre-prepared evaluation forms. The company regularly reviews 

this policy to update it and ensure its alignment with best practices and international standards.
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The company’s compensation system is based on linking rewards to actual performance, with annual performance 

evaluations conducted using precise and clear measurement indicators. The company has designed this system 

to motivate outstanding performance while maintaining a balance between the interests of the company and its 

shareholders on one hand, and the rights of the executive leadership on the other.

Any Material Deviations from the Compensation Policy Approved by the Board of Directors

Regarding the company’s compliance with the implementation of this policy, internal reports confirm that 
there were no material deviations from the compensation policy approved during the fiscal year ending on 31 
December 2024. This reflects the company’s full commitment to applying the system as approved by the Board 
of Directors and in compliance with regulatory requirements, while ensuring transparency and fairness in the 
distribution of compensation and incentives.
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Fourth Rule: Ensuring the Integrity of Financial Reports

Written assurances have been prepared by both the Board of Directors and executive management regarding 
the accuracy and integrity of the financial reports for the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2024.

4.1 Overview of the Implementation of the Audit Committee Formation Requirements

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company fully adheres to the instructions outlined in Articles (5-5) and (5-6) 
of the Fifteenth Book on Corporate Governance regarding the formation and operation of the Audit Committee. 
The Board of Directors determines the legal term of committee membership and its operational mechanisms 
through a well-structured system that ensures its independence and effectiveness.

The committee’s main tasks are focused on several key areas:

1. Reviewing Financial Reports
The committee conducts a comprehensive review of interim and annual financial statements, analyzes reports 
from external auditors, and provides initial approval before submitting them to the Board of Directors. The 
committee is also responsible for ensuring the transparency and accuracy of these financial reports.

2. Oversight of External Audits
The committee is responsible for recommending the appointment or reappointment of external auditors, as 
well as monitoring their performance and ensuring their compliance with international accounting standards 
and any updates or amendments to them.

3. Oversight of Accounting Policies
The committee is responsible for reviewing the adequacy of the accounting policies followed by the company 
and the related operational procedures, ensuring that they align with best practices and international standards.

4. Internal Audit Management
The committee’s duties include reviewing the policies and procedures of the internal audit function, recommending 
the appointment, transfer, or dismissal of the internal audit unit manager when necessary. It also evaluates the 
performance of this unit periodically, reviews proposed internal audit plans, and provides feedback on them.

4.2 Statement of Conflicts Between Audit Committee Recommendations and Board Decisions, Detailing the 

Recommendations and Reasons, and the Reasons Behind the Board’s Decision Not to Adhere

In line with Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company’s commitment to the highest standards of corporate 
governance and financial transparency, it is evident from the performance evaluation for the fiscal year 2024 
that there was complete alignment between the recommendations of the Audit Committee and the decisions of 
the Board of Directors. This integration reflects the effectiveness of the decision-making mechanisms in place, 
where all committee recommendations undergo thorough review by the Board before being approved, ensuring 
full alignment with the company’s strategic policies.

4.3 Confirmation of the Independence and Objectivity of the External Auditor

As part of its commitment to financial integrity, the company ensured the selection of Al-Obayan, Al-Oseimi 
& Partners (Ernst & Young) to carry out external auditing, based on a thorough evaluation of professional 
competence standards and specialized experience in the insurance sector, with a strong.
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emphasis on maintaining independence of opinion and ensuring there is no conflict of interest. The firm has 
been granted full access to financial records, with guaranteed freedom to communicate with all administrative 
levels. Additionally, its representatives participate in the main Audit Committee meetings and General Assembly 
meetings.

To enhance the credibility of the financial reports, the company has implemented an integrated system that 
includes:

	æ Providing an independent working environment for external auditors.

	æ Comprehensive disclosure of financial information.

	æ Accurate follow-up on legal disclosure obligations.

	æ Regular evaluation of the performance of the auditing firm.

	æ Providing direct communication channels between auditors and shareholders.

As part of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company’s commitment to the highest standards of corporate 
governance and financial transparency, the following practices highlight the integration between the Audit 
Committee’s work and the Board of Directors:

the company involves external auditors in all strategic meetings. Representatives from Al-Obayan, Al-Oseimi & 
Partners (Ernst & Young) regularly attend the Audit Committee meetings and actively contribute to discussions 
on key financial reports. They are also provided with full opportunities to present their observations and 
recommendations directly to the Board members.

the company ensures the active role of external auditors in the Annual General Assembly meetings. They are 
invited to participate and respond to shareholders’ inquiries. Additionally, their financial reports are discussed 
in a transparent and clear manner before the General Assembly.

Thirdly, the company implements a comprehensive system for continuous evaluation, which includes:

	æ Conducting periodic assessments of the external auditing firm’s performance.

	æ Annual review of the auditors’ independence and objectivity.

	æ Ensuring that no conflicts of interest exist that could affect the integrity of their opinions.

Fourthly, the company enhances financial transparency through:

	æ Publishing the complete reports of the external auditors.

	æ Comprehensive disclosure of any material observations.

	æ Providing direct communication channels between auditors and shareholders.
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Fifth Rule: Establishing sound systems for risk management and internal control.

5.1. Governance, Sustainability, Risk, and Compliance Sector:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has been keen to take the initiative to establish this integrated 
supervisory sector within the company since 2013, positioning itself as a leader in establishing and activating 
the role of oversight, sound governance, and the implementation of the highest standards of enterprise risk 
management. This sector is responsible for monitoring all operations within the company without exception, 
to ensure that no violations or threats arise that could expose the company to current or future risks, whether 
administrative, technical, or financial.

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance is one of the pioneering insurance companies in the country to implement this. 
The Board of Directors has worked to support and activate this role across all of the company’s activities. 

The company has also worked on developing internal policies and procedures in alignment with the requirements 
of Chapter 15 (Corporate Governance) of the Executive Regulations, as well as the Corporate Governance Rules 
issued by the Insurance Regulatory Unit. These policies and procedures are continuously updated to keep pace 
with any legislative or regulatory amendments. The sector is responsible for monitoring the implementation 
of these policies and overseeing their application in various forms, in addition to ensuring compliance with all 
regulatory requirements, including periodic reports and others.

5.2 Overview of the Implementation of Risk Management Committee Formation Requirements

In line with Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company’s commitment to the instructions issued in Articles (4-6) 
and (4-7) of Chapter 15 of the Corporate 

Governance Instructions, the company has established a Risk Committee derived from the Board of Directors. 
The membership term of its members and its operating mechanism have been determined in accordance with 
regulatory requirements. The committee aims to adopt a unified vision for addressing risks at the organizational 
level to ensure high-efficiency management in preventing and detecting any risks the company may face. It 
also works on providing the necessary strategic guidance by adopting initiatives related to key strategic risks, 
developing risk management plans that align with the company’s long-term objectives and priorities, and 
monitoring the implementation of these strategies through policies approved by the Board of Directors. The 
committee aligns operational and financial results with the established plans and budget, in addition to measuring 
the efficiency and quality of the results by comparing them with the strategic objectives. The committee also 
submits periodic reports related to risks and the necessary measures to avoid and control them. It establishes 
accurate indicators and criteria to measure and evaluate the various risks within the company. Additionally, 
it ensures the adequacy of liquidity and financial solvency, and evaluates and monitors market, technical, 
operational, and credit risks, along with providing the necessary information packages and presentations for 
credit rating agencies. The committee also develops systems, policies, and studies aimed at maintaining financial 
solvency, capital adequacy, monitoring deviations, proposing and following up on mitigation plans, and managing 
the company’s credit rating in a way that ensures the enhancement of development and sustainability.

5.3 Summary of Internal Systems and Controls

The internal control system at Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is characterized by accuracy and 
effectiveness. Its aim is to ensure the efficiency of operations, the quality of financial reports, and the company’s 
compliance with 
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applicable laws and regulations. This system relies on integrated mechanisms, including regular audits 
conducted by the supervisory sector and the internal audit unit, where all operational processes are reviewed, 
and analytical reports are prepared and submitted to the Board of Directors’ committees and the board itself 
for appropriate decision-making.

The executive management implements the corporate governance instructions issued by the Capital Markets 
Authority by updating existing documents and preparing new ones to ensure full compliance with these 
instructions. The effectiveness of the internal control systems is regularly assessed by the Board of Directors 
and the relevant committees based on the reports provided by the Governance, Risk, and Internal Audit units.

The Board of Directors’ assessment of the internal control systems as of December 31, 2024, concluded that 
these systems are effective and capable of providing the necessary assurances to achieve the company’s 
objectives. It confirmed that the system complies with the required standards and that no violations were found. 
This report was submitted to the Capital Markets Authority in accordance with the instructions.

5.4 Summary of the Implementation of Requirements for the Formation of an Independent Internal Audit 

Department/Office/Unit

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has a comprehensive organizational structure for managing internal 
audit. This department enjoys complete independence from the executive management and directly reports 
to the Audit Committee derived from the Board of Directors. The internal audit manager is appointed through 
a precise mechanism, starting with a nomination by the Audit Committee and final approval by the Board of 
Directors, with guarantees that protect their independence, as they can only be dismissed with the approval of 
the committee itself.

The internal audit department prepares comprehensive periodic reports that are directly submitted to the 
Audit Committee. These reports include a detailed analysis of the implementation and effectiveness of internal 
control procedures, along with an objective assessment of the executive management’s compliance with the 
approved policies and procedures. The reports also highlight any instances of non-compliance with control 
principles, identifying the underlying causes, and provide practical recommendations and realistic solutions for 
risks arising from any shortcomings in implementation.

The Audit Committee, in turn, thoroughly reviews these reports and submits the extracted recommendations to 
the Board of Directors for appropriate decision-making. This well-structured organizational framework ensures 
the highest levels of integrity and objectivity in the internal audit process, reflecting the company’s commitment 
to applying best practices in corporate governance and effective control.
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Sixth Rule: Promoting Positive Behavior and Ethical Values

6. Overview of Mechanisms for Promoting and Reinforcing a Culture of Professional Conduct and 
Ethical Values

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company places great importance on promoting a culture of professional 
conduct and ethical values among all employees, including the Board of Directors, executive management, 
and staff. This is achieved through adherence to internal policies, regulations, and legal and regulatory 
requirements, along with regular reviews of the Code of Conduct and Ethics and the Conflict of Interest Mitigation 
Mechanisms. The company believes that these practices enhance the interests of all stakeholders, particularly 
the shareholders, ensuring transparency and preventing conflicts of interest.

6.1 Overview of the Code of Conduct, Including Standards and Criteria for Professional Behavior and Ethical 

Values

The company’s Code of Professional and Ethical Conduct is based on standards and principles derived from 
its nature as an insurance company. This code was developed by the Board of Directors and reflects the 
professional and ethical values upon which the company was founded. The company has been committed 
to adhering to societal customs and aligning with global standards in the insurance industry. The Board of 
Directors has emphasized the importance of adopting and applying this code across all company activities, 
making it a primary reference for the Board, executive management, and all employees. The aim is to provide 
the best service to our clients and partners.

The Code of Conduct includes a set of core principles, including:

	æ Integrity: All employees are committed to performing their tasks with skill and dedication, dedicating the 

necessary time and effort to achieve the best results.

	æ Compliance with Laws and Regulations: Everyone must respect local and international laws and regulations 

and comply with the guidance of the relevant regulatory authorities.

	æ Non-Misuse of Resources: Company assets must be used solely for the benefit of the company’s interests 

and not for personal purposes.

	æ Confidentiality of Information: The sharing of sensitive information with any unrelated party is prohibited, 

and employees are forbidden from using such information for personal gain.

	æ Compliance with Fair Competition Standards: The company is committed to dealing transparently with 

other companies and adhering to best practices in competition.

	æ Reporting Improper Practices: The company encourages the reporting of any violations and is committed to 

protecting whistleblowers and ensuring the confidentiality of reports.

	æ Full Cooperation with Regulatory Authorities: The company is committed to positive engagement with all 

regulatory and supervisory bodies and complying with their instructions.
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6.2 Overview of Policies and Mechanisms for Mitigating Conflicts of Interest

The company adopts a clear and strict policy to prevent conflicts of interest, which is approved by the Board 
of Directors and applied to all its members, as well as executive management and all employees. This policy 
includes a set of fundamental rules, the most notable of which are:

	æ Prohibition of Receiving Additional Benefits: Board members, executive management, or their relatives 

are prohibited from receiving any additional benefits, whether direct or indirect (such as commissions 

or transactions with or on behalf of the company), based on their positions within the company, unless 

approval is obtained from the General Assembly.

	æ Clear Mechanism for Reporting Conflicts of Interest: A clear mechanism is in place for reporting conflicts of 

interest, whether the report comes from board members or executive management. A strict policy is also 

in place for dealings with related parties, which includes a series of auditing and review procedures aimed 

at avoiding any potential conflict of interest.

	æ Prohibition of Providing Facilities or Loans: The company is prohibited from offering any facilities or loans 

to its board members, executive management, or guaranteeing them, regardless of the type of facility.

	æ Adherence to High Professional Conduct Standards: Board members and executive management must 

adhere to the highest standards of professional conduct and avoid any behavior that may lead to a conflict 

of interest.
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Seventh Rule: Accurate and Timely Disclosure and Transparency

7. Summary of the Implementation of Accurate and Transparent Disclosure Mechanisms Reflecting the 
Aspects of Disclosure Governance:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company adheres to a clear disclosure policy in line with the requirements of 
the Capital Markets Authority. The company has been keen to implement this policy according to best practices, 
ensuring that shareholders and stakeholders have access to all relevant information about the company 
through the following channels:

The designated disclosure section on the Kuwait Stock Exchange website.

The official company website under the “Corporate Governance” section.

Objective: The company aims to achieve transparency and integrity in disclosure, enabling stakeholders to access 
information accurately and in a timely manner, while complying with all legal and regulatory requirements, in 
accordance with the provisions of Law No. (2010/7) and the relevant Capital Markets Authority instructions.

The company also ensures that its disclosures include accurate information characterized by transparency and 
neutrality, covering all material information, through continuous coordination between the Board of Directors, 
the Governance Department, and relevant parties.

7.1 Overview of Implementing Disclosure Record Requirements for Board Members and Executive Management

In line with the Capital Markets Authority instructions, the company maintains a dedicated record that contains 
the disclosures of the Board members, executive management, and auditors. The Compliance Department, in 
cooperation with external auditors, is responsible for monitoring this record through regular audit 

processes. Additionally, the record is made available to regulatory authorities upon request.

7.2 Summary Statement on Implementing the Requirements for the Formation of the Investor Relations Unit:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to implementing the instructions outlined in Chapter 15 
“Corporate Governance,” which mandate the formation of an Investor Relations Unit. This unit is overseen by the 
Governance and Risk Department and falls under the Governance, Sustainability, Risk, and Compliance Sector. 
It is responsible for the following tasks:

	æ Providing the necessary data, information, and reports required by shareholders from various groups, 

whether local or foreign.

	æ Enhancing open communication channels and encouraging the exchange of information to ensure that 

shareholders have access to clear information regarding the company’s financial position, future plans, and 

available opportunities.

	æ Adhering to the highest standards of transparency and credibility in disclosures, ensuring the availability of 

the latest data and information related to the company.
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	æ Providing detailed reports covering financial performance, including interim and annual reports, and 

financial statements listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. Offering accurate data regarding profits and 

forecasted figures that are of interest to the business community and investors.

7.3 Overview of How the IT Infrastructure is Developed and Reliably Used in Disclosure Operations:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to adhering to the highest standards of integrity and 
transparency, in line with the instructions of the Capital Markets Authority. In this regard, the company has 
established a dedicated Corporate Governance section on its website to provide all data and information 

that support local and international shareholders and investors, assisting them in evaluating performance and 
making informed investment decisions.

The company also places great importance on continuously updating this data and strives to develop electronic 
disclosure processes to ensure that access to information is easy and accurate. This includes adhering to the 
Authority’s recommendations regarding electronic disclosure, as well as listing the company’s page on the 
Kuwait Stock Exchange website to provide all disclosures and reports on a regular basis.
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Eighth Rule: Respecting Shareholders’ Rights

8. Summary of the Implementation of Requirements for Defining and Protecting Shareholders’ 
Rights to Ensure Fairness and Equality Among All Shareholders

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to protecting the rights of all its shareholders, whether 
registered in the company’s shareholder register or those who hold their shares through custodians or trading 
platforms. The company ensures equal treatment of all shareholders through the following:

	æ Maintaining an up-to-date register containing the names and details of shareholders in coordination with 

the Kuwait Clearing Company.

	æ Enabling shareholders to exercise their rights to transfer their shares, attend general assembly meetings, 

and vote on their resolutions.

	æ Ensuring the transfer of ownership without imposing any fees, in accordance with the relevant regulations 

and laws.

	æ Providing access to financial data, documents, and information related to the company.

	æ Offering essential information that enables shareholders to assess the company’s position and make 

investment decisions based on accurate and transparent information.

8.1 Summary of the Creation of a Special Register Held with the Clearing Agency as Part of Ongoing Monitoring 

of Shareholder Data:

The company creates a dedicated register to track shareholder activity with the Kuwait Clearing Company, 
which is continuously updated. The register includes all trading transactions, such as buying and selling, and a 
weekly report is prepared to monitor ownership percentages and the latest developments.

8.2 Overview of How the Company Encourages Shareholders to Participate and Vote in the Company’s General 

Assembly Meetings

	æ The company issues an official invitation to shareholders to attend the general assembly meetings, outlining 

the agenda items.

	æ The invitation is published through media channels, the Kuwait Stock Exchange website, and the company’s 

official website.

	æ The company provides shareholders with all relevant information and reports related to the meeting topics 

well in advance of the meeting date.

	æ Each shareholder has the right to vote based on the number of shares they own.

	æ Shareholders are allowed to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on their behalf.

	æ The company adopts a clear and transparent mechanism for counting votes and calculating results.

	æ No fees are imposed on shareholders for attending meetings or voting.

	æ The company provides modern electronic means that enable shareholders to follow the meetings and 

participate effectively.
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Ninth Rule: Acknowledging the Role of Stakeholders

9. Overview of the Systems and Policies Ensuring the Protection, Recognition, and Rights of 
Stakeholders:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to protecting the rights of stakeholders within the 
framework of governance, sustainability, risk, and compliance, by implementing all procedures and policies that 
ensure fairness, transparency, and equality. This includes:

	æ The Board of Directors establishes and monitors policies and procedures related to stakeholders, whether 

they are shareholders, clients, suppliers, regulatory bodies, employees, or others, ensuring that they are 

treated fairly and impartially.

	æ Ensuring stakeholders have access to relevant information and data in an organized and accurate manner, 

through clear and transparent channels.

	æ Opening communication channels with stakeholders, encouraging them to provide their feedback and 

suggestions, and facilitating the process of submitting complaints and recommendations regarding any 

violations.

	æ Working on developing internal procedures and policies to serve stakeholders and enhance their experience 

with the company.

	æ Utilizing modern communication methods to interact with stakeholders efficiently and effectively.

	æ Regularly updating the website to display accurate and up-to-date information that benefits stakeholders 

and meets the requirements of various regulatory authorities.

9.1 Overview of How the Company Encourages Stakeholders to Participate in Monitoring the Company’s 

Various Activities:

The company has adopted policies and mechanisms that allow stakeholders to monitor the company’s activities 
in alignment with its goals, values, and strategies, within an organized framework that reflects good governance. 
This includes:

	æ Providing effective and secure communication channels for stakeholders to enable them to report any 

wrongful or unethical practices. Ensuring the confidentiality of reports and protecting whistleblowers from 

any harm.

	æ Referring reports, when necessary, to the Board of Directors for review and taking appropriate action.
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Tenth Rule: Enhancing and Improving Performance

10. Summary of the Implementation of Requirements for Establishing Mechanisms to Provide 
Continuous Training Programs for Board Members and Executive Management

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to providing specialized and ongoing training programs 
for both Board members and executive management to ensure the enhancement of their skills and improvement 
of their performance. These programs include the following:

	æ Organizing periodic training workshops aimed at enabling Board members to stay continuously informed 

about relevant developments, especially changes and shifts in the financial markets.

	æ The company’s commitment to applying best practices in governance, ensuring the provision of updated 

knowledge tools to assist Board members in making effective and well-informed decisions.

	æ Establishing a specialized committee responsible for preparing and implementing a comprehensive training 

plan that addresses the various needs of Board members and executive management.

	æ Adopting an annual training plan that includes courses and workshops tailored to each member, ensuring 

a deep understanding of their roles and responsibilities.

Target Audience Training Program / Workshop

Board of Directors
Board effectiveness, roles, responsibilities and liabilities of members, 
required committees, risks associated with governance, and how to 
mitigate these risks.

Executive Management Awareness on how to develop a succession plan and the metrics used 
to evaluate the succession process.

Risk and Compliance Committee Risk management awareness sessions covering tools and techniques, 
risk assessment methods, and strategic planning for risk management.

Nominations and Remuneration 
Committee

Awareness on the screening process for board members, including re-
quired competencies and relevant experience.

10.1 Overview of How the Performance of the Board of Directors as a Whole, and the Performance of Each 

Board Member and Executive Management, is Evaluated:

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has adopted a clear and approved policy for evaluating and measuring 
performance, in line with the instructions issued by the Capital Markets Authority. This policy is reviewed and 
updated periodically by the relevant committees and the Board of Directors.

The company relies on a unified evaluation model to assess the performance of the Board of Directors and 
executive management, which includes:

	æ Chairman of the Board

	æ Vice Chairman of the Board

	æ Board Members

	æ Executive Management
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This evaluation model is prepared by the Nominations and Remuneration Committee and is reviewed and 
officially approved based on objective Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) that allow for the measurement and 
assessment of the performance of each member, each committee, and the Board as a whole.

The evaluation process takes into account both qualitative and quantitative aspects to ensure an accurate 
and fair assessment, based on the provisions of Chapter 15 of the Executive Regulations - Tenth Rule. The 
evaluation is conducted annually for all Board members and executive management.

10.2 Overview of the Board of Directors’ Efforts in Creating Institutional Value for Employees through 

Achieving Strategic Goals and Improving Performance Metrics

Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company is committed to implementing a cohesive organizational system that 
ensures business continuity in an organized manner and strengthens the stability of the work environment, 
even in the event of personnel changes.

This is achieved through the development of policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directors, which 
are continuously monitored and updated, especially regarding the governance, risk, and compliance sectors.

The company is also committed to providing training and development programs for both new and existing 
employees to enhance their efficiency and meet the work requirements. Additionally, the company relies on 
modern electronic systems to manage various operational and administrative processes, whether technical or 
financial, ensuring the improvement of institutional performance and the achievement of strategic goals.
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Eleventh Rule: Focusing on the Importance of Social Responsibility

11. Summary of the Policy to Achieve a Balance Between the Company’s Goals and Societal 
Objectives

Since its establishment, Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company has aimed to strike a balance between 
its strategic goals and the interests of society by adopting an approach that considers the human and social 
aspects of its activities.

The company believes that its success is not only measured by financial returns but also by its contribution to 
community development through investing its resources in projects that benefit individuals and society.

The company is keen to seize opportunities that allow it to provide its services in a way that enhances insurance 
awareness and improves the quality of life, while respecting local customs and values. It follows a clear policy 
that supports sustainable initiatives and implements programs with a developmental, cultural, and sports 
dimension.

The company is distinguished by an exceptional team that takes on the responsibilities of social responsibility 
and strives to exert maximum efforts in serving beloved Kuwait in all fields, as detailed in the Board of Directors’ 
report.

11.1 Overview of the Programs and Mechanisms Used to Highlight the Company’s Efforts in Social Work

The company places great emphasis on participating in social responsibility, whether through its direct initiatives 
or partnerships with national institutions. It ensures that its contributions cover various sectors, including:

	æ Hosting ACA School students at the headquarters of Warba Insurance & Reinsurance Company.

	æ Implementing the “Mo Nasiinkum” (We did not forget about you) campaign to distribute winter clothing to 

workers.

	æ Sponsoring the annual carnival of Al Bayan School.

	æ Sponsoring the 2024 KA’MUN conference organized by the Gulf University for Science and Technology 

(GUST).

	æ Sponsoring the BRICS International Youth Championship.

	æ Implementing the “Women’s Day” campaign on social media.

	æ Implementing the “Your Giving is Good” campaign to distribute Iftar meals.

	æ Organizing a free health campaign for blood pressure and diabetes testing for clients over 60 years old, in 

collaboration with Al Hadi Hospital.

	æ Sponsoring the “Your Voice Matters” event for youth at the American University of Kuwait (AUK).

	æ Implementing the “Environment Day” campaign to distribute saplings in collaboration with Home & Garden.

	æ Organizing the “We Care About You” campaign and distributing ice cream to students and workers.

	æ Launching the “Warba Insurance Academy for Youth.”

	æ Sponsoring an event for people with special needs in collaboration with the Kuwaiti Association for the Care 

of the Disabled, with participation from Warba Academy students.
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	æ Organizing an entertainment event for children in collaboration with the KACCH BACCH Association at the 

Abdullah Al-Roumi Hospital for Children.

	æ Sponsoring an event at “Over Jar” to support students and local talents.

	æ Implementing a recycling campaign in collaboration with Fawzia Sultan Healthcare Network (FSHN).

	æ Organizing a blood donation campaign titled “Kuwait runs in my veins” (Al Kuwait Bidami) in collaboration 

with the Amiri Diwan.

	æ Attending a children’s theatrical performance of “Pinocchio” with children with special needs.

	æ Sponsoring the “Flare” Sports Festival for youth.

	æ Sponsoring the “FOK” event for the Indian community.

	æ Sponsoring the leadership mentoring program aimed at youth.

	æ Implementing the “ 26th Arabian Gulf Cup” (Khaleeji 26) campaign as part of engagement with the Gulf 

sporting event.

	æ Re-implementing the “Mo Nasiinkum” campaign to distribute winter clothing to workers at the end of the 

year.

	æ Sponsoring the “Explorers of the Environment Academy” for school students.

Anwar Jawad Bu khamseen 
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Warba Insurance and Reinsurance 
Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the 
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material 
accounting policy information.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and 
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence 
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context. 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our reports, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. 
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters 
below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 
 

Ernst & Young 
Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners  
P.O. Box 74 
Burj Alshaya, 16th & 17th Floor 
Al Soor Street, Mirqab 
Safat 13001, State of Kuwait 

Tel: +965 2295 5000 
Fax: +965 2245 6419 
kuwait@kw.ey.com 
https://www.ey.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Warba Insurance and Reinsurance 
Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the 
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material 
accounting policy information.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and 
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence 
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context. 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our reports, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. 
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters 
below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 
 

Ernst & Young 
Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners  
P.O. Box 74 
Burj Alshaya, 16th & 17th Floor 
Al Soor Street, Mirqab 
Safat 13001, State of Kuwait 

Tel: +965 2295 5000 
Fax: +965 2245 6419 
kuwait@kw.ey.com 
https://www.ey.com 
 

              
                            
     

                                      
     
 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Warba Insurance and Reinsurance 
Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”), which 
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the 
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material 
accounting policy information.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and 
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence 
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is 
provided in that context. 
 
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our reports, including in relation to these 
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond 
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. 
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters 
below, provide the basis of our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 
 

Ernst & Young 
Al Aiban, Al Osaimi & Partners  
P.O. Box 74 
Burj Alshaya, 16th & 17th Floor 
Al Soor Street, Mirqab 
Safat 13001, State of Kuwait 

Tel: +965 2295 5000 
Fax: +965 2245 6419 
kuwait@kw.ey.com 
https://www.ey.com 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 
a) Insurance contract liabilities 
 
Insurance contract liabilities include: Liability for Remaining coverage (LFRC) and Liability for 
incurred claims (LIC).  These insurance contract liabilities amount to KD 36,675,698 are significant 
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2024, as reported in Note 3 to 
the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The estimation of the liability for incurred claims involves a significant degree of judgement. This 
entails estimating the present value of future cash flows and the risk adjustment for non-financial 
risk. 
 
Accordingly, complexities arises from calculating the actuarial best estimate and the margin using 
historical data which is sensitive to external inputs, such as claims cost inflation and medical trends, 
as well as the actuarial methodology that is applied and the assumptions on current and future events.    
 
The Group uses the work a management’s specialist and an external independent actuary for the 
determination of Insurance contract liabilities. 
 
Due to the inherent estimation uncertainty and subjectivity involved in the assessment of valuation 
of the liability for incurred claims arising from insurance contracts, we have considered this as a 
key audit matter. 
 
Refer to Note 2 for the accounting policies and significant accounting judgements, estimates and 
assumptions adopted by the Group, involved in the initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
of insurance contract liabilities. Also, refer to Note 3 for the movement in insurance contract 
liabilities. 
 
Our procedures, among others, included the following: 
• Understood, evaluated and tested key controls around the claims handling and provision 

setting processes.  
 

• Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the management's expert and an 
external independent actuary based on their professional qualifications and experience. 
 

• Performed substantive tests, on sample basis, on the amounts recorded for claims intimated and 
paid; including comparing the outstanding claims amount to appropriate source documentation 
to evaluate the valuation of outstanding claim reserves. 

 

• Assessed the integrity of data used as inputs into the actuarial valuations, and tested on sample 
basis, the accuracy of underlying claims data utilised by the management's expert in estimating 
the present value of the future cash flows and the risk adjustment for non-financial risk by 
comparing it to the accounting and other records. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 
a) Insurance contract Liabilities (continued) 
 
• Involved our internal actuarial specialists to assess the Group’s methods and assumptions and 

evaluate the Group's actuarial practices and provisions established including the actuarial report 
issued by management's expert, by performing the following: 

 
i. Evaluated whether the Group's actuarial methodologies were consistent with generally 

accepted actuarial practices and with prior years.  
ii. Assessed key actuarial assumptions including claims ratios and expected frequency and 

severity of claims.; and   
iii. Assessed the appropriateness of the calculation methods and approach along with the 

assumptions used and sensitivity analysis performed. 
 
• Further, we assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures given in Note 3 to the consolidated 

financial statements. 
 
Other information included in the Group’s 2024 Annual Report 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the 
information included in the Group’s Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have 
performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 
a) Insurance contract liabilities 
 
Insurance contract liabilities include: Liability for Remaining coverage (LFRC) and Liability for 
incurred claims (LIC).  These insurance contract liabilities amount to KD 36,675,698 are significant 
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2024, as reported in Note 3 to 
the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The estimation of the liability for incurred claims involves a significant degree of judgement. This 
entails estimating the present value of future cash flows and the risk adjustment for non-financial 
risk. 
 
Accordingly, complexities arises from calculating the actuarial best estimate and the margin using 
historical data which is sensitive to external inputs, such as claims cost inflation and medical trends, 
as well as the actuarial methodology that is applied and the assumptions on current and future events.    
 
The Group uses the work a management’s specialist and an external independent actuary for the 
determination of Insurance contract liabilities. 
 
Due to the inherent estimation uncertainty and subjectivity involved in the assessment of valuation 
of the liability for incurred claims arising from insurance contracts, we have considered this as a 
key audit matter. 
 
Refer to Note 2 for the accounting policies and significant accounting judgements, estimates and 
assumptions adopted by the Group, involved in the initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
of insurance contract liabilities. Also, refer to Note 3 for the movement in insurance contract 
liabilities. 
 
Our procedures, among others, included the following: 
• Understood, evaluated and tested key controls around the claims handling and provision 

setting processes.  
 

• Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the management's expert and an 
external independent actuary based on their professional qualifications and experience. 
 

• Performed substantive tests, on sample basis, on the amounts recorded for claims intimated and 
paid; including comparing the outstanding claims amount to appropriate source documentation 
to evaluate the valuation of outstanding claim reserves. 

 

• Assessed the integrity of data used as inputs into the actuarial valuations, and tested on sample 
basis, the accuracy of underlying claims data utilised by the management's expert in estimating 
the present value of the future cash flows and the risk adjustment for non-financial risk by 
comparing it to the accounting and other records. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (continued) 
 
a) Insurance contract Liabilities (continued) 
 
• Involved our internal actuarial specialists to assess the Group’s methods and assumptions and 

evaluate the Group's actuarial practices and provisions established including the actuarial report 
issued by management's expert, by performing the following: 

 
i. Evaluated whether the Group's actuarial methodologies were consistent with generally 

accepted actuarial practices and with prior years.  
ii. Assessed key actuarial assumptions including claims ratios and expected frequency and 

severity of claims.; and   
iii. Assessed the appropriateness of the calculation methods and approach along with the 

assumptions used and sensitivity analysis performed. 
 
• Further, we assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures given in Note 3 to the consolidated 

financial statements. 
 
Other information included in the Group’s 2024 Annual Report 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the 
information included in the Group’s Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have 
performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with IFRSs Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
 Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 

financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



6

8

10

12

20

22

26

54

Our Vision, Mission and Values

2020 AGM Agenda

Board of Directors

Chairman’s Letter

CEO’s Letter

Company Overview

Corporate Governance

Consolidated Financial Statement

91

                                                
                                          
 

4 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with IFRSs Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued) 
 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
 Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 

financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and review of the audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We 
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and 
the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent 
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in 
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information and explanations 
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements 
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended, and 
its executive regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of 
Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended, 
and its executive regulations, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of 
Incorporation and Articles of Association have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2024
that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its financial 
position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material 
violations of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning establishment of Capital Markets 
Authority “CMA” and organisation of security activity and its executive regulations, as amended, 
during the year ended 31 December 2024 that might have had a material effect on the business of 
the Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER A. AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207 A
EY
AL AIBAN,  AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

19 February 2025 
Kuwait

Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary                                                              
 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME  
For the year ended 31 December 2024 
 

The attached notes 1 to 22 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 
 

7 
 

 
  2024 2023 

 Notes KD KD 
Revenue:    
Insurance revenue 3 42,916,380 43,189,794 
Insurance service expenses 3 (19,647,917) (20,676,008) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts held   23,268,463 22,513,786 
    
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims 3 (15,550) 2,641,665 
Allocation of reinsurance premiums 3 (18,013,473) (16,211,695) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net expense from reinsurance contracts held   (18,029,023) (13,570,030) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Insurance service result   5,239,440 8,943,756 
  ─────── ─────── 
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued 3 (704,322) (1,071,674) 
Finance income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held 3 378,993 (618,633) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net insurance financial result  4,914,111 7,253,449 
    
Net investment income 4 2,728,992 2,478,087 
Unallocated general and administrative expenses  (2,128,035) (2,689,116) 
Other income  410,033 278,235 
  ─────── ─────── 
Total income  1,010,990 67,206 
  ─────── ─────── 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO KFAS, NLST AND 

ZAKAT  5,925,101 7,320,655 
Contribution to KFAS  (53,310) (69,868) 
NLST  (151,253) (98,107) 
ZAKAT  (53,622) (37,558) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  5,666,916 7,115,122 
    
Attributable to:    
 Equity holders of the Parent Company  5,620,497 7,090,281 
 Non-controlling interests  46,419 24,841 
  ─────── ─────── 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  5,666,916 7,115,122 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY 5 23.29 Fils 29.47 Fils 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WARBA 
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and 
the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent 
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in 
accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information and explanations 
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements 
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended, and 
its executive regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of 
Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended, 
and its executive regulations, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of 
Incorporation and Articles of Association have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2024
that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its financial 
position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any material 
violations of the provisions of Law No. 7 of 2010 concerning establishment of Capital Markets 
Authority “CMA” and organisation of security activity and its executive regulations, as amended, 
during the year ended 31 December 2024 that might have had a material effect on the business of 
the Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER A. AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207 A
EY
AL AIBAN,  AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

19 February 2025 
Kuwait

Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary                                                              
 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME  
For the year ended 31 December 2024 
 

The attached notes 1 to 22 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Revenue:    
Insurance revenue 3 42,916,380 43,189,794 
Insurance service expenses 3 (19,647,917) (20,676,008) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts held   23,268,463 22,513,786 
    
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for incurred claims 3 (15,550) 2,641,665 
Allocation of reinsurance premiums 3 (18,013,473) (16,211,695) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net expense from reinsurance contracts held   (18,029,023) (13,570,030) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Insurance service result   5,239,440 8,943,756 
  ─────── ─────── 
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued 3 (704,322) (1,071,674) 
Finance income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held 3 378,993 (618,633) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net insurance financial result  4,914,111 7,253,449 
    
Net investment income 4 2,728,992 2,478,087 
Unallocated general and administrative expenses  (2,128,035) (2,689,116) 
Other income  410,033 278,235 
  ─────── ─────── 
Total income  1,010,990 67,206 
  ─────── ─────── 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO KFAS, NLST AND 

ZAKAT  5,925,101 7,320,655 
Contribution to KFAS  (53,310) (69,868) 
NLST  (151,253) (98,107) 
ZAKAT  (53,622) (37,558) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  5,666,916 7,115,122 
    
Attributable to:    
 Equity holders of the Parent Company  5,620,497 7,090,281 
 Non-controlling interests  46,419 24,841 
  ─────── ─────── 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  5,666,916 7,115,122 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY 5 23.29 Fils 29.47 Fils 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
For the year ended 31 December 2024 

 

The attached notes 1 to 22 form part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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  2024 2023 
 Notes KD KD 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, and Zakat  5,925,101 7,320,655 
Adjustments for:    

Depreciation of property and equipment 6 250,787 231,859 
Net investment income 4 (3,440,404) (3,100,079) 
Provision of employees’ end if service benefits  222,389 222,997 

  ─────── ─────── 
  2,957,873 4,675,432 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Other assets  301,193 303,079 
Reinsurance contract assets  3,051,149 2,505,941 
Insurance contract liabilities  (2,671,514) (2,248,910) 
Other liabilities  7,350,889 1,509,020 

  ─────── ─────── 
Cash flows from operations  10,989,589 6,744,562 

Employees’ end if service benefits paid  (123,324) (224,988) 
Contribution to NLST & Zakat paid  (119,464) (137,881) 

  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows from operating activities  10,746,801 6,381,693 
  ─────── ─────── 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Movement in term deposits  (3,617,237) (168,225) 
Net movement of treasury shares   65,934 (98,124) 
Purchase of investment assets  (10,591,133) (10,543,514) 
Proceed from sale of investment assets  3,806,460 2,355,827 
Purchase of property and equipment 6 (32,365) (97,469) 
Proceed from disposal of property and equipment   200,609 -     
Investment income received    2,308,257 2,019,912 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in investing activities  (7,859,475) (6,531,593) 
  ─────── ─────── 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Cash dividends paid   (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in financing activities  (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  583,662 (1,478,723) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  5,374,525 6,853,248 
  ─────── ─────── 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 11 5,958,187 5,374,525 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
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  2024 2023 
 Note KD KD 

    
Profit for the year  5,666,916  7,115,122  

  ──────── ──────── 
Other comprehensive income:    
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to consolidated 
statement of income: 

 
  

Share of other comprehensive income from associates  7 8,199  5,285  
  ──────── ──────── 
  8,199  5,285  
    
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to consolidated statement 
of income (loss): 

 
  

 Change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI   3,642,999  (637,832) 
  ──────── ──────── 
  3,642,999  (637,832) 
  ──────── ──────── 
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year  3,651,198  (632,547) 

  ──────── ──────── 
Total comprehensive income for the year  9,318,114  6,482,575  
  ════════ ════════ 
Attributable to:     
 Equity holders of the Parent Company  9,271,695  6,457,734  
 Non-controlling interests   46,419  24,841  

  ──────── ──────── 
  9,318,114  6,482,575  
  ════════ ════════ 
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Depreciation of property and equipment 6 250,787 231,859 
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Provision of employees’ end if service benefits  222,389 222,997 
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Other assets  301,193 303,079 
Reinsurance contract assets  3,051,149 2,505,941 
Insurance contract liabilities  (2,671,514) (2,248,910) 
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Cash dividends paid   (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in financing activities  (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  583,662 (1,478,723) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  5,374,525 6,853,248 
  ─────── ─────── 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 11 5,958,187 5,374,525 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
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The attached notes 1 to 22 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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  2024 2023 
 Note KD KD 

    
Profit for the year  5,666,916  7,115,122  

  ──────── ──────── 
Other comprehensive income:    
Items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to consolidated 
statement of income: 

 
  

Share of other comprehensive income from associates  7 8,199  5,285  
  ──────── ──────── 
  8,199  5,285  
    
Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to consolidated statement 
of income (loss): 

 
  

 Change in fair value of financial assets at FVOCI   3,642,999  (637,832) 
  ──────── ──────── 
  3,642,999  (637,832) 
  ──────── ──────── 
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year  3,651,198  (632,547) 

  ──────── ──────── 
Total comprehensive income for the year  9,318,114  6,482,575  
  ════════ ════════ 
Attributable to:     
 Equity holders of the Parent Company  9,271,695  6,457,734  
 Non-controlling interests   46,419  24,841  

  ──────── ──────── 
  9,318,114  6,482,575  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
For the year ended 31 December 2024 

 

The attached notes 1 to 22 form part of these consolidated financial statements.  
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  2024 2023 
 Notes KD KD 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, and Zakat  5,925,101 7,320,655 
Adjustments for:    

Depreciation of property and equipment 6 250,787 231,859 
Net investment income 4 (3,440,404) (3,100,079) 
Provision of employees’ end if service benefits  222,389 222,997 

  ─────── ─────── 
  2,957,873 4,675,432 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Other assets  301,193 303,079 
Reinsurance contract assets  3,051,149 2,505,941 
Insurance contract liabilities  (2,671,514) (2,248,910) 
Other liabilities  7,350,889 1,509,020 

  ─────── ─────── 
Cash flows from operations  10,989,589 6,744,562 

Employees’ end if service benefits paid  (123,324) (224,988) 
Contribution to NLST & Zakat paid  (119,464) (137,881) 

  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows from operating activities  10,746,801 6,381,693 
  ─────── ─────── 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Movement in term deposits  (3,617,237) (168,225) 
Net movement of treasury shares   65,934 (98,124) 
Purchase of investment assets  (10,591,133) (10,543,514) 
Proceed from sale of investment assets  3,806,460 2,355,827 
Purchase of property and equipment 6 (32,365) (97,469) 
Proceed from disposal of property and equipment   200,609 -     
Investment income received    2,308,257 2,019,912 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in investing activities  (7,859,475) (6,531,593) 
  ─────── ─────── 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Cash dividends paid   (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in financing activities  (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  583,662 (1,478,723) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  5,374,525 6,853,248 
  ─────── ─────── 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 11 5,958,187 5,374,525 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
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  ─────── ─────── 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Cash dividends paid   (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in financing activities  (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  583,662 (1,478,723) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  5,374,525 6,853,248 
  ─────── ─────── 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 11 5,958,187 5,374,525 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
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  2024 2023 
 Notes KD KD 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, and Zakat  5,925,101 7,320,655 
Adjustments for:    

Depreciation of property and equipment 6 250,787 231,859 
Net investment income 4 (3,440,404) (3,100,079) 
Provision of employees’ end if service benefits  222,389 222,997 

  ─────── ─────── 
  2,957,873 4,675,432 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Other assets  301,193 303,079 
Reinsurance contract assets  3,051,149 2,505,941 
Insurance contract liabilities  (2,671,514) (2,248,910) 
Other liabilities  7,350,889 1,509,020 

  ─────── ─────── 
Cash flows from operations  10,989,589 6,744,562 

Employees’ end if service benefits paid  (123,324) (224,988) 
Contribution to NLST & Zakat paid  (119,464) (137,881) 

  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows from operating activities  10,746,801 6,381,693 
  ─────── ─────── 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Movement in term deposits  (3,617,237) (168,225) 
Net movement of treasury shares   65,934 (98,124) 
Purchase of investment assets  (10,591,133) (10,543,514) 
Proceed from sale of investment assets  3,806,460 2,355,827 
Purchase of property and equipment 6 (32,365) (97,469) 
Proceed from disposal of property and equipment   200,609 -     
Investment income received    2,308,257 2,019,912 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in investing activities  (7,859,475) (6,531,593) 
  ─────── ─────── 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Cash dividends paid   (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
Net cash flows used in financing activities  (2,303,664) (1,328,823) 
  ─────── ─────── 
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  583,662 (1,478,723) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  5,374,525 6,853,248 
  ─────── ─────── 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 11 5,958,187 5,374,525 
  ═══════ ═══════ 
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1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
The consolidated financial statement of Warba Insurance and Reinsurance Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) 
and its subsidiary – WAPMED TPA Services Company K.S.C.C. (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 31 
December 2024 were authorised for issuance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 19 February 2025. The 
general assembly of the shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements after issuance. 
 
The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Bu-Khamseen Holding Company (the “Ultimate Parent Company”). 
 
The objectives of the Parent Company are to underwrite life and non- life insurance risks such as fire, general 
accidents, marine and aviation and others; lend funds which resulted from issuance of insurance policies and to 
invest in permitted securities. 
 
The Parent Company is a Kuwaiti Shareholding Company registered in 1962 under the Insurance Companies and 
Agents Law No. 24 of 1961 and its subsequent amendments. The Parent Company has been engaging in various 
insurance and reinsurance activities, as set forth in the Parent Company’s Articles of Association. The Parent 
Company’s registered head office address is at P. O. Box 24282, Safat 13103, Kuwait. 
 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 were approved by the 
shareholders of the Parent Company at the Annual General Assembly meeting (“AGM”) held on 7 April 2024. 
 
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
 
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
Statement of compliance 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting 
standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention except for the measurement 
at fair value of investments carried at fair value through profit or loss, investments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”), which is the functional and 
presentation currency of the Parent Company. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of 
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense 
will not be offset in the consolidated statement of income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard 
or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the Group. 
 

The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going 
concern. 
 

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity. 
 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications 
had no impact on the reported results of operations, net profit and equity. 
 
2.2     BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 
 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary as 
at 31 December 2024 (together referred to as “the Group") as follows:  
 

 
Incorporation 

country Activity 

Ownership (%)  
31 December 

2024 

Ownership (%) 
31 December 

2023 
WAPMED TPA Services 

Company K.S.C. (Closed) Kuwait 
Administrative services to 

insurance companies. 82.57 82.57 
 
Subsidiary is an investee that the Group has control over. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has 
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through 
its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has: 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
2.2      BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued) 
 
 Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the 

investee) 
 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 
 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 
 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and 
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant 
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
 
 

 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
 Parent Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights 
 
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes 
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control 
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the 
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the shareholders of the 
Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 
deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial information of subsidiary to bring its 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 
 
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. 
 
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value. 
 
2.3  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES  
 
2.3.1   New and amended accounting policies, standards and interpretations 
The accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those 
used in the previous year except for the adoption of certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or 
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 
 
The Group applied the following amendments effective from 1 January 2024:  

• Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - 
Amendments to IAS 1 

• Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements -Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 
• Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16 

 
None of these amendments had an impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2024. 
 
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
 
The significant new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective up to the date 
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new 
standards and amended standards and interpretations when they become effective. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION  
 (continued) 
 
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued) 
 
2.4.1   Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments  
 
On 30 May 2024, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, Amendments to the Classification and 
Measurement of Financial Instruments (the Amendments). The Amendments include: 

• A clarification that a financial liability is derecognised on the ‘settlement date’ and introduce an accounting 
policy choice (if specific conditions are met) to derecognise financial liabilities settled using an electronic 
payment system before the settlement date  

• Additional guidance on how the contractual cash flows for financial assets with environmental, social and 
 corporate governance (ESG) and similar features should be assessed  
• Clarifications on what constitute ‘non-recourse features’ and what are the characteristics of contractually 
 linked instruments  
• The introduction of disclosures for financial instruments with contingent features and additional disclosure 
 requirements for equity instruments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI)  

 
The Amendments are effective for annual periods starting on or after 1 January 2026. Early adoption is permitted, 
with an option to early adopt the amendments for classification of financial assets and related disclosures only. The 
Group is currently not intending to early adopt the Amendments 
 
2.4.2   Lack of exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21  
In August 2023, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates to 
specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange 
rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also require disclosure of information that enables users of 
its financial statements to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is 
expected to affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.  
 
The amendments will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. Early adoption 
is permitted, but will need to be disclosed. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative 
information.  
 
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
2.4.3   IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements  
In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. IFRS 18 
introduces new requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and 
subtotals. Furthermore, entities are required to classify all income and expenses within the statement of profit or loss 
into one of five categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations, whereof the 
first three are new.  
 
It also requires disclosure of newly defined management-defined performance measures, subtotals of income and 
expenses, and includes new requirements for aggregation and disaggregation of financial information based on the 
identified ‘roles’ of the primary financial statements (PFS) and the notes. 
 
In addition, narrow-scope amendments have been made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, which include changing 
the starting point for determining cash flows from operations under the indirect method, from ‘profit or loss’ to 
‘operating profit or loss’ and removing the optionality around classification of cash flows from dividends and 
interest. In addition, there are consequential amendments to several other standards.  
 
IFRS 18, and the amendments to the other standards, is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2027, but earlier application is permitted and must be disclosed. IFRS 18 will apply retrospectively. The Group is 
currently working to identify all impacts the amendments will have on the primary financial statements and notes to 
the financial statements. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION  
 (continued) 
 
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued) 
 
2.4.4   IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 
In May 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 19, which allows eligible entities to elect to apply its reduced disclosure 
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements in other IFRS 
accounting standards. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in 
IFRS 10, cannot have public accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares 
consolidated financial statements, available for public use, which comply with IFRS accounting standards. IFRS 19 
will become effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early application permitted.  
 
As the Group’s equity instruments are publicly traded, it is not eligible to elect to apply IFRS 19. 
 
2.5       MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
 
Business combinations and goodwill 
 
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the 
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs 
incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses. 
 
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification 
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. No 
reclassification of insurance contracts is required as part of the accounting for the business combination. Thus, 
insurance contracts are classified on the basis of the contractual terms and other factors at the inception of the contract 
or modification date. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition 
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Any contingent consideration will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent measurement takes 
place at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount 
recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value 
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has 
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to 
measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an excess of the fair 
value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income. 
 
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the 
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets 
or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 
 
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the 
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when 
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based 
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION  
 (continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts 
Definition and classification 
Insurance contracts are contracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance risk from a policyholder by 
agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. In 
making this assessment, all substantive rights and obligations, including those arising from law or regulation, are 
considered on a contract-by-contract basis. The Group uses judgement to assess whether a contract transfers 
insurance risk (i.e., if there is a scenario with commercial substance in which the Group has the possibility of a loss 
on a present value basis) and whether the accepted insurance risk is significant. 
 
Contracts that have a legal form of insurance but do not transfer significant insurance risk and expose the Group to 
financial risk are classified as investment contracts and follow financial instruments accounting under IFRS 9. 
 
Unit of account 
The Group manages insurance contracts issued by product lines within an operating segment, where each product 
line includes contracts that are subject to similar risks. All insurance contracts within a product line represent a 
portfolio of contracts. Each portfolio is further disaggregated into Groups of contracts that are issued within a 
calendar year (annual cohorts) and are: 

• contracts that are onerous at initial recognition; or 
• a Group of remaining contracts. These Groups represent the level of aggregation at which insurance 

contracts are initially recognized and measured. Such Groups are not subsequently reconsidered. 
 
For each portfolio of contracts, the Group determines the appropriate level at which reasonable and supportable 
information is available to assess whether these contracts are onerous at initial recognition and others. This level of 
granularity determines sets of contracts. The Group uses significant judgement to determine at what level of 
granularity the Group has reasonable and supportable information that is sufficient to conclude that all contracts 
within a set are sufficiently homogeneous and will be allocated to the same Group without performing an individual 
contract assessment. 
 
For life risk and savings product lines, sets of contracts usually correspond to policyholder pricing Groups that the 
Group determined to have similar insurance risk and that are priced within the same insurance rate ranges. The 
Group monitors the profitability of contracts within portfolios and the likelihood of changes in insurance, financial 
and other exposures resulting in these contracts becoming onerous at the level of these pricing Groups with no 
information available at a more granular level. 
 
Portfolios of reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation separately from portfolios of insurance contracts 
issued. Applying the grouping requirements to reinsurance contracts held, the Group aggregates reinsurance 
contracts held concluded within a calendar year (annual cohorts) into groups of  

• contracts for which there is a net gain at initial recognition, if any;  
• contracts for which at initial recognition there is no significant possibility of a net gain arising subsequently; 

and  
• remaining contracts in the portfolio, if any. 

 
Reinsurance contracts held are assessed for aggregation requirements on an individual contract basis. The Group 
tracks internal management information reflecting historical experiences of such contracts’ performance. This 
information is used for setting pricing of these contracts such that they result in reinsurance contracts held in a net 
cost position without a significant possibility of a net gain arising subsequently. 
 
Before the Group accounts for an insurance contract based on the guidance in IFRS 17, it analyses whether the 
contract contains components that should be separated. IFRS 17 distinguishes three categories of components that 
have to be accounted for separately: 

• cash flows relating to embedded derivatives that are required to be separated; 
• cash flows relating to distinct investment components; and 
• promises to transfer distinct goods or distinct non-insurance services. 

 
The Group applies IFRS 17 to all remaining components of the contract. The Group does not have any contracts that 
require further separation or combination of insurance contracts and contain embedded derivatives or distinct 
investment. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION  
 (continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Recognition  
Groups of insurance contracts issued are initially recognized from the earliest of the following: 

• the beginning of the coverage period; 
• the date when the first payment from the policyholder is due or actually received, if there is no due date; 

and, 
• when the Group determines that a Group of contracts becomes onerous. 

 
Insurance contracts acquired in a business combination, or a portfolio transfer are accounted for as if they were 
entered into at the date of acquisition or transfer. 
 
A Group of reinsurance contracts held that covers the losses of separate insurance contracts on a proportionate basis 
(proportionate or quota share reinsurance) is recognized at the later of: 

• the beginning of the coverage period of the group; or 
• the initial recognition of any underlying insurance contract. 

 
The Group does not recognize a group of quota share reinsurance contracts held until it has recognized at least one 
of the underlying insurance contracts. 
 
A Group of reinsurance contracts held that covers aggregate losses from underlying contracts in excess of a specified 
amount (non-proportionate reinsurance contracts, such as excess of loss reinsurance) is recognized at the beginning 
of the coverage period of that Group. 
 
Only contracts that meet the recognition criteria by the end of the reporting period are included in the Groups. When 
contracts meet the recognition criteria in the Groups after the reporting date, they are added to the Groups in the 
reporting period in which they meet the recognition criteria, subject to the annual cohorts’ restriction. Composition 
of the Groups is not reassessed in subsequent periods. 
 
Contract modification and derecognition 
An insurance contract is derecognized when it is: 

• extinguished (i.e., when the obligation specified in the insurance contract expires or is discharged or 
cancelled); or 

• the contract is modified, and certain additional criteria are met. 
 
When an insurance contract is modified by the Group as a result of an agreement with the counterparties or due to a 
change in regulations, the Group treats changes in cash flows caused by the modification as changes in estimates of 
the FCF, unless the conditions for the derecognition of the original contract are met. The Group derecognizes the 
original contract and recognizes the modified contract as a new contract if any of the following conditions are 
present: 

a. if the modified terms had been included at contract inception and the Group would have concluded 
that the modified contract: 
i. is not in scope of IFRS 17; 
ii. results in different separable components; 
iii. results in a different contract boundary; or 
iv. belongs to a different group of contracts; 

b. the original contract represents an insurance contract with direct participation features, but the 
modified contract no longer meets that definition, or vice versa; or 

c. the original contract was accounted for under the PAA, but the modification means that the contract 
no longer meets the eligibility criteria for that approach. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION  
 (continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Contract modification and derecognition (continued) 
When an insurance contract not accounted for under the PAA is derecognized from within a Group of insurance 
contracts, the group: 
 

a. Adjusts the FCF to eliminate the present value of future cash flows and risk adjustment for non-financial 
risk relating to the rights and obligations removed from the Group. 

b. Adjusts the CSM (unless the decrease in the FCF is allocated to the loss component of the LRC of the 
Group) in the following manner, depending on the reason for the derecognition: 
i. If the contract is extinguished, in the same amount as the adjustment to the FCF relating to future 

service. 
ii. If the contract is transferred to a third party, in the amount of the FCF adjustment in (a) less the premium 

charged by the third party. 
iii. If the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, in the amount of the FCF adjustment 

in a. adjusted for the premium the Group would have charged had it entered into a contract with 
equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract modification, less any additional 
premium charged for the modification. When recognizing the new contract in this case, the Group 
assumes such a hypothetical premium as actually received. 

c. Adjusts the number of coverage units for the expected remaining coverage to reflect the number of coverage 
units removed. 
 

When an insurance contract accounted for under the PAA is derecognized, adjustments to the FCF to remove relating 
rights and obligations and account for the effect of the derecognition result in the following amounts being charged 
immediately to profit or loss: 
 

a. if the contract is extinguished, any net difference between the derecognized part of the LRC of the original 
contract and any other cash flows arising from extinguishment; 

b. if the contract is transferred to the third party, any net difference between the derecognized part of the LRC 
of the original contract and the premium charged by the third party; 

c. if the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, any net difference between the 
derecognized part of the LRC and the hypothetical premium the entity would have charged had it entered 
into a contract with equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract modification, less any 
additional premium charged for the modification. 

 
Fulfilment cash flows 
Fulfilment cash flows within contract boundary 
The FCF are the current estimates of the future cash flows within the contract boundary of a Group of contracts that 
the Group expects to collect from premiums and pay out for claims, benefits and expenses, adjusted to reflect the 
timing and the uncertainty of those amounts. 
 
The estimates of future cash flows: 

(a) are based on a probability weighted mean of the full range of possible outcomes. 
(b) are determined from the perspective of the Group, provided the estimates are consistent with observable 

market prices for market variables; and 
(c) reflect conditions existing at the measurement date. 

 
An explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk is estimated separately from the other estimates. For contracts 
measured under the PAA, unless the contracts are onerous, the explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk is only 
estimated for the measurement of the LIC. 
 
The estimates of future cash flows are adjusted using the current discount rates to reflect the time value of money 
and the financial risks related to those cash flows, to the extent not included in the estimates of cash flows. The 
discount rates reflect the characteristics of the cash flows arising from the Groups of insurance contracts, including 
timing, currency and liquidity of cash flows. The determination of the discount rate that reflects the characteristics 
of the cash flows and liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts requires significant judgement and 
estimation.  
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION  
 (continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Contract modification and derecognition (continued) 
When an insurance contract not accounted for under the PAA is derecognized from within a Group of insurance 
contracts, the group: 
 

a. Adjusts the FCF to eliminate the present value of future cash flows and risk adjustment for non-financial 
risk relating to the rights and obligations removed from the Group. 

b. Adjusts the CSM (unless the decrease in the FCF is allocated to the loss component of the LRC of the 
Group) in the following manner, depending on the reason for the derecognition: 
i. If the contract is extinguished, in the same amount as the adjustment to the FCF relating to future 

service. 
ii. If the contract is transferred to a third party, in the amount of the FCF adjustment in (a) less the premium 

charged by the third party. 
iii. If the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, in the amount of the FCF adjustment 

in a. adjusted for the premium the Group would have charged had it entered into a contract with 
equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract modification, less any additional 
premium charged for the modification. When recognizing the new contract in this case, the Group 
assumes such a hypothetical premium as actually received. 

c. Adjusts the number of coverage units for the expected remaining coverage to reflect the number of coverage 
units removed. 
 

When an insurance contract accounted for under the PAA is derecognized, adjustments to the FCF to remove relating 
rights and obligations and account for the effect of the derecognition result in the following amounts being charged 
immediately to profit or loss: 
 

a. if the contract is extinguished, any net difference between the derecognized part of the LRC of the original 
contract and any other cash flows arising from extinguishment; 

b. if the contract is transferred to the third party, any net difference between the derecognized part of the LRC 
of the original contract and the premium charged by the third party; 

c. if the original contract is modified resulting in its derecognition, any net difference between the 
derecognized part of the LRC and the hypothetical premium the entity would have charged had it entered 
into a contract with equivalent terms as the new contract at the date of the contract modification, less any 
additional premium charged for the modification. 

 
Fulfilment cash flows 
Fulfilment cash flows within contract boundary 
The FCF are the current estimates of the future cash flows within the contract boundary of a Group of contracts that 
the Group expects to collect from premiums and pay out for claims, benefits and expenses, adjusted to reflect the 
timing and the uncertainty of those amounts. 
 
The estimates of future cash flows: 

(a) are based on a probability weighted mean of the full range of possible outcomes. 
(b) are determined from the perspective of the Group, provided the estimates are consistent with observable 

market prices for market variables; and 
(c) reflect conditions existing at the measurement date. 

 
An explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk is estimated separately from the other estimates. For contracts 
measured under the PAA, unless the contracts are onerous, the explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk is only 
estimated for the measurement of the LIC. 
 
The estimates of future cash flows are adjusted using the current discount rates to reflect the time value of money 
and the financial risks related to those cash flows, to the extent not included in the estimates of cash flows. The 
discount rates reflect the characteristics of the cash flows arising from the Groups of insurance contracts, including 
timing, currency and liquidity of cash flows. The determination of the discount rate that reflects the characteristics 
of the cash flows and liquidity characteristics of the insurance contracts requires significant judgement and 
estimation.  
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Fulfilment cash flows within contract boundary (continued) 
Risk of the Group’s non-performance is not included in the measurement of Groups of insurance contracts issued. 
 
In the measurement of reinsurance contracts held, the probability weighted estimates of the present value of future 
cash flows include the potential credit losses and other disputes of the reinsurer to reflect the non-performance risk 
of the reinsurer. 
 
The Group estimates certain FCF at the portfolio level or higher and then allocates such estimates to Groups of 
contracts. The Group uses consistent assumptions to measure the estimates of the present value of future cash flows 
for the group of reinsurance contracts held and such estimates for the Groups of underlying insurance contracts. 
 
Contract boundary 
The Group uses the concept of contract boundary to determine what cash flows should be considered in the 
measurement of Groups of insurance contracts. This assessment is reviewed every reporting period. 
 
Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance contract if they arise from the rights and obligations that exist 
during the period in which the policyholder is obligated to pay premiums, or the Group has a substantive obligation to 
provide the policyholder with insurance coverage or other services. A substantive obligation ends when: 
 

a) the Group has the practical ability to reprice the risks of the particular policyholder or change the level of 
benefits so that the price fully reflects those risks; or 

b) both of the following criteria are satisfied: 
i. the Group has the practical ability to reprice the contract or a portfolio of contracts so that the price fully 

reflects the reassessed risk of that portfolio; and 
ii. the pricing of premiums related to coverage to the date when risks are reassessed does not reflect the risks 

related to periods beyond the reassessment date. 
 
In assessing the practical ability to reprice, risks transferred from the policyholder to the Group, such as insurance risk 
and financial risk, are considered; other risks, such as lapse or surrender and expense risk, are not included. 
 
Riders, representing add-on provisions to a basic insurance policy that provide additional benefits to the policyholder 
at additional cost, that are issued together with the main insurance contracts form part of a single insurance contract 
with all the cash flows within its boundary. 
 
Some insurance contracts issued by the Group provide policyholders with an option to buy an annuity upon the initially 
issued policies maturity. The Group assesses its practical ability to reprice such insurance contracts in their entirety to 
determine if annuity-related cash flows are within or outside of the insurance contract boundary. As a result of this 
assessment, non-guaranteed annuity options are not measured by the Group until they are exercised. 
 
Cash flows outside the insurance contracts boundary relate to future insurance contracts and are recognized when those 
contracts meet the recognition criteria. 
 
Cash flows that are not directly attributable to a portfolio of insurance contracts, such as some product development 
and training costs, are recognized in other operating expenses as incurred. 
 
Measurement Model Application 
The Group applies the Premium Allocation Approach (PAA) to all the insurance contracts that it issues and reinsurance 
contracts that it holds for which the coverage period is less than one year.  For other contracts issued and held where 
the coverage period is more than one year, the Group performs PAA Eligibility testing as disclosed in Note 2.3 to 
confirm whether the PAA may be applied. Subject to passing the PAA eligibility testing, the Group applied PAA on 
contract issued and reinsurance contracts held that pass the testing. Hence, General Measurement Model (GMM) has 
been applied for Individual Life portfolio. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Measurement Model Application (continued) 
When measuring liabilities for remaining coverage (LRC), the PAA is broadly similar to the Group’s previous 
accounting treatment under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Group now discounts 
cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and includes 
an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.  
 
Initial measurement – Groups of contracts not measured under the PAA -contractual service margin (CSM) 
The CSM is a component of the carrying amount of the asset or liability for a Group of insurance contracts issued 
representing the unearned profit that the Group will recognize as it provides coverage in the future. 
 
At initial recognition, the CSM is an amount that results in no income or expenses (unless a Group of contracts is 
onerous) arising from: 

a) the initial recognition of the FCF;  
b) the derecognition at the date of initial recognition of any asset or liability recognized for insurance acquisition 

cash flows; and 
c) cash flows arising from the contracts in the Group at that date. 

 
A negative CSM at the date of inception means the group of insurance contracts issued is onerous. A loss from onerous 
insurance contracts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income immediately with no CSM recognized on the 
balance sheet on initial recognition. 
 
For groups of reinsurance contracts held, any net gain or loss at initial recognition is recognized as the CSM unless the 
net cost of purchasing reinsurance relates to past events, in which case the Group recognizes the net cost immediately 
in the consolidated statement of income. For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM represents a deferred gain or loss that 
the Group will recognize as a reinsurance expense as it receives reinsurance coverage in the future. 
 
For insurance contracts acquired through business combination, at initial recognition, the CSM is an amount that results 
in no income or expenses arising from: 

a) the initial recognition of the FCF; and 
b) cash flows arising from the contracts in the Group at that date, including the fair value of the groups of 

contracts acquired at the acquisition date as a proxy of the premiums received. 
 
No contracts acquired were assessed as onerous at initial recognition. 
 
Subsequent measurement – Groups of contracts not measured under the PAA 
The carrying amount at the end of each reporting period of a group of insurance contracts issued is the sum of: 

a) the LRC, comprising: 
i. the FCF related to future service allocated to the Group at that date; and 
ii. the CSM of the Group at that date; and 

b) the LIC, comprising the FCF related to past service allocated to the Group at the reporting date. 
  
The carrying amount at the end of each reporting period of a group of reinsurance contracts held is the sum of: 

a) the remaining coverage, comprising: 
i. the FCF related to future service allocated to the Group at that date; and 
ii. the CSM of the Group at that date; and 

b) the incurred claims, comprising the FCF related to past service allocated to the Group at the reporting date. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Changes in fulfilment cash flows 
The FCF are updated by the Group for current assumptions at the end of every reporting period, using the current 
estimates of the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and of discount rates. 
 
The way in which the changes in estimates of the FCF are treated depends on which estimate is being updated: 

a) changes that relate to current or past service are recognized in the consolidated statement of income; and 
b) changes that relate to future service are recognized by adjusting the CSM or the loss component within the 

LRC as per the policy below. 
 
For insurance contracts under the GMM, the following adjustments relate to future service and thus adjust the CSM: 

a) experience adjustments arising from premiums received in the period that relate to future service and related 
cash flows such as insurance acquisition cash flows and premium-based taxes; 

b) changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the LRC, except those described in the 
following paragraph; 

c) differences between any investment component expected to become payable in the period and the actual 
investment component that becomes payable in the period; and 

d) changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future service. 
 
Adjustments a, b and c above are measured using the locked-in discount rates as described in the section Interest 
accretion on the CSM below. 
 
For insurance contracts under the GMM, the following adjustments do not relate to future service and thus do not adjust 
the CSM: 

a) changes in the FCF for the effect of the time value of money and the effect of financial risk and changes 
thereof; 

b) changes in the FCF relating to the LIC; and 
c) experience adjustments relating to insurance service expenses (excluding insurance acquisition cash flows). 

 
The Group does not have any products with complex guarantees and does not use derivatives to economically hedge 
the risks. 
 

Changes to the contractual service margin 
For insurance contracts issued, at the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of the CSM is adjusted by the 
Group to reflect the effect of the following changes: 

a) The effect of any new contracts added to the Group. 
b) For contracts measured under the GMM, interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM. 
c) Changes in the FCF relating to future service are recognized by adjusting the CSM. Changes in the FCF are 

recognized in the CSM to the extent the CSM is available. When an increase in the FCF exceeds the carrying 
amount of the CSM, the CSM is reduced to zero, the excess is recognized in insurance service expenses and 
a loss component is recognized within the LRC. When the CSM is zero, changes in the FCF adjust the loss 
component within the LRC with correspondence to insurance service expenses. The excess of any decrease 
in the FCF over the loss component reduces the loss component to zero and reinstates the CSM. 

d) The effect of any currency exchange differences. 
e) The amount recognized as insurance revenue for services provided during the period determined after all other 

adjustments above. 
 
For a  group of reinsurance contracts held, the carrying amount of the CSM at the end of each reporting period is 
adjusted to reflect changes in the FCF in the same manner as a group of underlying insurance contracts issued, except 
that when underlying contracts are onerous and thus changes in the underlying FCF related to future service are 
recognized in insurance service expenses by adjusting the loss component, respective changes in the FCF of reinsurance 
contracts held are also recognized in the insurance service result. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Measurement Model Application (continued) 
When measuring liabilities for remaining coverage (LRC), the PAA is broadly similar to the Group’s previous 
accounting treatment under IFRS 4. However, when measuring liabilities for incurred claims, the Group now discounts 
cash flows that are expected to occur more than one year after the date on which the claims are incurred and includes 
an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk.  
 
Initial measurement – Groups of contracts not measured under the PAA -contractual service margin (CSM) 
The CSM is a component of the carrying amount of the asset or liability for a Group of insurance contracts issued 
representing the unearned profit that the Group will recognize as it provides coverage in the future. 
 
At initial recognition, the CSM is an amount that results in no income or expenses (unless a Group of contracts is 
onerous) arising from: 

a) the initial recognition of the FCF;  
b) the derecognition at the date of initial recognition of any asset or liability recognized for insurance acquisition 

cash flows; and 
c) cash flows arising from the contracts in the Group at that date. 

 
A negative CSM at the date of inception means the group of insurance contracts issued is onerous. A loss from onerous 
insurance contracts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income immediately with no CSM recognized on the 
balance sheet on initial recognition. 
 
For groups of reinsurance contracts held, any net gain or loss at initial recognition is recognized as the CSM unless the 
net cost of purchasing reinsurance relates to past events, in which case the Group recognizes the net cost immediately 
in the consolidated statement of income. For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM represents a deferred gain or loss that 
the Group will recognize as a reinsurance expense as it receives reinsurance coverage in the future. 
 
For insurance contracts acquired through business combination, at initial recognition, the CSM is an amount that results 
in no income or expenses arising from: 

a) the initial recognition of the FCF; and 
b) cash flows arising from the contracts in the Group at that date, including the fair value of the groups of 

contracts acquired at the acquisition date as a proxy of the premiums received. 
 
No contracts acquired were assessed as onerous at initial recognition. 
 
Subsequent measurement – Groups of contracts not measured under the PAA 
The carrying amount at the end of each reporting period of a group of insurance contracts issued is the sum of: 

a) the LRC, comprising: 
i. the FCF related to future service allocated to the Group at that date; and 
ii. the CSM of the Group at that date; and 

b) the LIC, comprising the FCF related to past service allocated to the Group at the reporting date. 
  
The carrying amount at the end of each reporting period of a group of reinsurance contracts held is the sum of: 

a) the remaining coverage, comprising: 
i. the FCF related to future service allocated to the Group at that date; and 
ii. the CSM of the Group at that date; and 

b) the incurred claims, comprising the FCF related to past service allocated to the Group at the reporting date. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Changes in fulfilment cash flows 
The FCF are updated by the Group for current assumptions at the end of every reporting period, using the current 
estimates of the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows and of discount rates. 
 
The way in which the changes in estimates of the FCF are treated depends on which estimate is being updated: 

a) changes that relate to current or past service are recognized in the consolidated statement of income; and 
b) changes that relate to future service are recognized by adjusting the CSM or the loss component within the 

LRC as per the policy below. 
 
For insurance contracts under the GMM, the following adjustments relate to future service and thus adjust the CSM: 

a) experience adjustments arising from premiums received in the period that relate to future service and related 
cash flows such as insurance acquisition cash flows and premium-based taxes; 

b) changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the LRC, except those described in the 
following paragraph; 

c) differences between any investment component expected to become payable in the period and the actual 
investment component that becomes payable in the period; and 

d) changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future service. 
 
Adjustments a, b and c above are measured using the locked-in discount rates as described in the section Interest 
accretion on the CSM below. 
 
For insurance contracts under the GMM, the following adjustments do not relate to future service and thus do not adjust 
the CSM: 

a) changes in the FCF for the effect of the time value of money and the effect of financial risk and changes 
thereof; 

b) changes in the FCF relating to the LIC; and 
c) experience adjustments relating to insurance service expenses (excluding insurance acquisition cash flows). 

 
The Group does not have any products with complex guarantees and does not use derivatives to economically hedge 
the risks. 
 

Changes to the contractual service margin 
For insurance contracts issued, at the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of the CSM is adjusted by the 
Group to reflect the effect of the following changes: 

a) The effect of any new contracts added to the Group. 
b) For contracts measured under the GMM, interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM. 
c) Changes in the FCF relating to future service are recognized by adjusting the CSM. Changes in the FCF are 

recognized in the CSM to the extent the CSM is available. When an increase in the FCF exceeds the carrying 
amount of the CSM, the CSM is reduced to zero, the excess is recognized in insurance service expenses and 
a loss component is recognized within the LRC. When the CSM is zero, changes in the FCF adjust the loss 
component within the LRC with correspondence to insurance service expenses. The excess of any decrease 
in the FCF over the loss component reduces the loss component to zero and reinstates the CSM. 

d) The effect of any currency exchange differences. 
e) The amount recognized as insurance revenue for services provided during the period determined after all other 

adjustments above. 
 
For a  group of reinsurance contracts held, the carrying amount of the CSM at the end of each reporting period is 
adjusted to reflect changes in the FCF in the same manner as a group of underlying insurance contracts issued, except 
that when underlying contracts are onerous and thus changes in the underlying FCF related to future service are 
recognized in insurance service expenses by adjusting the loss component, respective changes in the FCF of reinsurance 
contracts held are also recognized in the insurance service result. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Interest accretion on the CSM 
Under the GMM, interest is accreted on the CSM using discount rates determined at initial recognition that are applied 
to nominal cash flows that do not vary based on the returns of underlying items (locked-in discount rates). If more 
contracts are added to the existing Groups in the subsequent reporting periods, the Group revises the locked- in discount 
curves by calculating weighted-average discount curves over the period that contracts in the Group are issued. The 
weighted-average discount curves are determined by multiplying the new CSM added to the Group and their 
corresponding discount curves over the total CSM. 
 
Adjusting the CSM for changes in the FCF relating to future service 
The CSM is adjusted for changes in the FCF measured applying the discount rates as specified above in the Changes 
in fulfilment cash flows section. 
 
Release of the CSM to consolidated statement of income 
The amount of the CSM recognized in the consolidated statement of income for services in the period is determined by 
the allocation of the CSM remaining at the end of the reporting period over the current and remaining expected coverage 
period of the group of insurance contracts based on coverage units. 
 
For contracts issued, the Group determines the coverage period for the CSM recognition for term life and universal life 
insurance contracts, the coverage period corresponds to the policy coverage for mortality risk. 
 
The total number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of coverage provided by the contracts in the group over 
the expected coverage period. The coverage units are determined at each reporting period-end prospectively by 
considering: 

a) the quantity of benefits provided by contracts in the Group; 
b) the expected coverage duration of contracts in the Group; and 
c) the likelihood of insured events occurring, only to the extent that they affect the expected duration of 

contracts in the Group. 
 
The Group uses the amount that it expects the policyholder to be able to validly claim in each period if an insured event 
occurs as the basis for the quantity of benefits. 
 
The Group determines coverage units for Individual Life contracts acquired in the run-off period, coverage units are 
based on the expected amount of payment covered in the period and the expected amount of claims remaining to be 
covered in future periods. 
 
The Group reflects the time value of money in the allocation of the CSM to coverage units except for the contracts 
acquired in the run-off period for the Individual Life portfolio. 
 
For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM is released to profit or loss as services are received from the reinsurer in the 
period. 
 
Coverage units for the proportionate term life reinsurance contracts are based on the insurance coverage provided by 
the reinsurer and are determined by the ceded policies’ fixed face values taking into account new business projected 
within the reinsurance contract boundary. 
 
The coverage period for these contracts is determined based on the coverage of all underlying contracts whose cash 
flows are included in the reinsurance contract boundary. Refer to the Contract boundary section stated above. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Interest accretion on the CSM 
Under the GMM, interest is accreted on the CSM using discount rates determined at initial recognition that are applied 
to nominal cash flows that do not vary based on the returns of underlying items (locked-in discount rates). If more 
contracts are added to the existing Groups in the subsequent reporting periods, the Group revises the locked- in discount 
curves by calculating weighted-average discount curves over the period that contracts in the Group are issued. The 
weighted-average discount curves are determined by multiplying the new CSM added to the Group and their 
corresponding discount curves over the total CSM. 
 
Adjusting the CSM for changes in the FCF relating to future service 
The CSM is adjusted for changes in the FCF measured applying the discount rates as specified above in the Changes 
in fulfilment cash flows section. 
 
Release of the CSM to consolidated statement of income 
The amount of the CSM recognized in the consolidated statement of income for services in the period is determined by 
the allocation of the CSM remaining at the end of the reporting period over the current and remaining expected coverage 
period of the group of insurance contracts based on coverage units. 
 
For contracts issued, the Group determines the coverage period for the CSM recognition for term life and universal life 
insurance contracts, the coverage period corresponds to the policy coverage for mortality risk. 
 
The total number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of coverage provided by the contracts in the group over 
the expected coverage period. The coverage units are determined at each reporting period-end prospectively by 
considering: 

a) the quantity of benefits provided by contracts in the Group; 
b) the expected coverage duration of contracts in the Group; and 
c) the likelihood of insured events occurring, only to the extent that they affect the expected duration of 

contracts in the Group. 
 
The Group uses the amount that it expects the policyholder to be able to validly claim in each period if an insured event 
occurs as the basis for the quantity of benefits. 
 
The Group determines coverage units for Individual Life contracts acquired in the run-off period, coverage units are 
based on the expected amount of payment covered in the period and the expected amount of claims remaining to be 
covered in future periods. 
 
The Group reflects the time value of money in the allocation of the CSM to coverage units except for the contracts 
acquired in the run-off period for the Individual Life portfolio. 
 
For reinsurance contracts held, the CSM is released to profit or loss as services are received from the reinsurer in the 
period. 
 
Coverage units for the proportionate term life reinsurance contracts are based on the insurance coverage provided by 
the reinsurer and are determined by the ceded policies’ fixed face values taking into account new business projected 
within the reinsurance contract boundary. 
 
The coverage period for these contracts is determined based on the coverage of all underlying contracts whose cash 
flows are included in the reinsurance contract boundary. Refer to the Contract boundary section stated above. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Onerous contracts – Loss component on GMM 
When adjustments to the CSM exceed the amount of the CSM, the group of contracts becomes onerous, and the Group 
recognizes the excess in insurance service expenses and records it as a loss component of the LRC. 
 
When a loss component exists, the Group allocates the following between the loss component and the remaining 
component of the LRC for the respective group of contracts, based on the ratio of the loss component to the FCF relating 
to the expected future cash outflows: 

a) expected incurred claims and expenses for the period; 
b) changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk for the risk expired; and 
c) finance income (expenses) from insurance contracts issued. 

 
The amounts of loss component allocation in a. and b. above reduce the respective components of insurance revenue 
and are reflected in insurance service expenses. 
 
Decreases in the FCF in subsequent periods reduce the remaining loss component and reinstate the CSM after the loss 
component is reduced to zero. Increases in the FCF in subsequent periods increase the loss component. 
 
Initial and subsequent measurement – Groups of contracts measured under the PAA 
The Group uses the PAA for measuring contracts with a coverage period of one year or less and on contracts that pass 
the eligibility testing as stated above.  
 
The excess of loss reinsurance contracts held provide coverage on the insurance contracts originated for claims incurred 
during an accident year and are accounted for under the PAA. 
 
For insurance contracts issued, on initial recognition, the Group measures the LRC at the amount of premiums received, 
less any acquisition cash flows paid and any amounts arising from the derecognition of the prepaid acquisition cash 
flows asset. 
 
For reinsurance contracts held on initial recognition, the Group measures the remaining coverage at the amount of 
ceding premiums paid. 
 
The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts issued at the end of each reporting period is the sum of: 

a) the LRC; and 
b) the LIC, comprising the FCF related to past service allocated to the group at the reporting date. 

 
The carrying amount of a group of reinsurance contracts held at the end of each reporting period is the sum of: 

a) the remaining coverage; and 
b) the incurred claims, comprising the FCF related to past service allocated to the group at the reporting date. 

 
For insurance contracts issued, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the LRC is: 

a) increased for premiums received in the period; 
b) decreased for insurance acquisition cash flows paid in the period; 
c) decreased for the amounts of expected premiums received recognized as insurance revenue for the services 

provided in the period; and 
d) increased for the amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows in the period recognized as insurance service 

expenses. 
 
For reinsurance contracts held, at each of the subsequent reporting dates, the remaining coverage is: 

a) increased for ceding premiums paid in the period; and 
b) decreased for the amounts of ceding premiums recognized as reinsurance expenses for the services received 

in the period. 
 
The Group does not adjust the LRC for insurance contracts issued and the remaining coverage for reinsurance contracts 
held for the effect of the time value of money as insurance premiums are due within the coverage of contracts, which 
is one year or less. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Initial and subsequent measurement – Groups of contracts measured under the PAA (continued) 
For contracts measured under the PAA, the LIC is measured similarly to the LIC’s measurement under the GMM. 
Future cash flows are adjusted for the time value of money since motor insurance contracts issued by the Group and 
measured under the PAA typically have a settlement period of over one year. 
 
Onerous contracts – Loss component on PAA 
For all contracts measured under PAA, the Group assumes that no such contracts are onerous at initial recognition, 
unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. 
 
For non-onerous contracts, the Group assesses the likelihood of changes in the applicable facts and circumstances in 
the subsequent periods in determining whether contracts have a significant possibility of becoming onerous.  
 
In addition, if facts and circumstances indicate that some contracts are onerous, an additional assessment is performed 
to distinguish onerous contracts from non-onerous ones. Once a group of contracts is determined as onerous on initial 
or subsequent assessment, loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of income in insurance service 
expense. 
 
The loss component is then amortized to the consolidated statement of income over the coverage period to offset 
incurred claims in insurance service expense. If facts and circumstances indicate that the expected profitability of the 
onerous group during the remaining coverage has changed, then the Group remeasures the same and adjusts the loss 
component as required until the loss component is reduced to zero. The loss component is measured on a gross basis 
but may be mitigated by a loss recovery component if the contracts are covered by reinsurance.  
 
Insurance acquisition costs 
The Group includes the following acquisition cash flows within the insurance contract boundary that arise from selling, 
underwriting and starting a group of insurance contracts and that are: 
 

a) costs directly attributable to individual contracts and groups of contracts; and 
b) costs directly attributable to the portfolio of insurance contracts to which the group belongs, which are 

allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to measure the group of insurance contracts. 
 
The acquisition costs are generally capitalized and recognized in the consolidated statement of income over the life of 
the contracts. However, for contracts under PAA approach, there is an option to recognize any insurance acquisition 
cash flows as an expense when the Group incurs those costs. The Group has elected not to choose the option in the 
insurance contracts and has capitalized the costs which would then be recognized over the life of contracts. No separate 
asset is recognized for deferred acquisition costs. Instead, qualifying insurance acquisition cash flows are subsumed 
into the insurance liability for remaining coverage. 
 
Risk adjustment for non-financial risk  
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is applied to the present value of the estimated future cash flows, and it 
reflects the compensation that the Group requires for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash 
flows from non-financial risk as the Group fulfils insurance contracts.  
 
The Group has chosen a confidence level based on the 65% for Motor Comprehensive, Medical and Group Life and 
70% for the rest of the segments of the distribution of the claim reserves, considering the confidence level is adequate 
to cover sources of uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows. 
 
For reinsurance contracts held, the risk adjustment for non-financial risk represents the amount of risk being transferred 
by the Group to the reinsurer. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for Insurance service result from 
insurance contracts issued 
 
Insurance revenue 
As the Group provides services under the group of insurance contracts, it reduces the LRC and recognizes insurance 
revenue. The amount of insurance revenue recognized in the reporting period depicts the transfer of promised services 
at an amount that reflects the portion of consideration the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for those services. 
 
For contracts not measured under the PAA, insurance revenue comprises the following: 

• Amounts relating to the changes in the LRC: 
a. insurance claims and expenses incurred in the period measured at the amounts expected at the beginning 

of the period, excluding: 
i. amounts related to the loss component; 
ii. repayments of investment components; 
iii. amounts of transaction-based taxes collected in a fiduciary capacity; and 
iv. insurance acquisition expenses; 

b. changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, excluding: 
i. changes included in insurance finance income (expenses); 
ii. changes that relate to future coverage (which adjust the CSM); and 
iii. amounts allocated to the loss component; 

c. amounts of the CSM recognized in statement of income for the services provided in the period; and 
d. experience adjustments arising from premiums received in the period that relate to past and current service 

and related cash flows such as insurance acquisition cash flows and premium-based taxes. 
  

• Insurance acquisition cash flows recovery is determined by allocating the portion of premiums related to the 
recovery of those cash flows on the basis of the passage of time over the expected coverage of a group of 
contracts. 

 
For groups of insurance contracts measured under the PAA, the Group recognizes insurance revenue based on the 
passage of time over the coverage period of a Group of contracts. 
 
Insurance revenue is adjusted to allow for policyholders’ default on future premiums. The default probability is derived 
from the expected loss model prescribed under IFRS 9. 
 
Insurance service expenses 
Insurance service expenses include the following: 

a) incurred claims and benefits excluding investment components; 
b) other incurred directly attributable insurance service expenses; 
c) Insurance acquisitions costs incurred and amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows; 
d) changes that relate to past service (i.e. changes in the FCF relating to the LIC); and 
e) changes that relate to future service (i.e. losses/reversals on onerous groups of contracts from changes in the 

loss components). 
 

For contracts not measured under the PAA, amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows is reflected in insurance 
service expenses in the same amount as insurance acquisition cash flows recovery reflected within insurance revenue 
as described above. 
 
For contracts measured under the PAA, amortization of insurance acquisition cash flows is based on the passage of 
time. 
 
Other expenses not meeting the above categories are included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statement 
of income. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Insurance Contracts (continued) 
 
Amounts recognized in consolidated comprehensive income for Insurance service result from reinsurance 
contracts held  
 
Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held 
The Group presents financial performance of groups of reinsurance contracts held on a net basis between the amounts 
recoverable from reinsurers and allocation of the premiums for reinsurance contracts held, comprising the following 
amounts:  

a) reinsurance expenses; 
b) incurred claims recovery; 
c) other incurred directly attributable insurance service expenses; 
d) effect of changes in risk of reinsurer non-performance; 
e) for contracts measured under the GMM, changes that relate to future service (i.e. changes in the 

FCF that do not adjust the CSM for the group of underlying insurance contracts); and 
f) changes relating to past service (i.e. adjustments to incurred claims). 

 
Reinsurance expenses are recognized similarly to insurance revenue. The amount of reinsurance expenses recognized 
in the reporting period depicts the transfer of received services at an amount that reflects the portion of ceding premiums 
the Group expects to pay in exchange for those services. 
 
For contracts not measured under the PAA, reinsurance expenses comprise the following amounts relating to changes 
in the remaining coverage: 

a) insurance claims and other expenses recovery in the period measured at the amounts expected to be incurred 
at the beginning of the period, excluding repayments of investment components. 

b) changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, excluding: 
- changes included in finance income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held; and 
- changes that relate to future coverage (which adjust the CSM); 

c) amounts of the CSM recognized in consolidated statement of income for the services received in the period; 
and 

d) ceded premium experience adjustments relating to past and current service. 
 
For groups of reinsurance contracts held measured under the PAA, the Group recognizes reinsurance expenses based 
on the passage of time over the coverage period of a group of contracts. 
 
Ceding commissions that are not contingent on claims of the underlying contracts issued reduce ceding premiums and 
are accounted for as part of reinsurance expenses. 
 
Insurance finance income or expenses 
Insurance finance income or expenses comprise the change in the carrying amount of the group of insurance contracts 
arising from: 

a) the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money; and 
b) the effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk. 

 
For contracts measured under the GMM, the main amounts within insurance finance income or expenses are: 

a) interest accreted on the FCF and the CSM; 
b) the effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions; and 
c) foreign exchange differences arising from contracts denominated in a foreign currency. 

 
For contracts measured under the PAA, the main amounts within insurance finance income or expenses are: 

a) interest accreted on the LIC; and 
b) the effect of changes in interest rates and other financial assumptions. 

 
The Group disaggregates changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk between insurance service result and 
insurance finance income or expenses.  
 
The Group does not disaggregate finance income and expenses because the related financial assets are managed on a 
fair value basis and measured at FVTPL.  
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Taxation 
Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) 

The Group calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% of profit for the year in accordance with the modified 
calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that the transfer to statutory reserve 
and accumulated losses brought forward should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the 
contribution.  
 
National Labour Support Tax (NLST) 
The Group calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions 
No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per law, income from associates and cash dividends from 
listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the profit for the year. 
 
Zakat 
Contribution to Zakat is calculated in accordance with the requirements of Ministry of Finance resolution No. 
58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007. 
 
Financial Instruments  
 
Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement  
To determine their classification and measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity 
instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a combination of the Group’s business model for managing the 
assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics. 
 

Business model assessment 
The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to 
achieve its business objective. That is, whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows 
from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If 
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are 
classified as part of ‘Sell’ business model. The Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as: 

➢ How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel; 

➢ The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed; 

➢ How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the 
fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected) 

 
The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s assessment. 
 
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ 
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Group's 
original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that 
business model but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial 
assets going forward. 
 
Assessment of whether contractual cashflows are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI test) 
The Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and 
Interest (the ‘SPPI test’). 

 
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition that may 
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the 
premium/discount). 
 
The most significant elements of profit within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time 
value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement and considers relevant 
factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the period for which the profit rate is 
set. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual 
cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and profit on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be 
measured at FVTPL. 
 
The Group reclassifies when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. The 
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting period following the change. Such changes are 
expected to be very infrequent. 
 
Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities 
The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets (fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available for sale 
(AFS), held-to-maturity and amortised cost) have been replaced by: 

➢ Debt instruments at amortised cost 
➢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), with gains or losses recycled 

to profit or loss on derecognition 
➢ Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition 
➢ Financial assets at FVTPL 

 
The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely the same as it was under IAS 39, except for the treatment of 
gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities designated at FVTPL. Such movements 
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of 
income. 
 
Under IFRS 9, embedded derivatives are no longer separated from a host financial asset. Instead, financial assets 
are classified based on the business model and their contractual terms. The accounting for derivatives embedded in 
financial liabilities and in non-financial host contracts has not changed. 
 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions: 

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 
and 

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
Debt instruments measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective yield 
method adjusted for impairment losses, if any. 
 
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are subject to 
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 
Since the Group’s financial assets (cash and cash equivalents and short term deposits) meet these conditions, they 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalent consist of cash on hand and at 
banks and short-term deposits and call accounts.  
 
Short- and long-term deposits  
Short-term deposits comprise of time deposits with banks with maturity periods of more than three months and less 
than one year from the date of acquisition. Long-term deposits represent time deposits with maturity periods of more 
than one year from the date of placement. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 
Equity instruments at FVOCI 
Upon initial recognition, the Group may elect to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity 
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation 
and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by- instrument basis. 
 
Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to the consolidated statement of income. Dividends 
are recognised in consolidated statement of income when the right of the payment has been established, except when 
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains 
are recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment 
assessment. Upon disposal cumulative gains or losses are reclassified from fair value reserve to retained earnings in 
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The management classifies certain equity investments at FVOCI 
and are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position. 
 
Debt instruments at FVOCI 
The Group applies the category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments measured at FVOCI when both of the following 
conditions are met: 

• The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; 

• The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test. 
 
This category only includes debt instruments, which the Group intends to hold for the foreseeable future, and which 
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions. The Group classified 
its debt instruments at FVOCI. Debt instruments at FVOCI are subject to an impairment assessment under IFRS 9. 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL 
The Group classifies financial assets fair value through profit and loss when they have been purchased or issued 
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments 
that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading 
assets are recorded and measured in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. In addition, on 
initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to 
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

 
Changes in fair values and dividends are recorded in consolidated statement of income according to the terms of the 
contract, or when the right to payment has been established.  
 
Included in this classification are certain equity securities that have been acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling or repurchasing in the near term and certain debt instruments that failed the SPPI test. 
 
Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when: 
 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.  
 the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either:  

(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or  
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has 

transferred control of the asset. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Derecognition (continued) 
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered pass-through 
arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred 
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that 
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured 
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 
 
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the 
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required 
to repay. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized cost 
and debt investments measured at FVOCI.  
 
The measurement of ECL reflects: 

• An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; 
• The time value of resources; and 
• Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date 

about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 
 
Expected credit losses are recognized in two stages, 12-month expected credit losses and Lifetime expected credit 
losses. 
The Group measures 12-month expected credit losses in following cases: 

• debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and 
• other financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial instrument, whereas 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit 
losses that results from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. In all cases, the 
maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the 
Group is exposed to credit risk. 
 
Credit impaired financial assets: 
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets measured at amortized cost and debt investments 
at FVOCI are credit impaired. The Group considers a financial asset to be in default (credit impaired) when contractual 
payments are past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when 
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts. A 
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 
 
The Group does, however, consider that there has been a significant increase in credit risk for a previously assessed 
low credit risk investment when any contractual payments on these instruments are past due or there is a downgrade in 
credit ratings by two notches or more compare to the credit rating at the beginning of the financial reporting period. 
 
Recognition of ECL  
Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Group considers that there are 
no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset (either partially or in full), the relevant amounts are written off. If the 
amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease is related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed in profit or loss. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

 
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 
 
Presentation of loss allowances in the consolidated statement of financial position: 
Loss allowances for expected credit losses are presented as follows: 

• financial assets measured at amortized cost: the loss allowance is deducted from the gross carrying amount of 
the assets; 

• the ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets 
in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance 
that would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income with a corresponding charge to the consolidated statement of income. 

 
The calculation of ECLs 
the management has applied the standard’s simplified approach and has determined lifetime expected credit losses 
on these instruments. The management has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical 
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the counter parties and the economic 
environment. The management considers a financial asset in default when the contractual payments are passing the 
default point. However, in certain cases, the management may also consider a financial asset to be in default when 
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts 
in full. 
 
Write offs 
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the 
recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated 
as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are 
credited to credit loss expense. There were no write-offs over the periods reported in these consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of 
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
(iii)       Financial liabilities  
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate.  
 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings and payables. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows: 
 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 
 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR.  
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Derecognition 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.  
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
Disclosures relating to impairment of non-financial assets are summarised in the following notes: 
a) Disclosures for significant assumptions 
 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.  
 
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
 
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs, to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. 
 
Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication 
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since 
the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
The following criteria are also applied in assessing impairment of goodwill: 
 
Goodwill 
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired. 
 
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to which 
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is less than their carrying amount, 
an impairment loss is recognised. 
 
Previously recorded impairment losses for goodwill are not reversed in future periods. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Property and equipment 
Property and equipment, including owner-occupied property is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day 
Servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property and equipment. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be 
replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Replacement or 
major inspection costs are capitalised when incurred, if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  
 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 Buildings 35 years 
 Furniture and equipment 5 years  
 Computers and software 5 to 8 years 
 
The assets’ residual values, and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 
An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is 
included in the consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognised.  
 
Projects under progress are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any, until projects are complete. Projects under 
progress includes costs for long-term projects if the recognition criteria are met. Upon the completion of projects, 
the costs of such asset together with the cost directly attributable to projects are transferred to the respective class of 
asset. No depreciation is charged on projects under progress. 
 
Investment in associates 
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint 
venture.  
 
The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine control 
over subsidiary. The Group’s investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method. 
 
Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial position 
at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill relating to an 
associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for 
impairment.  
 
The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associates. Any 
change in other comprehensive income of the associates is presented as part of the other comprehensive income of 
the Group. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group 
recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in 
equity.  
 
The aggregate of the Group’s share of result of an associate is included in the consolidated statement of income.  
 
The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group or to a date not earlier 
than three months of the Group’s reporting date using consistent accounting policies. Where practicable, adjustments 
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. 
 
After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment 
loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective 
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount 
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then 
recognises the impairment loss of investment in associates in the consolidated statement of income. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Investment in associates (continued) 
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at 
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the 
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of 
income. 
 
Fair value measurement 
The Group measures financial instruments such as available for sale investments, financial assets through profit or 
loss, at fair value at each reporting date. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
Assets, liabilities and equity items for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 
 
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value                      
 measurement is directly or indirectly observable; 

 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable. 

 
For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period.  
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above. 
 
Foreign currencies 
Transactions and balances  
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional 
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.  
 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates 
of exchange at the reporting date.  
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Foreign currencies (continued) 
Transactions and balances (continued) 
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
income.  
 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising 
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss 
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised 
in other comprehensive income or consolidated statement of income are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or consolidated statement of income, respectively). 
 
Cash dividend to equity holders of the Parent Company 
The Parent Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Parent Company when 
the distribution is authorised and it is no longer at the discretion of the Parent Company. A distribution is authorised 
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. Dividends for the 
year that are approved after the reporting date are not recognised as a liability at the reporting date. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a 
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement 
is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income net of 
any reimbursement. 
 
Revenue recognition 
Interest income 
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets classified as AFS, 
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or shorter period, where appropriate, 
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest is included in the net investment income in the consolidated 
statement of income.  
 
Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 
 
Net realised gains and losses 
Net realised gains and losses recorded in the consolidated statement of income include gains and losses on financial 
assets. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and 
the carrying value of the investments and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction. 
 
Finance cost 
Interest paid is recognised in the consolidated statement of income as it accrues and is calculated by using the EIR 
method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest bearing financial liability. 
 
Segment reporting  
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to 
risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments.  
 
Employees’ end of service benefits 
The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees in accordance with Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement 
to these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a 
minimum service period in accordance with relevant labour law and the employees’ contracts.  The expected costs 
of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.  This liability, which is unfunded, represents the amount 
payable to each employee as a result of termination on the reporting date. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 
 
Employees’ end of service benefits (continued) 
With respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to the Public Institution for Social Security 
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.  The Group’s obligations are limited to these contributions, 
which are expensed when due. 
 
Treasury shares 
Treasury shares consist of the Group’s own shares that have been issued, subsequently reacquired by the Group and 
not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method.  Under the cost method, 
the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra equity account.  When the treasury shares 
are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in equity (Treasury shares reserve) which is not distributable.  
Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess 
losses are charged to retained earnings then reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are 
first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the gain on sale of 
treasury shares account.  No cash dividends are paid on these shares.  The issue of bonus shares increases the number 
of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury 
shares. 
 
Contingent liabilities and assets 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.  They are disclosed unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognised 
in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
 
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 
affected in future periods.  
 
Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are critical in preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements: 
 
Insurance and reinsurance contracts 
 
i. PAA Eligibility Assessment 
The Group has calculated a Liability for remaining coverage (LRC) and Asset for remaining coverage (ARC) for 
those groups of insurance contracts written and reinsurance contracts held respectively where the coverage period 
was more than one year except long term life insurance contracts for which has been applied. This testing has been 
performed on following insurance and corresponding reinsurance contracts: 
- Engineering 
- General Accident 
- Motor 
- Individual Life  
After calculating the liabilities/assets applying PAA and GMM approach respectively, Group then checks for any 
material differences for the contracts with coverage period of more than one year. In case the Group notes any 
material differences, it follows the GMM approach, and where there is no material difference, the Group has opted 
for PAA approach. The calculation was performed under both simplified approaches i.e., Premium Allocation 
Approach (PAA) and General Measurement Model (GMM).  
 
Situations, which may cause the LRC and / or ARC under the PAA to differ from the LRC and / or ARC under the 
GMM: 

- When the expectation of the profitability for the remaining coverage changes at a particular valuation date 
during the coverage period of a group of contracts; 

- If yield curves change significantly from those in place at the group’s initial recognition; 
- When the incidence of claims occurrence differs from the coverage units; and 
- The effect of discounting under the GMM creates an inherent difference, this difference compounds over 

longer contract durations. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued) 
 
Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued) 
 
i.  PAA Eligibility Assessment (continued) 
Upon analysis of the possible differences between LRC and / or ARC applying the PAA and GMM approach, 
respectively, the Group noted material differences for contracts with coverage period of more than one year for 
Individual Life contracts. Hence, the Group has reported these under GMM while others where the difference is not 
material are reported using the PAA approach maintaining a consistent accounting treatment to the rest of the 
portfolio of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts held that have a coverage period of up to one year. 
The Group assesses materiality at each respective group of contracts level (GoCs) and at an aggregate insurance 
contract liabilities / re-insurance contract assets level using pre-determined quantitative threshold for differences at 
the GoCs. 
 
ii. Liability for remaining coverage 
 
Acquisition cash flows 
For insurance acquisition cash flows, the Group is eligible and chooses to recognize the payments as an expense 
immediately (coverage period of a year or less). However, the Group has opted to capitalize the insurance acquisition 
cash flows. 
 
The effect of recognizing insurance acquisition cash flows as an expense on initial recognition of group of insurance 
contracts is to increase the liability for remaining coverage on initial recognition and reduce the likelihood of any 
subsequent onerous contract loss. There would be an increased charge to consolidated statement of income on initial 
recognition, due to expensing acquisition cash flows, offset by an increase in profit released over the coverage 
period. 
 
Expected premium receipts adjustment 
Insurance revenue will be adjusted with the amounts of expected premium receipts adjustment calculated on 
premiums not yet collected as of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position. The computation is 
performed using IFRS 9 simplified approach to calculate Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance. The corresponding 
impact of this adjustment is recorded in the LRC. 
 
iii. Liability for incurred claims 
The ultimate cost of outstanding claims is estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection 
techniques, such as Chain Ladder and Bornheutter-Ferguson methods. 
 
The main assumption underlying these techniques is that a Group’s past claims development experience can be used 
to project future claims development and hence ultimate claims costs. These methods extrapolate the development 
of paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim (including claims handling costs), and claim numbers based on 
the observed development of earlier years and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development is mainly analyzed 
by accident years, but can also be further analyzed by geographical area, as well as by significant business lines and 
claim types. Large claims are usually separately addressed, either by being reserved at the face value of loss adjuster 
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect their future development. In most cases, no explicit assumptions 
are made regarding future rates of claims inflation or loss ratios. Instead, the assumptions used are those implicit in 
the historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgement is used 
to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in future, (e.g., to reflect one-off occurrences, changes in 
external or market factors such as public attitudes to claiming, economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, 
judicial decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors such as portfolio mix, policy features and claims 
handling procedures) in order to arrive at the estimated ultimate cost of claims that present the probability weighted 
expected value outcome from the range of possible outcomes, taking account of all the uncertainties involved. 
 
Estimates of salvage recoveries and subrogation reimbursements are considered as an allowance in the measurement 
of ultimate claims costs. 
 
Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in 
settlement and changes in foreign currency exchange rates. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued) 
 
Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued) 
 
iv. Onerousity determination 
For contracts measured under GMM, A group of contracts is onerous at initial recognition if there is a net outflow 
of fulfilment cash flows. As a result, a liability for the net outflow is recognized as a loss component within the 
liability for remaining coverage and a loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of income in 
insurance service expense. The loss component is then amortized to consolidated statement of income over the 
coverage period to offset incurred claims in insurance service expense.  
 
For contracts measured under PAA, the Group assumes that no contracts in the portfolio are onerous at initial 
recognition unless facts and circumstances indicate otherwise. 
 
The Group also considers facts and circumstances to identify whether a group of contracts are onerous based on the 
following key inputs: 

- Pricing information: Underwriting combined ratios and price adequacy ratios.  
- Historical combined ratio of similar and comparable sets of contracts. 
- Any relevant inputs from underwriters; 
- Other external factors such as inflation and change in market claims experience or change in regulations; 

and 
- For subsequent measurement, the Group also relies on the same group of contracts’ weighted actual 

emerging experience. 
 
v. Expense attribution 
The Group identifies expenses which are directly attributable towards acquiring insurance contracts (acquisition 
costs) and fulfilling /maintaining (other attributable expenses) such contracts and those expenses which are not 
directly attributable to the aforementioned contracts (non-attributable expenses). Acquisition costs, such as 
underwriting costs including other expenses except for initial commission paid, are no longer recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income when incurred and instead spread over the lifetime of the group of contracts based 
on the passage of time.  
 
The Group has determined costs directly identified to the groups of contracts, as well as costs where a judgement is 
applied to determine the share of expenses as applicable to that group. 
 
On the other hand, non-directly attributable expenses and overheads are recognized in the consolidated statement of 
income immediately when incurred. The proportion of directly attributable and non-attributable costs at inception 
will change the pattern at which expenses are recognized. 
 
vi. Estimates of future cash flows 
The Group primarily uses probabilistic projections to estimate the present value of future cash flows. 
 
The following assumptions were used when estimating future cash flows: 
 
➢ Mortality and morbidity rates (insurance risk and reinsurance business) 

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of contract written and the 
territory in which the insured person resides. They reflect recent historical experience and are adjusted when 
appropriate to reflect the Group’s own experiences. An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made for 
expected future improvements. Assumptions are differentiated by policyholder gender, underwriting class and 
contract type. An increase in expected mortality and morbidity rates will increase the expected claim cost which will 
reduce future expected profits of the Group. 
 
➢ Longevity (immediate annuity business) 

Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, adjusted when appropriate to reflect the Group’s 
own risk experience. An appropriate, but not excessive, allowance is made for expected future improvements. 
Assumptions are differentiated by several factors including (but not limited to) policyholder gender, underwriting 
class and contract type. An increase in expected longevity rates will lead to an increase in the expected cost of 
immediate annuity payments which will reduce future expected profits of the Group. 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued) 
 
Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued) 
 
vi. Estimates of future cash flows (continued) 
 
➢ Expenses 

Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in–force policies and 
associated overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base, adjusted for 
expected expense inflation if appropriate. An increase in the expected level of expenses will reduce future expected 
profits of the Group. The cash flows within the contract boundary include an allocation of fixed and variable 
overheads directly attributable to fulfilling insurance contracts. (Such overheads are allocated to groups of contracts 
using methods that are systematic and rational and are consistently applied to all costs that have similar 
characteristics). 

 
➢ Lapse and surrender rates 

Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non–payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary 
termination of policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions are determined using statistical measures 
based on the Company’s experience and vary by product type, policy duration and sales trends. An increase in lapse 
rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits of the Group, but later increases are broadly neutral 
in effect. 
 
The assumptions that have the greatest effect on the expected cash flows are listed below. The table sets out the 
percentage assumed to apply to industry mortality and morbidity tables in estimating fulfilment cash flows: 
 

Portfolio assumptions by type of 
business impacting net liabilities 

Mortality and morbidity rates Lapse and surrender 
rates 

2024 2023 2024 2023 
Life insurance contracts issued     

- Males 100% as per 
reinsurer 

100% as per 
reinsurer 3% 3% - Females 

Life reinsurance contracts issued     
- Males 100% as per 

reinsurer 
100% as per 

reinsurer 3% 3% - Females 
 
vii. Discount rates 
The Group adopt a bottom-up approach in deriving appropriate discount rates. The starting point for these discount 
rates will be appropriate reference liquid risk-free curves– taking consideration for the currency characteristics of 
the contracts and their respective cashflows. The risk-free reference curve will be the US Treasury Curve, and the 
relevant country specific credit risk premium will be loaded as required. 
 
The bottom-up approach was used to derive the discount rate for the cash flows that do not vary based on the returns 
on underlying items in the Participating contracts (excluding investment contracts without DPF that are not in the 
scope of IFRS 17). Under this approach, the discount rate is determined as the risk-free yield adjusted for differences 
in liquidity characteristics between the financial assets used to derive the risk-free yield and the relevant liability 
cash flows (known as an illiquidity premium). The risk-free yield was derived using swap rates available in the 
market denominated in the same currency as the product being measured. When swap rates are not available, highly 
liquid sovereign bonds with AAA credit rating were used. Management uses judgement to assess liquidity 
characteristics of the liability cash flows. Direct participating contracts and investment contracts with DPF are 
considered less liquid than the financial assets used to derive the risk-free yield. For these contracts, the illiquidity 
premium was estimated based on market observable liquidity premium in financial assets adjusted to reflect the 
illiquidity characteristics of the liability cash flows. 
 
viii. Risk adjustments  
IFRS 17 requires to measure insurance contracts at initial recognition as the sum of the following items  

➢ Future Cash Flow (FCF) and comprising the Present Value of Future Cash Flows (PVFCF) with an 
appropriate discounting structure   

➢ Risk Adjustment (RA) for non-financial risk  
➢ Contractual Service Margin (CSM) 
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 

(continued) 
 
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued) 
 
Insurance and reinsurance contracts (continued) 
 
viii. Risk adjustments (continued) 
The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the compensation that the entity requires for bearing the uncertainty about 
the amount and timing of cash flows that arises from non-financial risk. 
 
Derivation of the risk adjustment 
The Group has determined that the derivation of the risk adjustment shall be performed at the operating Group level 
using an appropriate methodology that is in line with IFRS 17 guidelines. 
 
The Risk Adjustment for the Liability for Incurred Claims (LIC) has been estimated based the quantile approach 
performed on Group’s triangles with consideration to market benchmarks. 
 
The Group will set a confidence level in the range of the 65% to 70% percentile, on a diversified basis. The Group 
applies judgment to determine the appropriate Risk Adjustment based on the non-financial risks associated with their 
portfolios of insurance contracts to determine the desired Risk Adjustment. 
 
ix. Sensitivities on major assumptions  
The sensitivity analysis is done to evaluate the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit / loss before tax and equity 
for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect 
in determining the ultimate impacts, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions 
had to be changed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are nonlinear. The 
sensitivity analysis performed during the year and has been presented under Note 20. 
 
x. Provision for expected credit losses 
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for insurance receivables. The provision rates are based on 
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product 
type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). 
 
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the 
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast 
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to 
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every 
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed.   
 
xi. Classification of financial assets  
The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model within 
which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Fair value of financial instruments  
When the fair value of financial assets recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the 
price to book method and the discounted cash flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. 
The judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk, lack of marketability, market 
multiple of price to book value and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported 
fair value of financial instruments. 
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arba Insurance and Reinsurance Com

pany K
.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary                                                              

  N
O

TES TO
 TH

E CO
N

SO
LID

A
TED

 FIN
A

N
CIA

L STA
TEM

EN
TS 

A
s at and for year ended 31 D

ecem
ber 2024 

 

 

41  

3  
IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E A

N
D

 R
EIN

SU
R

A
N

C
E C

O
N

TR
A

C
TS 

 The breakdow
n of groups of insurance and reinsurance contracts issued, and reinsurance contracts held, that are in an asset position and those in a liability position is set out in the table below

: 
  

 
 

31 D
ecem

ber 2024 
 

31 D
ecem

ber 2023 
A

ssets 
Liabilities 

N
et 

 
A

ssets 
Liabilities 

N
et 

 
V

aluation A
pproach 

K
D 

K
D 

K
D 

 
K

D 
K

D 
K

D 
Insurance contract assets &

 liabilities 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

edical 
PA

A
 

-     
(11,427,444) 

(11,427,444) 
 

-     
 (9,933,279) 

 (9,933,279) 
G

roup life 
PA

A
 

-        
(4,711,638) 

(4,711,638) 
 

-        
 (6,157,424) 

 (6,157,424) 
M

otor 
PA

A
 

-        
(9,176,633) 

(9,176,633) 
 

-        
 (8,682,784) 

 (8,682,784) 
M

arine &
 aviation 

PA
A

 
-        

(819,719) 
(819,719) 

 
-        

 (1,064,257) 
 (1,064,257) 

Fire 
PA

A
 

-        
(3,298,405) 

(3,298,405) 
 

-        
 (4,590,798) 

 (4,590,798) 
G

eneral accident 
PA

A
 

-        
(5,691,633) 

(5,691,633) 
 

-        
 (7,257,809) 

 (7,257,809) 
 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

Total – PA
A

 (N
ote 3.1) 

 
-     

(
35,125,472

 )
 

(35,125,472) 
 

-        
(37,686,351) 

(37,686,351) 
Individual life 

G
M

M
 

-     
(1,550,226) 

(1,550,226) 
 

-        
 (1,660,861) 

 (1,660,861) 
 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

Total – G
M

M
 (N

ote 3.2) 
 

-     
(1,550,226) 

(1,550,226) 
 

-        
 (1,660,861) 

 (1,660,861) 
 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

Total insurance contract assets &
 liabilities 

 
-     

(36,675,698) 
(36,675,698) 

 
-        

(39,347,212) 
 (39,347,212) 

 
 

════════ 
════════ 

════════ 
 

════════ 
════════ 

════════ 
R

einsurance contract assets &
 liabilities 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
edical 

PA
A

 
3,352,175 

-     
3,352,175 

 
 2,286,295  

-     
 2,286,295  

G
roup life 

PA
A

 
3,282,232 

-     
3,282,232 

 
 4,238,776  

-     
 4,238,776  

M
otor 

PA
A

 
966,325 

-     
966,325 

 
 1,529,840  

-     
 1,529,840  

M
arine &

 aviation 
PA

A
 

844,928 
-     

844,928 
 

 1,027,519  
-     

 1,027,519  
Fire 

PA
A

 
4,932,790 

-     
4,932,790 

 
 3,950,977  

-     
 3,950,977  

G
eneral accident 

PA
A

 
5,128,136 

-     
5,128,136 

 
 8,543,554  

-     
 8,543,554  

 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
Total – PA

A
 (N

ote 3.3) 
 

18,506,586 
-     

18,506,586 
 

21,576,961 
-     

21,576,961 
Individual life 

G
M

M
 

32,706 
-     

32,706 
 

 13,480  
-     

 13,480  
 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

Total – G
M

M
 

 
32,706 

-     
32,706 

 
 13,480  

-     
 13,480  

 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
Total reinsurance contract assets &

 liabilities 
 

18,539,292 
-     

18,539,292 
 

21,590,441 
-     

21,590,441 
 

 
════════ 

════════ 
════════ 

 
════════ 

════════ 
════════ 
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W
arba Insurance and Reinsurance Com
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.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary                                                              
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A
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N
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TEM
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TS 

A
s at and for year ended 31 D
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ber 2024 

 

 

43 
 3 

IN
SU
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A

N
C

E A
N

D
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EIN
SU

R
A

N
C

E C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS (continued) 
 3.2  

 A
nalysis of insurance contract assets and liabilities for contracts m

easured under G
M

M
 

 
31 D

ecem
ber 2024 

 
31 D

ecem
ber 2023 

 
LR

C
 

LIC
 

Total 

 
LR

C 
LIC

 

Total 

 
Excluding loss 

com
ponent 

Loss 
com

ponent 

Estim
ates of the 

present value of 
future cash flow

s 
R

isk 
adjustm

ent 

 
Excluding loss 

com
ponent 

Loss 
com

ponent 

Estim
ates of the 

present value of 
future   cash flow

s 
R

isk 
adjustm

ent 
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

pening liabilities 
(1,541,967) 

(80,396) 
(36,784) 

 (1,714) 
 (1,660,861) 

 
 (1,492,416) 

 (22,782) 
 (40,107) 

(2,016) 
(1,557,321) 

O
pening assets 

-     
-     

-      
-    

-    
 

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et opening balance 
(1,541,967) 

(80,396) 
(36,784) 

 (1,714) 
 (1,660,861) 

 
 (1,492,416) 

 (22,782) 
 (40,107) 

(2,016) 
(1,557,321) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Insurance revenue:                                                                    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Insurance revenue 

318,587 
-     

-     
-     

318,587 
 

309,109 
-     

-     
-     

309,109 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Insurance service expenses 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Incurred benefits and expenses 

-     
-     

(323,778) 
(11,959) 

(335,737) 
 

-     
-     

(254,338) 
(11,804) 

(266,142) 
C

hanges that relate to past service - adjustm
ents to LIC

 
-     

-     
2,801 

10,606 
13,407 

 
-     

-     
-     

12,106 
12,106 

Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of those losses 
-     

85,106 
-     

-     
85,106 

 
-     

 (67,479) 
-     

-     
(67,479) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Insurance service expenses 

-     
85,106 

(320,977) 
 (1,353) 

 (237,224) 
 

-     
 (67,479) 

(254,338) 
302 

(321,515) 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Insurance service result 

318,587 
85,106 

(320,977) 
 (1,353) 

 81,363  
 

309,109 
(67,479) 

(254,338) 
302 

(12,406) 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Finance expenses from

 insurance contracts issued 
(64,749) 

(5,240) 
-     

 -        
 (69,989) 

 
(143,390) 

 9,865  
194 

-     
(133,331) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Total changes in the consolidated statem

ent of incom
e  

253,838 
79,866 

(320,977) 
 (1,353) 

 11,374  
 

165,719 
(57,614) 

(254,144) 
302 

(145,737) 
C

ash flow
s: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Prem

ium
s received 

(198,506) 
-     

-     
-     

(198,506) 
 

(215,270) 
-     

-     
-     

(215,270) 
C

laim
s paid 

-     
-     

276,356 
-     

276,356 
 

-     
-     

238,370 
-     

238,370 
D

irectly attributable non-acquisition expenses paid 
-     

-     
21,411 

-     
21,411 

 
-     

-     
19,097 

-     
19,097 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et C
ash flow

s  
(198,506) 

-     
297,767 

 -        
 99,261   

(215,270) 
-     

257,467 
-     

42,197 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et closing balance 
(1,486,635) 

(530) 
(59,994) 

 (3,067) 
 (1,550,226) 

 
 (1,541,967) 

 (80,396) 
 (36,784) 

(1,714) 
(1,660,861) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
C

losing liabilities 
(1,486,635) 

(530) 
(59,994) 

 (3,067) 
 (1,550,226) 

 
 (1,541,967) 

 (80,396) 
 (36,784) 

(1,714) 
(1,660,861) 

C
losing assets 

-     
-     

-     
-    

-    
 

-     
    -     

-     
-     

-     
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et closing balance 
(1,486,635) 

(530) 
(59,994) 

 (3,067) 
 (1,550,226) 

 
 (1,541,967) 

 (80,396) 
 (36,784) 

(1,714) 
(1,660,861) 

 
════════ 

════════ 
════════ 

════════ 
════════ 

 
════════

 
════════

 
════════

 
════════

 
════════
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W
arba Insurance and Reinsurance Com

pany K
.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary                                                              

  N
O

TES TO
 TH

E CO
N

SO
LID

A
TED

 FIN
A

N
CIA

L STA
TEM

EN
TS 

A
s at and for year ended 31 D

ecem
ber 2024 

 

 

45 
  3  

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E A
N

D
 R

EIN
SU

R
A

N
C

E C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS (continued) 
 3.3  

A
nalysis of reinsurance contract assets and liabilities for contracts m

easured under PA
A

 
 

31 D
ecem

ber 2024 
 

31 D
ecem

ber 2023 
 

A
ssets for rem

aining coverage 
(A

R
C

) 
A

ssets for am
ounts recoverable on 

incurred claim
s (A

IC
) 

Total 

 
A

ssets for rem
aining coverage 

(A
R

C
) 

A
ssets for am

ounts recoverable on 
incurred claim

s (A
IC

) 

Total 

 
Excluding loss 

com
ponent 

Loss 
com

ponent 

Estim
ates of the 

present value of 
future cash flow

s 
R

isk 
adjustm

ent 

 
Excluding loss 

com
ponent 

Loss 
com

ponent 

Estim
ates of the 

present value of 
future cash flow

s 
R

isk adjustm
ent 

 
K

D
  

K
D

  
K

D
  

K
D

 
K

D
  

 
K

D
  

K
D

  
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

O
pening liabilities 

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
 

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
O

pening assets 
1,981,394 

-    
19,297,422 

298,145 
21,576,961 

 
 1,984,844  

-     
 21,867,199  

 244,339  
 24,096,382  

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et opening balance 
1,981,394 

-    
19,297,422 

298,145 
21,576,961 

 
 1,984,844  

-     
 21,867,199  

 244,339  
 24,096,382  

C
hanges in the consolidated statem

ent of incom
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 

────────
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
A

llocation of reinsurance prem
ium

s 
(17,959,912) 

-    
-    

-     
(17,959,912) 

 
(16,158,887) 

-     
-     

-     
(16,158,887) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
A

m
ounts recoverable from

 reinsurers 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 A
m

ounts recoverable for claim
s and other expenses 

-     
-     

783,323 
5,380 

788,703 
 

-     
-     

2,045,286 
8,685 

2,053,971 
 Changes that relate to past service - adjustm

ents to A
IC

 
-     

-     
(523,752) 

(94,938) 
(618,690) 

 
-     

-     
 737,807  

 45,121  
 782,928  

 Effect of changes in the risk of reinsurers non 
  perform

ance 
-     

-     
(1,757) 

-     
(1,757) 

 
-     

-     
 (14,484) 

-     
 (14,484) 

  Expenses directly attributable to reinsurance 
-     

-     
(183,036) 

-     
(183,036) 

 
-     

-     
 (180,750) 

-     
 (180,750) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Total reinsurance recoverable for incurred claim

s 
-     

-     
74,778 

(89,558) 
(14,780) 

 
-     

-     
2,587,859 

53,806 
2,641,665 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et (expense) incom
e from

 reinsurance contract held 
(17,959,912) 

-     
74,778 

(89,558) 
(17,974,692) 

 
(16,158,887) 

-     
2,587,859  

 53,806 
(13,517,222) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
R

einsurance finance incom
e through profit and loss 

-     
-     

378,876 
-     

378,876 
 

-     
-     

(618,906) 
-     

(618,906) 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 

────────
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Total changes in the consolidated statem

ent of incom
e 

(17,959,912) 
-     

453,654 
(89,558) 

(17,595,816) 
 

 (16,158,887) 
-     

 1,968,953  
53,806 

 (14,136,128) 
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 

────────
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
C

ash flow
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Prem

ium
s paid 

18,099,104 
-     

-     
-     

18,099,104 
 

16,155,437 
-     

-     
-     

 16,155,437  
D

irectly attributable expenses paid 
-     

-     
183,036 

-     
183,036 

 
-     

-     
180,750 

-     
 180,750  

R
ecoveries from

 reinsurance 
-     

-     
(3,756,699) 

-     
(3,756,699) 

 
-     

-     
(4,719,480) 

-     
 (4,719,480) 

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
Total cash flow

s 
18,099,104 

-     
(3,573,663) 

-     
14,525,441 

 
 16,155,437  

-     
 (4,538,730) 

-     
 11,616,707  

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et closing balance  
2,120,586 

-     
16,177,413 

208,587 
18,506,586 

 
 1,981,394  

-     
 19,297,422  

 298,145  
 21,576,961  

 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
C

losing liabilities 
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

 
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

C
losing assets 

2,120,586 
-     

16,177,413 
208,587 

18,506,586 
 

 1,981,394  
-     

 19,297,422  
 298,145  

 21,576,961  
 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
──────── 

──────── 
 

────────
 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
────────

 
N

et closing balance 
2,120,586 

-     
16,177,413 

208,587 
18,506,586 

 
 1,981,394  

-     
 19,297,422  

 298,145  
 21,576,961  

 
════════ 

════════ 
════════ 

════════ 
════════ 

 
════════

 
════════

 
════════

 
════════

 
════════
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4          NET INVESTMENT INCOME / EXPENSE 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

      2024    2023 
      KD    KD 

   
Dividend income 1,650,779 1,099,763 
Interest income  845,756 946,249 
Realized gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 68,752 50,213 
Gain on sale of investment in an associate -     307,095 
Share of results of associate 311,765 345,539 
Unrealised gain of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 563,352 351,220 
 ────────── ────────── 
 3,440,404 3,100,079 
 ────────── ────────── 
Investment expense  (711,412) (621,992) 
 ────────── ────────── 
 2,728,992 2,478,087 
 ══════════ ══════════ 

 
5          BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent 
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares) 
as follows: 
 

     2024  2023 
  Restated 

   

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent company (KD) 5,620,497 7,090,281 
 ────────── ────────── 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 

(excluding treasury shares) (Shares)    241,310,062 240,631,654 
  ────────── ────────── 
Earnings per share  23.29 Fils 29.47 Fils 
 ══════════ ══════════ 

 

As there are no dilutive instruments outstanding, basic and diluted earnings per share are identical. 
 

Earnings per share calculation for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 have been adjusted 
to take account of the bonus shares (Note 12). 
 
There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting 
date and the date of authorisation of consolidated financial statements. 
 
6         PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 
Land and 
buildings 

Furniture and 
equipment 

Computers and 
software 

Projects under 
progress Total 

 KD KD KD KD KD 
Cost:      
  As at 1 January 2024 8,625,006 940,575 1,850,360 392,441 11,808,382 
  Additions - 6,841 25,524 -     32,365 
  Disposal - - - (200,609) (200,609) 
  Transferred  - - 191,082 (191,082) -     
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
  As at 31 December 2024 8,625,006 947,416 2,066,966 750 11,640,138 
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
Depreciation:      
  As at 1 January 2024 2,168,070 731,103 1,738,629 -      4,637,802 
  Charge for the year 119,133 71,265 60,389 -        250,787 
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
  As at 31 December 2024 2,287,203 802,368 1,799,018 -     4,888,589 
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
Net carrying amount:      
  As at 31 December 2024 6,337,803 145,048 267,948 750 6,751,549 
 ══════════ ══════════ ══════════ ══════════ ══════════ 
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6         PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
 

 
Land and 
buildings 

Furniture and 
equipment 

Computers and 
software 

Projects under 
progress Total 

 KD KD KD KD KD 
Cost:      
  As at 1 January 2023 8,625,006 882,658 1,811,558 391,691 11,710,913  
  Additions   -     57,917  38,802  750  97,469  
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
  As at 31 December 2023  8,625,006  940,575  1,850,360  392,441  11,808,382  
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
Depreciation:      
  As at 1 January 2023 2,049,263  657,105  1,699,575   -    4,405,943  
  Charge for the year 118,807  73,998  39,054   -    231,859  
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
  As at 31 December 2023 2,168,070  731,103  1,738,629   -    4,637,802  
 ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── ────────── 
Net carrying amount:      
  As at 31 December 2023 6,456,936  209,472  111,731  392,441  7,170,580  
 ══════════ ══════════ ══════════ ══════════ ══════════ 

 
7          INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 
 
The Group has the following investment in associates:  

  Ownership percentage Country of 2024 2023 
 2024               2023 incorporation KD KD 
     

KIB Takaful Insurance Company K.S.C.C. 25.70% 25.70% Kuwait 3,827,378 3,687,314 
    ────────── ────────── 
    3,827,378  3,687,314  
    ══════════ ══════════ 

 

 

The movement in the investment in associates during the year is as follows: 
       2024   2023 

      KD   KD 
   

Carrying value as at 1 January  3,687,314 8,330,796 
Disposal of investment in associates -     (4,692,905) 
Share of results of associates (Note 4) 311,765 345,539 
Share of other comprehensive income 8,199 5,285 
Dividends  (179,900) (301,401) 
 ────────── ────────── 
Carrying value as at 31 December 3,827,378 3,687,314 
 ══════════ ══════════ 

 

Summarized financial information in respect of the Group’s associate is set out below. The summarized financial 
information below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements. 
 

KIB Takaful Insurance Company K.S.C.C.  
 2024 2023 
 KD KD 
   

Current assets 6,778,753 7,137,957  
Non- current assets 8,931,097 8,409,831  
Current liabilities (43,722) (29,966) 
Non-Current liabilities (773,607) (1,170,298) 
 ────────── ────────── 
Equity 14,892,521 14,347,524 
 ────────── ────────── 
Revenue 1,279,711 719,803 
 ────────── ────────── 
Profit for the year 1,213,093 636,348 
Other comprehensive income for the year 31,903 20,566 
 ────────── ────────── 
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,244,996 656,914 
 ────────── ────────── 
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7          INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 
 
Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount of the interest in KIB Takaful 
Insurance Company K.S.C.C. recognized in the consolidated financial statements. 

 
8          INVESTMENT ASSETS 
 

 2024 2023 
 KD KD 

   
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 29,915,735  26,072,733  
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 27,463,542  20,238,608  
 ────────── ────────── 
 57,379,277 46,311,341 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 

 2024 2023 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income KD KD 
   
Quoted securities * 17,429,417 15,256,932 
Unquoted securities  11,946,615 10,323,037 
Investment in bonds  539,703 492,764 
 ────────── ────────── 
 29,915,735 26,072,733 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income denominated in the following currencies: 
 

 2024 2023 
 KD KD 
   

Local currency (KD)  24,510,336  20,465,539  
Foreign currencies 5,405,399  5,607,194  
 ────────── ────────── 
 29,915,735 26,072,733 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 

 2024 2023 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss KD KD 
   
Quoted shares 1,711,235  1,595,260  
Investments in fund 1,347,975  1,594,966  
Investments in portfolio ** 24,404,332  17,048,382  
 ────────── ────────── 
 27,463,542 20,238,608 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 
* Quoted shares with a fair value of KD 2,995,725 (2023: KD 2,995,725) are under lien to the Insurance Regulation 

Unit. 
 
** Investments in portfolio include bonds with a carry interest rate ranging from 3.63% to 5.75% (2023: 3.63% to 
5.75%) per annum. 
 
 
 

       2024   2023 
      KD   KD 
   
Net assets of the associate 14,892,521 14,347,524 
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest  25.70% 25.70% 
 ────────── ────────── 
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest  3,827,378 3,687,314  
 ────────── ────────── 
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9       OTHER ASSETS 
 

 2024 2023 
 KD KD 

   
Due from staff 27,164  29,716  
Accrued income 421,165  314,375  
Prepaid expenses 191,482  230,511  
Refundable deposit 18,002  13,180  
Others 397,672 408,878 
 ────────── ────────── 
 1,055,485 996,660 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 
10        TERM DEPOSITS  
 
Term deposits represent deposits with banks whose original maturity period exceeds three months from date of 
deposit. 
 
Term deposits include an amount of KD 1,800,000 held in State of Kuwait under lien to the Insurance Regulation 
Unit in accordance with insurance regulations of State of Kuwait (31 December 2023: KD 1,800,000). 
 
The effective interest rate on term deposits was 3.875% to 5.10% (31 December 2023: 4.60% to 5.80%) per 
annum. 
 
The Insurance law No. 125 of 2019, requires the Parent Company to deposit in a Kuwaiti bank or in a Kuwaiti 
branch of a foreign bank, a deposit amounting to KD 500,000 for general insurance, KD 500,000 for life insurance 
and KD 1,000,000 for reinsurance. 
 
11          CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

     2024    2023 
     KD    KD 
   
Cash on hand 4,901 17,631  
Cash in portfolio 1,588,914 285,662  
Short term deposit (Maturity within 3 months ending period) - 489,665  
Bank balances 4,364,372 4,581,567  
 ────────── ────────── 
Cash and cash equivalents 5,958,187 5,374,525  
 ══════════ ══════════ 

 
12         SHARE CAPITAL AND CASH DIVIDENDS 
 
The authorised, issued, and fully paid-up share capital comprises of 250,000,000 shares of 100 fils each (2023: 
250,000,000 shares of 100 fils each) fully paid up in cash. 
 
Cash dividend and bonus shares 
The Board of Directors’ meeting held on 19 February 2025 recommended to distribute cash dividends of 12% for 
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: 10%), in addition to bonus share Nil (2023: 2%). This recommendation 
is subject to the approval of the Parent Company’s Annual General Assembly and completion of legal formalities.  
 
The Annual General Assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company was held on 7 April 2024 approved the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the distribution of cash dividends of 
10% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 8%) and the distribution date was on 9 May 2024, in addition 
to issuance of bonus shares of 2% from the treasury shares for every (100) shares of the Parent Company's stock 
for the year ended 31 December 2023. 
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13         RESERVES 
 
Statutory reserve 
As required by the Companies Law and the Parent Company's Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of 
Association, a minimum 10% of the profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat fees shall be 
transferred to the statutory reserve. The annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve to discontinue 
such transfer when the reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital. The reserve may only be used to offset 
losses or enable the payment of a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital in years when profit is not sufficient 
for the payment of such dividend due to absence of distributable reserves. Any amounts deducted from the reserve 
shall be refunded when the profits in the following years suffice, unless such reserve exceeds 50% of the issued 
share capital. 
 
Since the reserve has reached 50% of the capital, the Board of Directors have resolved to discontinue transfer to 
statutory reserve and was approved by the Parent Company Annual General Assembly on 26 March 2012. On 8 
August 2023, the board of directors of the Parent Company proposed to utilize the statutory reserve for the purpose 
of extinguishing of accumulated losses amounting to KD 4,960,636, which is approved by the General Assembly 
meeting hold on 27 September 2024. 
 
As of 31 December 2024, the Parent Company transferred 10% of the profit for the year before contribution to 
KFAS, NLST, and Zakat. 
 
Voluntary reserve 
As required by the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of the profit for the year attributable to the 
shareholders of the Parent Company before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of Directors’ 
remuneration is transferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be discontinued by a resolution of 
the shareholders’ Annual General Assembly Meeting upon recommendation by the Board of Directors. The Parent 
Company’s General Assembly held on 19 May 2015 resolved to discontinue transfer to voluntary reserve.  
 
14         TREASURY SHARES 

 2024 2023 
   
Number of shares  6,570,244 11,789,448 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
Percentage of issued shares (%) 2.63% 4.72% 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
Market value (KD) 1,077,520 1,187,197 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 
An amount of KD 686,385 (31 December 2023: KD 1,210,017) equivalent to the cost of purchase of the treasury 
shares have been earmarked as non-distributable from reserves and retained earnings throughout the holding period 
of treasury shares. 
 

The weighted average market price of the Parent Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2024 was 164 
fils per share (31 December 2023: 115 fils per share). 
 
During the current year, the Group purchased treasury shares of 83,765 shares (31 December 2023: 10,499,073 
shares) for total consideration amounting to KD 9,058 (31 December 2023: KD 934,000) and sold treasury shares 
of 540,000 (31 December 2023: 6,315,027 shares) with total consideration of KD 56,393 (31 December 2023: KD 
835,876). 
 

15         OTHER LIABILITIES 
    2024    2023 
    KD    KD 

   
Provision for end of service indemnity 1,965,113  1,866,048  
NLST and Zakat payables 217,295  131,726 
KFAS payable 130,022 151,896 
Dividends payable 1,387,040  1,310,569  
Accrued staff leave 381,969  337,057  
Accrued expenses                                1,303,772 1,205,274 
Considerations payable for investments acquired (Note 17) 11,936,498  4,753,080  
Provision for legal case (Note 18) 500,000 500,000 
Other liabilities 2,314,072  2,215,003  
 ────────── ────────── 
 20,135,781 12,470,653 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
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16         SEGMENT INFORMATION  
 
The Group operates in three segments: General risk insurance, Life and Medical insurance and Investment. Within 
General risk insurance are Marine and Aviation, General Accidents and Fire, and Motor  
 
The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose 
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on profit or loss and is measured consistently with consolidated statement of income. 
The following are the details of the insurance segments: 
 

- Marine and aviation: Insurance against the risks related to goods transportation and different types of 
marine and aviation vessels.  

 
- General accidents: Insurance against risks of contractors, machine and computer damages and cessation of 

work; insurance for cash, fidelity bonds, professional risks, work accidents, civil responsibility and cars. 
 
- Fire: Insurance against fire for different types of buildings, stores, industrial risks and oil and gas industry.  
 
- Motor: Insurance against accidents for different types of motor vehicles. 

 
- Life and medical insurance: Providing various life and health insurance cover for individuals and 

Companies. 
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R
evenue: 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Insurance service result before reinsurance contracts held 
1,404,013 

11,823,808 
4,639,525 

17,867,346 
5,401,117 

-    
-     

23,268,463 
R

einsurance contracts held 
(1,072,020) 

(11,147,404) 
(2,885,940) 

(15,105,364) 
(2,923,659) 

 -    
-     

(18,029,023) 
Finance expenses from

 insurance contracts issued 
(32,555) 
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Profit for the year 

 
 2,728,992  

(1,976,187) 
5,666,916 
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17         RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
The Group has entered into various transactions with related parties, i.e. shareholders, Board of directors, key 
management personnel, associates and other related parties in the normal course of its business concerning financing 
and other related services. Prices and terms of payment are approved by the Group's management. Significant related 
party transactions and balances are as follows: 
 
Balances included in the consolidated statement of financial position: 

 

Parent 
Company’s 

shareholders 
Entities under 

common control  

 
Total 
2024 

Total 
2023 

 KD KD KD KD 
Investment activities     
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss -     16,837,243 16,837,243  7,968,832  
Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income -     22,899,656 22,899,656 20,278,438 
Investments in associates  -     3,827,379 3,827,379  3,687,314  
Term deposits -     10,100,000 10,100,000  5,175,000  
Cash and cash equivalents  -     3,789,502 3,789,502  3,915,983  
Other liabilities* -     11,936,498 11,936,498  4,753,080  
     
Insurance activities     
Insurance contract assets 88,823 4,333,090 4,421,913  3,684,294  
Insurance contract liabilities - 604,780 604,780  465,488  
 
* Other liabilities represent borrowings from third party through related party with an average interest rate of 4.85% 

(31 December 2023: 5.90%).  
 
Transactions included in the consolidated statement of income: 

 

Parent 
Company’s 

shareholders 
Entities under 

common control  

 
Total 
2024 

Total 
2023 

 KD KD KD KD 
     
Premiums written 20,358 1,635,294 1,655,652  1,868,506  
Claims paid 10,784 1,359,002 1,369,786  1,471,488  
Dividend income - 687,161 687,161  599,629  
Gain from sale of investment in associates - -  - 307,095 
Share of results of associates  - 311,765 311,765  345,539  
 
Compensation to key management personnel: 2024 2023 
 KD KD 
   
Salaries and short-term employee benefits 915,141 846,122 
Employees end of service benefits 28,358 36,856 
 ─────── ─────── 
 943,499 882,978 
 ═══════ ═══════ 

 
18        CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 

    2024    2023 
    KD    KD 
   
Letters of guarantee 473,150 364,164 
Capital commitments - 6,480 
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18        CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 
 
Letters of guarantee include an amount of KD 1,427,180 held in State of Kuwait under lien to the Insurance 
Regulation Unit in accordance with insurance regulations of State of Kuwait (31 December 2023: KD 1,427,180). 
 
The Group has outstanding legal case, where the customer is claiming an amount of KD 1.8 million. A preliminary 
verdict has been issued in the Group’s favour rejecting the customer’s claim. The customer appealed on 15 July 2019 
and the appeal court verdict was in the favor of the Group as well, issued on 13 January 2021 the customer reappealed 
the verdict in Court of Cassation who has transferred the case to the primary court.  
 
On 24 July 2023, a preliminary verdict has been issued in the customer’s favor, The Group appealed the verdict and 
a new session is scheduled on 13 November 2023 then transferred to department of expertise on 4 March 2024, then 
scheduled for a hearing on 11 November 2024, then it was postponed to 11 March 2025 for Appeal session. 
 
During the prior year, the Group has provided an amount of KD 500,000 as a provision against this legal case. The 
Group believes the current provision taken is adequate based on the current legal status of the legal case. 
 
The Group is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The Group based on independent legal 
advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material impact on the Group’s 
consolidated statement of income or consolidated statement of financial position. 
 
19         STATUTORY GUARANTEES 
 
The following amounts are held in Kuwait by the Parent Company as security for the order of the Insurance 
Regulation Unit in accordance with the Ministerial Decree No. 27 of 1966 and its amendments new law No. 125 
of 2019: 
 
(a) Deposits and investments amounting to KD 500,000 (2023: KD 500,000) have been deposited with a Kuwaiti 

bank as security to underwrite general insurance business; 
(b) Deposits and investment amounting to KD 500,000 (2023: KD 500,000) have been deposited with a Kuwaiti 

bank in respect of the Parent Company’s right to transact life assurance business; 
(c) Deposits and investment amounting to KD 1,000,000 (2023: KD 1,000,000) have been deposited with a 

Kuwaiti bank in respect of the Parent Company’s right to transact reinsurance business; 
 
As of the reporting date, the Parent Company calculated the amounts are held in Kuwait in accordance with the 
new law. 
 
20         RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
(a) Governance framework 
The Group’s Governance Risk and Compliance management framework is to protect the Group’s shareholders from 
events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives including failing to exploit 
opportunities. and analyse the nature and extent of risks encountered by the Group's activities, to assess of the 
environmental, social, and governance sustainability risks, in order to mitigate, avoid, and prevent those Risks.  Key 
management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.   
 
The Group has established The Governance Risk and Compliance function since 2013 with clear terms of reference 
from the Group’s Board of Directors, and its committees. This supplemented with a clear organisational structure that 
document delegated authorities and responsibilities from the board of directors to the management. Also, a Group 
policy framework including risk profiles for the Group, risk management, internal control, business continuity and 
business conduct standards for the Group’s operations at the highest-level of quality control and to monitor the 
soundness of consolidated financial statements and the efficiency of the Group activities and evaluate the extent of 
commitment to supervisory controls.  
 
(b) Regulatory framework 
Law No. 125 of 2019, and its Executive by law, and the rules, Decisions, Circulars and regulations issued by the 
Insurance Regulatory Unit (IRU) provide the regulatory framework for the insurance industry in Kuwait will be 
effective, which state that all insurance companies operating in Kuwait are required to follow these rules and 
regulations. 
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20         RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
(b) Regulatory framework (continued) 
The following are the key regulations governing the operation of the Group: 
 For the life Insurance Companies KD 500,000 FD under the ministerial name to be retained in Kuwait. 
 For the Non-life Insurance Companies KD 500,000 FD under the ministerial name to be retained in Kuwait. 
 For the Reinsurance Companies KD 1,000,000 FD under the ministerial name to be retained in Kuwait. 
 In addition, all insurance companies to maintain a provision of 20% from the gross premiums written after 

excluding the reinsurance share. 
 
The Group’s Governance, Risk Management and Compliance (G.R.C.) sector is responsible for monitoring 
compliance with all applicable regulations in the state of Kuwait and has delegated authorities and responsibilities 
from the board of directors to ensure that the Group is fully complied with the regulations. 
 
(c)       Insurance risk  
For non-life insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from climate changes, natural disasters and 
manmade accidents. For longer tail claims that take some years to settle, there is also inflation risk 
 
For life insurance contracts the Group offers individual life, the main risks that the Group is exposed to are, as 
follows: 
 Mortality risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected. 
 Morbidity risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder health experience being different than expected. 
 Longevity risk - risk of loss arising due to the annuitant living longer than expected. 
 Investment return risk - risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected. 
 Expense risk - risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected. 
 Policyholder decision risk - risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being 

different than expected. 
 
For the life insurance and life reinsurance contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant 
factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and 
natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than expected.  
 
The objective of the Group is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover the liabilities associated with 
these insurance and reinsurance contracts that it issues. The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across the 
portfolios of insurance contracts. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation 
of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.  
 
Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims 
handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are established to reduce the risk 
exposure of the Group. The Group further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly settling claims, to 
reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the business. Inflation risk is 
mitigated by taking expected inflation into account when estimating insurance contract liabilities and pricing 
appropriately. 
 
Reinsurance risks 
The Group purchases reinsurance as part of its risk mitigation program. Reinsurance held (outward reinsurance) 
is placed on both a proportional and non–proportional basis. The majority of proportional reinsurance is quota–
share reinsurance which is taken out to reduce the overall exposure of the Group to certain classes of business. 
Retention limits for non-proportional excess–of–loss reinsurance vary by product line. 

 
To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial 
condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, 
activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers. 

 
Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Group’s Board of Directors and 
Reinsurance Committee. The criteria may be summarized as follows: 
- Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or 

equivalent. 
- Reputation of particular reinsurance companies. 
- Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer. 
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20 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  
 
Reinsurance risks (continued) 
Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance of the 
reinsurers, wherever applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Group and agreed to pre-set requirements of the 
Group’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance Committee before approving them for exchange of reinsurance 
business. As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, there is no significant concentration of reinsurance 
balances. 
 
Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the 
Group remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet 
the obligations under the reinsurance agreements.  
 
There is no single counterparty exposure that exceeds 50% of total reinsurance assets at the reporting date. 
 
The nature of the Group’s exposure to insurance risks and its objectives, policies and processes used to manage 
and measure the risks have not changed from the previous year. 
 
The following tables show the concentration of net insurance contract liabilities by type of contract: 
 
 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 

KD 

Insurance 
contracts 

issued 
Reinsurance 

contracts held Net 
Insurance 

contracts issued 
Reinsurance 

contracts held Net 
       
Medical  11,427,444   (3,352,175)   8,075,269  9,933,279 (2,286,295) 7,646,984 
Group life  4,711,638   (3,282,232)   1,429,406  6,157,424 (4,238,776) 1,918,648 
Motor  9,176,633   (966,325)   8,210,308  8,682,784 (1,529,840) 7,152,944 
Marine and aviation  819,719   (844,928)   (25,209) 1,064,257 (1,027,519) 36,738 
Fire  3,298,405   (4,932,790)   (1,634,385) 4,590,798 (3,950,977) 639,821 
General Accident  5,691,633   (5,128,136)   563,497  7,257,809 (8,543,554) (1,285,745) 
Individual life 1,550,226 (32,706) 1,517,520 1,660,861 (13,480) 1,647,381 
 ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── 
Total  36,675,698 (18,539,292) 18,136,406 39,347,212 (21,590,441) 17,756,771 
 ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ 
 
The geographical concentration of the Group’s insurance contract liabilities is within Kuwait and outside of 
Kuwait. 
 
Sensitivities on major assumptions 
The following sensitivity analysis shows the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit / loss and equity for 
reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions. 
 
The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impacts, but to 
demonstrate the impact due to changes in each assumption, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis. 
It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are nonlinear. 
 
The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant assumptions did not change from the previous 
year. 
 
Following are the sensitivities derived for the portfolios computed under PAA approach before and after risk 
mitigation by reinsurance contracts held: 
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Lapse/surrenders scenario increase by 5%
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(11,229) 

(11,229) 
Lapse/surrenders scenario decrease by 5%
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63 
 

 20 
R

ISK
 M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T (continued)  
 (c) 

Insurance risk (continued) 
 C

laim
s developm

ent table (continued) 
 31 D

ecem
ber 2023  

 
2014 

2015 
2016 

2017 
2018 

2019 
2020 

2021 
2022 

2023 
Total 

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

K
D

 
K

D
 

U
ndiscounted liabilities for incurred claim

s, gross  
 of reinsurance: 

 17,247,836   15,777,710  
 13,824,083  

 13,032,459  
 24,758,871  

 11,144,247  
 12,151,018  

16,987,541 
 18,162,866  

 15,977,865  
 159,064,496  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
t end of accident year 

 7,890,105  
8,962,959 

 8,711,541  
 4,966,661  

 3,231,613  
 4,259,998  

 3,746,433  
6,593,045 

 6,597,348  
8,059,445 

-     
O

ne year later 
 12,846,539  

12,818,915 
 11,972,997  

 9,166,855  
 12,455,178  

 8,841,304  
 9,491,343  

12,809,043 
 14,364,888  

-     
-     

Tw
o years later 

 13,513,397  
14,170,444 

 12,448,984  
 11,717,075  

 16,564,717  
 9,661,036  

 10,514,596  
14,045,650 

-     
-     

-     
Three years later 

 13,421,854  
14,307,282 

 13,122,255  
 11,944,269  

 18,673,669  
 10,044,130  

 10,698,989  
-     

-     
-     

-     
Four years later 

 13,538,187  
14,875,322 

 13,003,671  
 12,194,188  

 24,073,150  
 10,121,525  

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
Five years later 

 13,679,676  
15,221,986 

 13,128,489  
 12,249,715  

 24,298,835  
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
Six years later 

 13,768,532  
15,485,275 

 13,182,363  
 12,302,802  

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
Seven years later 

 13,815,688  
15,532,734 

 13,184,462  
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
Eight years later 

 13,807,131  
15,587,540 

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
N

ine years later 
 13,809,101  

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     
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G

ross estim
ates of the undiscounted am

ount of  
 the claim

s 
13,809,101 

15,587,540 
13,184,462 

12,302,802 
24,298,835 

10,121,525 
10,698,989 

14,045,650 
14,364,888 

8,059,445 
136,473,237 
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C

um
ulative gross claim

s and other directly  
 attributable expenses paid 

3,438,735 
190,170 

639,621 
729,657 

460,036 
1,022,722 

1,452,029 
2,941,891 

3,797,978 
7,918,420 

22,591,259 
 

─
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─
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 ─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
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─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
─
─
─
─
─
─
─

 
Effect of discounting 

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

(1,063,719) 
Effect of the risk adjustm

ent 
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
536,052 

C
laim

s payables 
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
5,928,054 
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G

ross liabilities for incurred claim
s  

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

-     
-     

27,991,646 
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20 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  
 
(d)     Financial risk 
 
Financial risk comprises of the followings: 

- Liquidity Risk 
- Market Risk 
- Credit Risk  

 
These risks have been briefly explained below: 

 
1. Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events, there is 
also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash outflows and expected reinsurance 
recoveries. 

 
The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to liquidity risk: 
 
The Group’s liquidity risk policy sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes liquidity  risk 
for the Group. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are reported to the Group’s 
risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment. 
 
The Group maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event 
of an unforeseeable interruption of cash flow. The Group also has committed lines of credit that it can access to 
meet liquidity needs. 

 
Maturity profiles 
 
Maturity analysis for insurance and reinsurance contract liabilities (present value of future cash flows basis) 
 
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of groups of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance 
contracts held that are liabilities of the Group based on the estimates of the present value of the future cash flows 
expected to be paid out in the periods presented. 
 2024 
 
KD 

Up to 1 
Year 1–2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total 

Insurance contract 
liabilities 

 
20,018,924 

 
5,252,783 

 
2,031,023 

 
654,360 

 
(309,384) 

 
660,780 

 
28,308,486 

 ─────── ─────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ─────── 
Reinsurance contract 
assets 

    
13,569,806  

     
2,141,155  

       
892,507  

       
407,689  

    
(233,412) 

           
29,447  

    
16,807,192  

 ══════ ══════ ═════ ═════ ═════ ═════ ══════ 
 

 2023 
 
KD 

Up to 1 
Year 1–2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years >5 years Total 

Insurance contract 
liabilities 22,589,680  3,006,311  1,618,985  1,059,409  466,455  911,667 29,652,507 
 ─────── ─────── ────── ────── ────── ────── ─────── 
Reinsurance contract 
assets 16,516,630  1,602,088  915,781  433,075  128,863  12,610 19,609,047 
 ══════ ══════ ═════ ═════ ═════ ═════ ══════ 
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20 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  
 
(d)     Financial risk (continued) 
 
2.  Credit risk  
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing 
to discharge an obligation.  

 
 Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided 

by following policy guidelines in respect of counterparties’ limits that are set each year by the board of 
directors and are subject to regular reviews.  At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of 
creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance 
for impairment. 
 

 The credit risk in respect of customer balances, incurred on non-payment of premiums will only persist during 
the grace period specified in the policy document until expiry, when the policy is either paid up or terminated.  
Commission paid to intermediaries is netted off against amounts receivable from them to reduce the risk of 
doubtful debts. 

 
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of 
financial position: 
 

Exposure credit risk  
General 

insurance 

Life and 
Medical 

insurance Total 
 KD KD KD 

    

31 December 2024    
Cash and cash equivalents - excluding cash on hand   5,291,387   661,899   5,953,286  
Fixed deposits   10,292,237   300,000   10,592,237  
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income 
 

 539,703  
 

 -    
 

 539,703  
Other assets - excluding prepayments  846,029   17,974   864,003  
 ──────── ──────── ──────── 
Total credit risk exposure  16,969,356   979,873   17,949,229  
 ════════ ════════ ════════ 

 

Exposure credit risk 
General 

insurance 

Life and 
Medical 

insurance Total 
 KD KD KD 

    

31 December 2023    
Cash and cash equivalents - excluding cash on hand  4,567,043 789,851 5,356,894  
Fixed deposits  6,800,000 175,000 6,975,000  
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income 492,764 -     492,764 
Other assets - excluding prepayments 680,196 85,953 766,149  
 ──────── ──────── ──────── 
Total credit risk exposure 12,540,003 1,050,804 13,590,807 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ 
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20 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  
 
(d) Financial risks (continued)   
 
2. Credit risk (continued) 
The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the financial assets by classifying assets 
according to international credit ratings of the counterparties. “A” ratings denote expectations of low default risk. 
“B” ratings indicate that material default risk is present, but a limited margin of safety remains. Assets that fall 
outside the range of A to B are classified as not rated.  
 

Exposure credit risk by classifying financial assets 
according to international credit rating agencies 

A 
KD 

B 
KD 

Not rated 
KD 

Total 
KD 

     

31 December 2024     
Cash and cash equivalents - excluding cash on hand   5,953,286   -     -     5,953,286  
Fixed deposits   10,592,237   -     -     10,592,237  
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 
 

 -    
  

539,703  
 

 -    
 

 539,703  
Other assets - excluding prepayments  421,165   401,494   41,344   864,003  
 ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── 
Total credit risk exposure  16,966,688   941,197   41,344   17,949,229  
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ 

 
Exposure credit risk by classifying financial assets 
according to international credit rating agencies 

A 
KD 

B 
KD 

Not rated 
KD 

Total 
KD 

     

31 December 2023     
Cash and cash equivalents - excluding cash on hand  5,356,894  -    -    5,356,894  
Fixed deposits  6,975,000  -    -    6,975,000  
Financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income -    492,764  - 492,764  
Other assets - excluding prepayments 314,375  408,878  42,896  766,149  
 ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── 
Total credit risk exposure 12,646,269 901,642 42,896 13,590,807 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ 

 
3. Market risk  
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. 
 
Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. 
 
(i)  Currency risk 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
The Group’s financial assets are primarily denominated in the same currencies as its insurance and investment 
contract liabilities, which mitigate the foreign currency exchange rate risk. Thus, the main foreign exchange risk 
arises from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than those in which insurance and 
investment contracts liabilities are expected to be settled. The currency risk is effectively managed by the Group 
through financial instruments.  
 
The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other variables held 
constant, showing the impact on profit due to changes in fair value of currency sensitive assets and liabilities.  
 
The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on market risk, but to 
demonstrate the impact due to changes in variables, variables had to be changed on an individual basis. It should 
be noted that movements in these variables are nonlinear. The effect of decreases in profit and other comprehensive 
income is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the increases shown. 
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20 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  
 
(d) Financial risks (continued)   
 
3. Market risk (continued)  
 
(i)  Currency risk 

  2024  2023 
 

 
Change in  
Variables 

Impact  
on profit for the 

year 

Impact on other 
comprehensive 

income  

Impact  
on profit for the 

year  

Impact on other 
comprehensive 

income 
 % KD KD  KD KD 
       
USD ±5 937,999 26,985  594,363 24,638 
BHD ±5 - 270,270  - 280,360 

 
(ii) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the fair 
values of financial instruments. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest-bearing assets and 
liabilities. 
 
The sensitivity of the consolidated income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates, on the 
Group’s profit before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and directors’ fees, based on floating rate financial 
assets and financial liabilities held as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.  
 
The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk as majority of its interest-bearing assets and liabilities are stated at 
fixed interest rates.   
 
(iii) Equity price risk 
Equity price risk arises from the change in fair values of equity investments.  The Group manages this risk through 
diversification of investments in terms of geographical distribution and industrial concentration. 
 
The effect on other comprehensive income as a result of a change in the fair value of financial assets available for 
sale at 31 December due to ±5% change in the following market indices with all other variables held constant is as 
follows:  
 

 
Impact of profit  

for the year  
Impact of other comprehensive 

income 
 2024 2023  2024 2023 

Market indices KD KD  KD KD 
      
Kuwait 152,960 159,511  525,540 482,487 
Other countries  -     -      270,270 280,360 

 
21 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT  
 
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. 
 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issues 
new shares. 
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21 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 
Group includes within net debt, liabilities arising from insurance contracts, payables and term loans less cash and 
cash equivalent. Capital includes equity of the Group. 

 2024 2023 
 KD KD 
   

Liabilities arising from insurance contracts 36,675,698 39,347,212 
Other liabilities 20,135,781 12,470,653 
Term loan 4,000,000 4,000,000 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (5,958,187)  (5,374,525) 
 ───────── ───────── 
Net debt 54,853,292 50,443,340 
Total equity 43,291,926 36,287,996 

 ───────── ───────── 
Total capital 98,145,218 86,731,336 
 ───────── ───────── 
Gearing ratio 56% 58% 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
 
22 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  
 
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
 
Financial assets consist of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss, insurance contract assets and reinsurance contract assets, term deposits and cash 
and cash equivalent. Financial liabilities consist of insurance contract assets, reinsurance contract assets, term loans 
and other liabilities. 
 
The fair values of financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. The Group uses the  
following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by valuation technique:  
 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities; 
 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 
observable, either directly or indirectly;  
 
Level 3: other techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based 
on observable market data. 
 
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value 
hierarchy: 
 

 

 
Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1) 

Significant  
observable  

inputs  
(Level 2) 

Significant  
unobservable  

inputs  
(Level 3) 

Total fair  
value 

31 December 2024 KD  KD  KD  KD  
     
Financial assets at fair value though profit or 

loss 
 

20,816,063 
  

1,347,975  
 

5,299,504 
  

27,463,542  
Financial assets at fair value though other 

comprehensive income 
 

 17,969,120  
 

 -     
  

11,946,615  
 

29,915,735 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
Total 38,785,183  1,347,975  17,246,119 57,379,277 
 ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ 
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22 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 

 

 
Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1) 

Significant  
observable  

inputs  
(Level 2) 

Significant  
unobservable  

inputs  
(Level 3) 

Total fair  
value 

31 December 2023 KD  KD  KD  KD  
     
Financial assets at fair value though profit or 

loss  13,343,642   1,594,966   5,300,000   20,238,608  
Financial assets at fair value though other 

comprehensive income  15,749,696   -       10,323,037   26,072,733  
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
Total  29,093,338   1,594,966   15,623,037   46,311,341  
 ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ 
 
Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation performed at the reporting date is as follows: 
 

  
Valuation 
Technique 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 
 

Range 

 
Sensitivity of the input to 

fair value 
     
Unquoted equity 
securities 

Price to book 
value 

Discount for lack of 
marketability & lack of 
control 

5% An increase (decrease) by 5% in 
the Discount for lack of 
marketability & lack of Control 
would result in (decrease) increase 
in fair value by KD 738 
thousands. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Price to book 
value 

Price to book multiple 
"Represents amounts 
used when the Group 
has determined that 
market participants 
would use such 
multiples when pricing 
the investments"  
 

5% An increase (decrease) by 5% in 
the price to book multiple would 
result in increase (decrease) in fair 
value by KD 2,113 thousands.   

 
The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets which 
are recorded at fair value.  

 

At the 
beginning of 

the year 

Net Change in 
fair value 

recorded in the 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive 
income 

Net Change in 
fair value 

recorded in 
the 

consolidated 
statement of 

income 

Net  
 purchases  

 and  
 disposals 

At the end 
 of the year 

 KD KD KD KD  KD  
2024      
Financial assets at fair value though other 

comprehensive income 10,323,037 1,423,578 
 

- 200,000 
 

11,946,615 
Financial assets at fair value though profit 

or loss 5,300,000 - (496) 
 

- 5,299,504 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
 15,622,541 1,423,578 (496) 200,000 17,246,119 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
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22 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 

 

 
Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1) 

Significant  
observable  

inputs  
(Level 2) 

Significant  
unobservable  

inputs  
(Level 3) 

Total fair  
value 

31 December 2023 KD  KD  KD  KD  
     
Financial assets at fair value though profit or 

loss  13,343,642   1,594,966   5,300,000   20,238,608  
Financial assets at fair value though other 

comprehensive income  15,749,696   -       10,323,037   26,072,733  
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
Total  29,093,338   1,594,966   15,623,037   46,311,341  
 ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ 
 
Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation performed at the reporting date is as follows: 
 

  
Valuation 
Technique 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 

 
 

Range 

 
Sensitivity of the input to 

fair value 
     
Unquoted equity 
securities 

Price to book 
value 

Discount for lack of 
marketability & lack of 
control 

5% An increase (decrease) by 5% in 
the Discount for lack of 
marketability & lack of Control 
would result in (decrease) increase 
in fair value by KD 738 
thousands. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Price to book 
value 

Price to book multiple 
"Represents amounts 
used when the Group 
has determined that 
market participants 
would use such 
multiples when pricing 
the investments"  
 

5% An increase (decrease) by 5% in 
the price to book multiple would 
result in increase (decrease) in fair 
value by KD 2,113 thousands.   

 
The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets which 
are recorded at fair value.  

 

At the 
beginning of 

the year 

Net Change in 
fair value 

recorded in the 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive 
income 

Net Change in 
fair value 

recorded in 
the 

consolidated 
statement of 

income 

Net  
 purchases  

 and  
 disposals 

At the end 
 of the year 

 KD KD KD KD  KD  
2024      
Financial assets at fair value though other 

comprehensive income 10,323,037 1,423,578 
 

- 200,000 
 

11,946,615 
Financial assets at fair value though profit 

or loss 5,300,000 - (496) 
 

- 5,299,504 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
 15,622,541 1,423,578 (496) 200,000 17,246,119 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
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22 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 

 

At the 
beginning of 

the year 

Net Change in 
fair value 

recorded in the 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive 
income 

Net  
 purchases  

 and  
 disposals 

At the end 
 of the year 

 KD KD KD  KD  
2023     
Financial assets at fair value though other 

comprehensive income 603,569 (76,988) 9,796,456 10,323,037 
Financial assets at fair value though profit or loss 5,300,000 -     -     5,300,000 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
 5,903,569 (76,988) 9,796,456 15,623,037 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 


